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Financial Summary

MBEBE

MAIN FINANCIAL INDEXES IN 2021
—E-FEXEUBRER

Revenue

A
37,496.9

RMB milion AR¥EEE T

+0.4pptl " -
YoY

Gross Profit Margin

EM=

23.3%

+24.2% e
YoY

20,895.3

RMB milion AR¥EEET
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+0.5pptf -
YoY

Net Profit
=

5,055.9

RMB million ARBEHET

Net Profit Margin
AR

13.5%

+2.4% e
YoY

./ Eamings per Share - Basic
BRER - EX

4.57




(in Renminbi (“RMB”) million, except for per share amounts and key financial ratio)

(ANREHET  BREHERTBHFILFEI)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEMBHRE

For the year ended 31 December

2019 2018 2017
“E-NF | ZE-N\F | ZT—+LF

Consolidated

g A
faN =]
Operating results K& ¥4&
Revenue A 37,496.9 38,001.8 37,848.7 25,931.9 22,366.3
Gross profit E ) 8,736.2 8,697.9 7,750.7 4,913.1 4,802.8
Finance costs @& A A (230.3) (233.7) (250.4) (202.1) (48.8)
Profit before tax &1 Al i 5 5,634.9 5,642.9 4,550.4 2,851.3 3,318.3
Income tax expense FTEHRF Sz (579.0) (702.6) (531.0) (338.6) (404.2)
Profit for the year F R F| 5,055.9 4,940.3 4,019.4 2,512.7 2,914.1
Attributable to: 578 :
— Owners of the Company
ZAN/NET S 4,988.0 4,871.8 3,991.3 2,490.9 2,901.6
— Non-controlling interests
PR 67.9 68.5 28.1 21.8 12.5

5,055.9 4,940.3 4,019.4 2,512.7 2,914 1

Earnings per share - basic (in RMB)

BREF -ERK(ARHE) 4.57 4.46 3.65 2.28 2.67
Assets and liabilities EER &8

Non-current assets 38 & & 10,784.5 9,808.6 8,247 .1 6,083.7 4,090.9
Current assets JRENEE 27,989.3 25,629.5 22,446.0 16,768.4 11,635.4
Total assets BEE 38,773.8 35,438.1 30,693.1 22,852.1 15,726.3
Bank borrowings $R1TIEE 2,238.9 2,070.6 1,118.6 1,482.4 1,347.9
Bonds payable fEff &% 3,815.6 3,895.9 4,156.1 4,080.0 -
Other liabilities L& & 11,824.0 12,645.5 12,692.2 8,001.6 6,859.2
Total liabilities & & 17,878.5 18,612.0 17,966.9 13,564.0 8,207.1
Net assets EEFE 20,895.3 16,826.1 12,726.2 9,288.1 7,519.2
Equity attributable to owners of the Company

NN Y g 20,588.1 16,597.2 12,552.9 9,234.1 7,488.5
Non-controlling interests FEFEA% A %5 307.2 228.9 173.3 54.0 30.7
Total equity #5428 %8 20,895.3 16,826.1 12,726.2 9,288.1 7,519.2
Key financial ratio T E 8Lt =

Gross profit margin (%) & F & (%) 23.3 22.9 20.5 18.9 21.5
Net profit margin (%) 7% ¥ & (%) 13.5 13.0 10.6 9.7 13.0
Gearing ratio (%) B & E(%) 15.6 16.8 17.2 24.3 8.6
Current ratio (times) &L R (£3) 2.4 1.9 1.8 1.9 1.5
Quick ratio (times) FEh L= (%) 1.9 1.5 1.4 1.6 1.2

Note: The above published results and the statement of assets and liabilities ~ M3 @ FilEBEMHEEMEEMRBER R
have been prepared on a consistent basis. AEEHR -

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF » 2021 R @
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Unswervingly implement the

"Mingpeijiao” ( ZEL A ) strategy
to build a world-renowned

optoelectronic enterprise
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To explore the prosperous road
for the development of China's
optoelectronic industry
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

RRERE

Dear Shareholders,

The Company is pleased to present to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) the annual report for the year of 2021.

In 2021, the global economy continued to recover. However, the
emergence of new variants brought more uncertainties to the duration
of the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”). The varied vaccination
progress and policies differentiated the economic prospects in
different countries. In the face of the intricate and complicated external
environment, the Group surmounted the challenges and responded
positively, achieved solid development in all of its three major
businesses and further created value for the Shareholders.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2021, the world economy experienced unstable and imbalanced
recovery and the Sino-U.S. relations failed to improve obviously.
Meanwhile, with the imbalanced development of the supply chain and
the surging demand for semiconductors in new energy vehicle, VR
and other fields, the shortage of chips has become a key bottleneck
for the relevant technological and manufacturing industries to achieve
sustainable development. Despite the severe external business
environment, the Group tried its utmost to achieve its operational
targets. On one hand, the Group committed to the development of its
existing advantageous businesses, continuously improved the process
and technology, advanced automated manufacturing processes and
enhanced cost control capabilities, furthering strengthening its market
competitiveness. On the other hand, the Group continued to boost
R&D investment, consistently deepened the cultivation mechanism
for new businesses and the innovation mechanism for new products,
achieving continuous breakthroughs in the development of emerging
businesses and creating new growth drivers for the mid- to long-term
development of the Group. At the same time, the Group also made
great efforts in strengthening the construction of corporate culture and
talent systems to pursue sustainable development with high quality.

During the year under review, affected by the reoccurrence of the
global pandemic and the shortage of chips, the growth of the global
smartphone industry and automobile industry further slowed down
and the market landscape experienced profound changes. Thanks
to the diligent efforts of all employees, the Group achieved solid
development in major businesses during the year under review. The
Group’s three main products, namely handset lens sets, handset
camera modules and vehicle lens sets, gained the global No. 1 market
shares and their market positions and comprehensive competitiveness
were further consolidated and enhanced. Under the intelligent and
electrified trend of the automobile industry, the Group’s vehicle
modules, light detection and ranging (“LiDAR”) and other vehicle-
related products achieved rapid development during the year under
review and recorded outstanding performance in technological
innovation, customer exploration and product delivery. In addition, the
Group actively deepened business layout and product development
in the Artificial Intelligence of Things (‘AloT”) and further deepened
cooperation with domestic and overseas well-known customers in
VR/AR, drone, smart home and other niche markets, laying a solid
foundation for the mid- to long-term business development of the
Group.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

During the year under review, COVID-19 continued to rage globally.
The emergence of new variants brought challenges to the production
of the Group. The Group paid high attention to pandemic prevention
and control, strictly followed and implemented pandemic prevention
and control measures and actively carried out vaccination to effectively
protect the health of staff and ensure the orderly production. The
Group will continue to implement the normalized work of pandemic
prevention and control and further improve the risk management and
internal control systems to minimize the impact of the pandemic on
employee safety and production work.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

In 2021, with the concerted efforts of all employees, the Group always
adhered to the core value of “Create Together” and the core strategy
of “Driven by Innovation”. Under the leadership of the experienced and
forward-looking management, the Group actively responded to the
rapid-changing market environment and achieved solid performance.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s revenue slightly
decreased by approximately 1.3% to approximately RMB37,496.9
million. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
increased by approximately 2.4% to approximately RMB4,988.0
million. Besides, the basic earnings per share increased by
approximately 2.4% to approximately RMB456.52 cents. The board
(the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”, each a “Director”) has
proposed final dividends of approximately RMB0.910 (equivalent to
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”) 1.118) (2020: approximately RMB0.888)
per share.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group always believes that promoting the sustainable
development is the unshirkable responsibility of an enterprise as
well as a long-term policy of business operation. Therefore, as an
enterprise with the sense of social responsibility, the Group always
adheres to the core value of “Create Together” in the production and
operation process, actively follows environmental laws and regulations
and achieves the purpose of environmental protection and sustainable
development through technological innovation and production and
manufacturing reform. Meanwhile, the Group undertakes the social
responsibility as a corporate citizen consciously in the aspects of
economic development, social security and cultural education to
pursue sustainable development with high quality. During the year
under review, the Group further improved compliance and internal
control measures, intensified the governance of anti-malpractice,
strengthened sustainable development management on the whole
supply chain and actively devoted to public welfares such as
education and charity. It further deepened the Group’s capacity
building for sustainable development and related work was widely
recognized in the society. The environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) Report for 2021 of the Group will be published before the end
of May 2022, which will be available on the website of HKEXnews of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the Group
(http://www.sunnyoptical.com).

ESG RATING AND SELECTED INDEXES
e Included in FTSE4Good Index in June 2021
e Included in Hang Seng ESG 50 Index in August 2021

e |Included in Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index in
September 2021

e ESG rating raised from “BBB” to “A” in November 2021 by MSCI
Inc. (“MSCI")

e Included in Hang Seng Index ESG Screened Index in November
2021

e Included in Hang Seng Index Low Carbon Index in November
2021
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2022, COVID-19 and new variants will continue to
bring challenges to the recovery of global economy, the international
political landscape may accelerate the evolution and the supply
chain will remain imbalanced. The smartphone market, where we
operate, has been saturated. New demand driven by the replacement
of smartphones may remain weak due to the sluggish consumer
demand and the industrial landscape will be reshaped. However,
the differentiated functions of smartphone cameras remain the key
strategic point for major smartphone manufacturers to achieve
breakthroughs. Meanwhile, under the trend of the “electrified,
connected, intelligent” vehicle driving and with the rapid improvement
in the penetration rate of advanced driver assistance systems
(“ADAS”),
products will embrace broader market potentials. In addition, the

the application of vehicle cameras, LIDAR and other

emergence of “Metaverse” is driving the rapid development of VR/
AR and other emerging intelligent consumer terminals. The rapid
development of 5G, the Internet of Things, cloud computing and other
relevant technologies brings a bright future prospect and considerable
market capacity for the application of optoelectronic products.
With years of experience in the optical field, the Group will seize
the valuable opportunities in the development of the optoelectronic
industry, fully leverage on its technological and patent advantages,
persist in R&D and innovation and strive to become a world-renowned
optoelectronic enterprise.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to unswervingly implement
the “Mingpeijiao” (& HCfA) strategy, center on customers and strive
to create more value for customers. It will firmly grasp market
opportunities, enhance technological innovation and continue to
consolidate its existing advantageous businesses. Meanwhile, it
will further increase investment in new businesses to promote the
comprehensive long-term development of the Group’s businesses.
The Group always believes that there will be more opportunities than
challenges in the future. All employees and | will continue to adhere to
the core value of “Create Together” and explore the prosperous road
for the development of China’s optoelectronic industry.
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APPRECIATION

The Group would like to express its appreciation to all of its staff for
their long-term efforts and to the management for their outstanding
contributions. It is the unremitting efforts of each member that enable
the Group to achieve solid performance in the challenging market
environment. Meanwhile, the Group wishes to express its sincere
gratitude towards the Shareholders, customers and business partners
for their long-standing support and recognition. The Group will
continue to strive for the sustainable development of the business, so
as to realise higher value for the Shareholders and other stakeholders.

Ye Liaoning
Chairman and Executive Director

China
22 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BN WED T

MARKET REVIEW

Looking back in 2021,
various countries and the global economy gradually recovered
from the bottom. The COVID-19 still brought continuous pressures
on economic recovery. Most countries faced insufficient vaccines

vaccination was actively carried out in

distribution, inflation and other major challenges. And the international
trade remained intricate and complex. However, with the normalized
pandemic prevention and control in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC” or “China”), the domestic economy achieved stable
recovery. As a result of the pandemic reoccurrence in certain regions,
frequent natural disasters and other various factors, the consumption
remained sluggish.

Smartphones, as optional consumer goods, were significantly affected
by the power and willingness of consumption. According to the study
and statistics carried out by a market analyst firm, International Data
Corporation (“IDC”), the global shipment volume of smartphones
in 2021 was approximately 1,350,000,000 units,
increase of approximately 5.7% as compared to that of 2020.

representing an

Meanwhile, the reshaping of the smartphone market landscape
due to the Sino-U.S. trading friction also intensified the competition
among the smartphone brand manufacturers. To stand out from
the competition, the smartphone brand manufacturers still strived
to promote the upgrade in specification of smartphone cameras,
such as ultra-high resolution, large image size, dual optical image
stabilization (“OIS”) and continuous optical zoom. Nevertheless, it is
regrettable that the public tend to buy mid- to low-end models as a
result of the weak consumer demand. Camera suppliers were under
significant price pressures due to the weak upgrade in specification
of smartphone cameras. Leveraging on its strong optical R&D and
process and technological capabilities, diversified product layout
and leading scale advantages in the industry, the Group carried out
in-depth cooperation with global smartphone brand manufacturers
and provided customers with competitive optical-related products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In the automobile market, according to the latest data issued by
Canalys, a market research firm, the global new vehicle sales
in 2021 only increased by approximately 4.0% as compared to
that of 2020. The shortage of chips in the supply chain became
the most significant factor to restrict the recovery of the global
automobile market. However, driven by the overwhelming “electrified,
connected, intelligent” wave of vehicle driving, the rapid rise of new
energy vehicles and the continuous iteration of autonomous driving
technologies further boosted the booming development of ADAS and
autonomous driving systems. The constantly higher requirements
on the number or specification of cameras on single vehicle and the
in-depth development trend on the integration of multi-sensor, such as
LIDAR, facilitated further improvement of autonomous driving safety.
In addition, the demand for the application of smart headlamp and
head-up display (“HUD”) also grew. The Group has cultivated in the
vehicle field for years and maintained a leading position in the industry
in terms of technological innovation and product performance. Facing
the rapid-changing market environment, the Group actively carried out
a comprehensive market layout and was highly recognized by major
customers both at home and abroad.

To respond to the further development of autonomous driving
technologies, governments of various countries have further improved
relevant policies, laws and regulations on autonomous driving. In
January 2021, the United Nations (“UN”) regulation on the “Automated
Lane Keeping Systems (“ALKS”)” officially came in effect. It is the
first binding regulation on level 3 of autonomous driving vehicles
globally and sets out specific conditions, handover conditions and
intervention conditions on initiating the automated lane keeping
function of autonomous driving vehicles. At the same time, the
Department of Transportation of the U.S. released the “Comprehensive
Plan for Automated Vehicles”, which further clarifies the direction
of the development of autonomous driving vehicles in the U.S.. In
April 2021, the Department for Transport of the U.K. carried out a
public consultation on proposed changes to the “Highway Code” to
improve the legal basis for allowing level 3 of autonomous driving
vehicles to travel on roads in the U.K. by the end of 2021. In May
2021, the German Bundestag has adopted the legislation of the “Act
on Automated Driving” that will allow level 4 of autonomous driving
vehicles to be used on public roads and in defined areas in Germany
by 2022. In China, the Ministry of Public Security of the PRC released
the “Draft Proposed Amendments of the Road Traffic Safety Law” in
March 2021, which clarifies the requirements related to road testing
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N

of, and access by, vehicles equipped with automated driving functions,
as well as regulating how liability for traffic violations and accidents
will be allocated. This marks the first time that the PRC has proposed
specific legislation for autonomous cars at the level of the basic law
and it is a significant milestone. Besides, to further prevent risks on
data safety arising from the intelligent development of vehicles, the
Cyberspace Administration of China issued the “Several Provisions
on Automobile Data Security Management (Draft for Comments)” in
May 2021, which further specified the requirements and measures on
data security regulation in the automobile industry. The introduction of
such policies, laws and regulations will benefit the long-term standard
development of autonomous driving in the automobile industry.

In the optical instrument market, despite the impact of the pandemic,
the technical progress of industrial, medical, technological research,
life science and other fields continued to promote the development of
the global optical instrument industry. Meanwhile, with the accelerated
transformation and upgrade of the manufacturing industry and the
continuously increasing demand for remote operation and automation,
the development of intelligent factories has become the general trend
of modern industry and the manufacturing industry, which brings huge
market opportunities for the application of intelligent equipment.

In addition, the Group also vigorously explored the applications of
optical technologies in emerging markets and sought to occupy a
favorable market position in advance. During the year under review,
driven by the pandemic and the rapid development of VR-related
technologies, the shipment volume of VR equipment increased rapidly.
It brought a more mature development ecosystem in the VR market.
It advanced continuous breakthroughs in VR/AR technologies and
brought broader applications prospects for the incubation of the
Group’s VR/AR optical products. Besides, with the rapid development
of artificial intelligence (“Al”) technologies and the gradual landing
and clarification of 3D vision-related market applications, the facial
recognition algorithm, the live detection algorithm and 3D technical
solutions independently developed by the Group can be applied to
robotic vision, facial recognition payment, smart home, smart retail,
smart logistics and other related fields. In the future, the Group will
commit to improving its own R&D capabilities and strengthen in-depth
cooperation with top global high-tech companies, thereby laying a
solid foundation for the Group’s development in new fields.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, facing the rapid-changing market
landscape, fierce industrial competition and the impact of the
normalized pandemic, the Group maintained a leading position in the
industry through the following aspects:

1. devoted in the R&D and application of new technologies,
accelerated the iteration in the development of new products and
new specifications, challenged and took the “commanding height”
of the industry;

2. enhanced refined managements, realised continuous distinct

division of duties and clear workflow under a common goal and

thereby improved the quality of operation;

3. increased investments in new businesses, firmly grasped the
development opportunities in the emerging markets and rapidly
developed the growth points of new businesses; and

4. enhanced the internal incentive mechanism and further practised
the core value of “Create Together”.

The establishment and improvement of the patent system is an
important manifestation of the core capability of an enterprise. In
order to advance technological innovation, further improve the market
competitiveness and prevent operational risks effectively in intellectual
property rights, the Group has established a professional intellectual
property rights management team which actively formulated strategies
on corporate patents and has been proactively formulating overall
planning in relation to the patent layout. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group had 2,971 granted patents, including 1,092 invention patents,
1,806 utility model patents and 73 exterior design patents. In addition,
3,970 patent applications are pending for approval.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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OPTICAL COMPONENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue from the Optical
Components business segment was approximately RMB8,776.1
million, representing a decrease of approximately 4.4% as compared
to that of last year. This segment accounted for approximately 23.4%
of the Group’s total revenue, as compared to approximately 24.2% of
last year.

During the year under review, the shipment volume of handset lens
sets of the Group amounted to 1,439,545,000 units, representing a
decrease of approximately 5.9% as compared to that of last year,
with 6 pieces of plastic lens (“6P”) and above products accounting for
approximately 25.6% of total shipment volume. Under the impact of
the weak demand in the global smartphone market, the downgrade
in specification of terminal configurations, the restrictions on the
supply chain and other unfavorable factors, the shipment volume
growth and the specification upgrade of handset lens sets of the
Group were under certain pressures. Facing the unfavorable objective
environment, the Group continued to promote the optimisation of the
customer structure and enhance R&D and process and technological
capabilities, thus continued to consolidate the global No. 1 position in
terms of the market share amid fierce market competition. Meanwhile,
the Group also proactively carried out the layout on product innovation
to meet customers’ demands. During the year under review, it
completed the R&D of various high-specification handset lens sets,
mainly including ultra-thin miniaturized head handset lens sets for
foldable phones, 200-mega pixel ultra-large image size (1/1.22”)
handset lens sets, ultra-large image size (1/1.12”) handset lens sets
with 8 pieces of plastic lens (“8P”), wide-angle handset lens sets with
two pieces of freeform lens and the large image size (1/1.5”) periscope
handset lens sets specially for ultra-high-definition portrait shooting.
Additionally, ultra-wide angle (140° above) handset lens sets, ultra-thin
large image size (1/1.5”) handset lens sets and new large image size
main handset lens sets with glass aspherical lenses have commenced
mass production.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In terms of the vehicle lens sets business, although the tight supply
of chips severely restricted the global automobile sales growth, the
adoption rate of vehicle lens sets continuously increased benefiting
from the development of autonomous driving. Leveraging on its
leading competitive advantages, the shipment volume of vehicle lens
sets of the Group amounted to 67,980,000 units during the year under
review, representing an increase of approximately 21.0% as compared
to that of last year and further consolidated its global No. 1 position
in terms of market share. Meanwhile, the Group continued to achieve
breakthroughs in technological R&D and product innovation for
vehicle lens sets. After tackling the problem of temperature excursion
of plastic lenses, the Group has completed the R&D of 2-mega and
3-mega pixel ADAS hybrid vehicle lens sets containing multiple plastic
lenses during the year under review, which could significantly reduce
the cost and improve the performance of the products. Meanwhile,
the Group also solved the reliability problem of exposed plastic lenses
through the adoption of special plastic materials and special coating
processes and commenced mass production of all-plastic rear-view
vehicle lens sets. In addition, the Group deeply knows the important
role of platform manufacturers in the evolution of autonomous driving
and has carried out in-depth cooperation with various platform
manufacturers. During the year under review, the Group has passed
the certification on 8-mega pixel ADAS vehicle lens sets based on
several platforms of NVIDIA, Qualcomm and Horizon Robotics, etc.
and has obtained platform-based projects from various automobile
manufacturers. Many platform-based projects have commenced mass
production. Meanwhile, the Group initiated ADAS vehicle lens sets with
the automatic defrosting and demisting functions and has obtained
level 3 to level 4 of autonomous driving platform-based projects from
various automobile manufacturers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In terms of the emerging vehicle business field, the Group continued
to speed up the R&D and market promotion of LIDAR, HUD, smart
headlamp and other new products and continuously deployed optical
sensing technologies and products for the continuous upgrade of
smart driving system. In respect of LIDAR, through providing receiving
and transmitting lens sets components and assemblies, receiving and
transmitting modules, optical windows, polygonal prisms and other
core optical components, the Group has obtained over 20 designated
cooperative projects during the year under review, two of which have
commenced mass production. The Group will continue to add value to
LIDAR manufacturers. In respect of HUD, the Group has commenced
mass production of freeform lenses, one of its core components.
Meanwhile, the Group has commenced small-batch supply of the core
optical engine for holographic AR HUD solutions. In respect of smart
headlamp, the Group has commenced small-batch supply of the core
lens sets for various 0.01-mega pixel projecting modules.

In terms of the emerging optical market field, the Group firmly seized
the opportunities from the booming VR market, vigorously explored
the global market and boosted efforts in product R&D. During the year
under review, the Group completed the R&D of the new-generation
VR positioning lens sets, which further tackled temperature excursion
and improved the stability of spatial orientation. Meanwhile, it also
completed the R&D of binocular VR optical modules, which further
improved distortion and chromatism and optimised the display effect
of VR. Additionally, the Group has commenced mass production of
VR eyepieces with two fresnel lenses. The eyepieces improved the
immersive experience of VR through enlarging the field of view.

As at 31 December 2021, a total of 1,667 granted patents have been
obtained by the Group in the Optical Components business segment,
including 493 invention patents, 1,167 utility model patents and 7
exterior design patents. In addition, 2,241 patents are pending for
approval.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPTOELECTRONIC PRODUCTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue from the
Optoelectronic Products business segment was approximately
RMB28,333.5 million, representing a slight decrease of approximately
0.6% as compared to that of last year. This segment accounted for
approximately 75.6% of the Group’s total revenue, as compared to
approximately 75.0% of last year.

During the year under review, the shipment volume of handset camera
modules of the Group amounted to 673,725,000 units, representing
an increase of approximately 13.6% as compared to that of last
year, with the periscope modules and large image size (image size
is 1/1.7” and above) modules accounting for approximately 6.7% of
total shipment volume. Under the impact of the weak demand for
smartphone market, the downgrade in terminal configurations, the
lower proportion of high-end products and other unfavorable factors,
the Group surmounted the challenges, overcame heavy pressures
and further expanded the shares in domestic and foreign famous
customers. It achieved a good shipment growth during the year under
review and occupied the global No. 1 position in terms of the market
share. At the same time, in order to further strengthen the market
competitiveness and enhance the technological added-value of the
products, the Group has completed the R&D of various handset
camera modules during the year under review, including cost-effective
5X optical zoom periscope handset camera modules and ultra large
image size (1/1.12”) handset camera modules. In addition, dual OIS
handset camera modules and new large image size main handset
camera modules with glass aspherical lenses have commenced mass
production.

In addition, the Group further strengthened the R&D and introduction
of the process capability. While achieving high level of automation, it
significantly improved the output efficiency and the production yield
rate during the whole manufacturing process. During the year under
review, the Group developed the close-loop assembly and testing
line independently and put it into use, realising one-stop production
and turnover from chip on board (“COB”) to active alignment (“AA”)
and testing. Therefore, it can save the turnover time and reduce the
defect rate in turnover. Meanwhile, the Group has completed the
development of equipment for the testing of OIS handset camera
modules, which has been successfully put into production. The
equipment can realise automatic loading and unloading and the
operation model with one person responsible for more machines,
thereby significantly improving the testing efficiency.
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In terms of vehicle modules business, in order to solve customers’ pain
points and industrial difficulties, the Group ensured product performance
and reliability from the perspective of product innovation and improving
product quality, deepened the technical elements of the whole product
lines, and improved the layout of product lines including environmental
sensing, in-cabin monitoring and external viewing. During the year under
review, the Group completed the R&D of various vehicle modules,
including 3-mega pixel panoramic vehicle modules, 3-mega pixel ultra-
wide angle vehicle modules for rear-view electronic mirror and super high
resolution vehicle modules for car video blog (“Carlog”). Meanwhile, the
Group has also achieved mass production of various sensing vehicle
modules for external environment, including 1.7-mega pixel, 2-mega
pixel, 5-mega pixel and 8-mega pixel. In addition, the Group’s 8-mega
pixel vehicle modules applied to the platforms of Horizon Robotics,
Mobileye and NVIDIA have obtained more than 10 designated customers,
among which 8-mega pixel vehicle modules applied to Horizon Robotics
and Mobileye have commenced mass production. In terms of in-cabin
monitoring, 1.3-mega pixel and 2-mega pixel driver monitoring vehicle
modules and 2-mega pixel occupancy monitoring vehicle modules
have also commenced mass production and the products were sold to
superior domestic and overseas customers. Moreover, with the constantly
increasing requirements on the accuracy and reliability of vehicle cameras
and based on its extensive experience in the camera module industry, the
Group has established the automotive-grade COB production line and
has the capability to commence mass production.

In terms of the robotic vision business, the Group continued to
deploy two product categories of robotic recognition and positioning
and focused on technological innovation to explore broader market
applications. In terms of the recognition business, the Group has made
breakthroughs in structured light modules with its self-developed and
self-optimised algorithm in the application scenario of identity verification.
The dual-camera and structured light modules have also been recognized
by customers in the application scenario of smart door locks with facial
recognition. In terms of the positioning business, the Group’s VR visual
modules were in the leading position in terms of market share and it
conducted cooperation with globally-renowned customers as a major
supplier. At the same time, the solutions for the visual systems of service
robots with the simultaneous location and mapping (“SLAM”) and the
visual navigation technology as the core have commenced application in
the clients. Additionally, the Group has completed the tape-out of visual
Al chips during the year under review to facilitate the Group to provide
more comprehensive optical system solutions to customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2021, a total of 1,109 granted patents have
been obtained by the Group in the Optoelectronic Products business
segment, including 557 invention patents, 513 utility model patents
and 39 exterior design patents. In addition, 1,642 patents are pending

for approval.
OPTICAL INSTRUMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue from the Optical
Instruments business segment was approximately RMB387.3 million,
representing an increase of approximately 18.7% as compared to that
of last year. This segment accounted for approximately 1.0% of the
Group’s total revenue, as compared to approximately 0.8% of last
year.

In terms of the microscopes business, the Group has been immersed
in into technological innovation for consecutive years to achieve
further breakthroughs. During the year under review, the Group has
completed the R&D of the first 25X flat field multiphoton excitation
dedicated objectives for commercial use in China. With large numerical
aperture and broadband achromatic correction, the objectives
achieved breakthroughs in near-infrared single-photon and multiphoton
in-depth and high spatial resolution. Meanwhile, all series of objective
lenses of super apochromat have commenced mass production. Such
objective lenses have the largest numerical aperture and achromatic
correction range in China, and can realize high resolution and high
precision imaging in the scientific research field.

In terms of the intelligent equipment business, the Group continued
to place strong emphasis on two application scenarios, namely
the industrial and medical fields. In the industrial field, the Group
successfully completed the R&D of AA equipment for VR modules
during the year under review. The equipment is used in active
alignment for VR modules and liquid crystal displays. Besides, it also
completed the R&D of the integrated production line for the testing
of handset lens sets. Meanwhile, the vehicle plain glass with large
size inspection equipment for appearance inspection of the glass of
active center stack has commenced mass production. Additionally, in
the medical field, the Group has completed the R&D of chromosome
caryotype auto microscopic scanner, which can be applied in prenatal
examination, screening and diagnosis, genetic diseases diagnosis,
hematologic tumor diagnosis and other fields and has successfully
replaced imported equipment.
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BN WED T

As at 31 December 2021,
obtained by the Group in the Optical Instruments business segment,

a total of 195 granted patents have been

including 42 invention patents, 126 utility model patents and 27 exterior
design patents. In addition, 87 patents are pending for approval.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021,
representing a slight decrease of

the Group’s revenue was
approximately RMB37,496.9 million,
approximately 1.3% as compared to that of last year. The slight decrease
in revenue was mainly attributable to the fact that the shipment volume
of handset lens sets decreased as compared to that of last year, and the
average selling prices of handset lens sets and handset camera modules
decreased as compared to that of last year, which were affected by the
downgraded specification and configuration of smartphone camera.

Revenue generated from the Optical Components business segment
was approximately RMB8,776.1 million, representing a slight decrease of
approximately 4.4% as compared to that of last year. The slight decrease
in revenue was mainly attributable to the fact that the shipment volume of
handset lens sets slightly decreased as compared to that of last year, and
the average selling price of handset lens sets decreased as compared to
that of last year, which was affected by the downgraded specification and
configuration of smartphone camera.

Revenue generated from the Optoelectronic Products business segment
was approximately RMB28,333.5 million, representing a slight decrease of
approximately 0.6% as compared to that of last year. The slight decrease
in revenue was mainly attributable to the fact that although the shipment
volume of handset camera modules increased compared to that of last
year, the average selling price of handset camera modules decreased
significantly as compared to that of last year, which was affected by
the downgraded specification and configuration of smartphone camera
and the change of customer structure, which offset the revenue growth
brought by the increased shipment volume.

Revenue generated from the Optical Instruments business segment
was approximately RMB387.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately 18.7% as compared to that of last year. The increase in
revenue was mainly attributable to the increased market demand for
optical instruments applied to domestic industrial sector and the market

recovery of overall overseas market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
was approximately RMB8,736.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately 0.4% as compared to that of last year. The gross profit
margin was approximately 23.3% (2020: approximately 22.9%), which
was approximately 0.4 percentage point higher as compared to that of
last year.

The gross profit margins of Optical Components business segment,
Optoelectronic Products business segment and Optical Instruments
business segment were approximately 39.5%, 13.7% and 45.1%,
respectively (2020: approximately 42.8%, 12.6% and 39.2%
respectively).

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 were approximately RMB274.1 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 12.6% as compared to
that of last year. It accounted for approximately 0.7% of the Group’s
revenue during the year, as compared to approximately 0.8% of
last year. The decrease in absolute amount was attributable to the
continuous strengthening of expense management by the Group.
The testing fees, property insurance premiums and other selling and
distribution expenses have been decreased.

R&D Expenditure

The R&D expenditure of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately RMB2,642.2 million, representing an increase
of approximately 5.7% as compared to that of last year. It accounted
for approximately 7.0% of the Group’s revenue during the year, as
compared to approximately 6.6% of last year. The increase in absolute
amount was attributable to the Group’s continuous investments in the
upgrade of existing products and the R&D of products related to the
emerging businesses of the Group.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 were approximately RMB757.6 million, representing
an increase of approximately 5.4% as compared to that of last year. It
accounted for approximately 2.0% of the Group’s revenue during the
year, as compared to approximately 1.9% of last year. The increase
in absolute amount was attributable to the increase in the headcount
and remuneration of administrative staff, the grant of restricted shares
and the informationization construction.

BEENWED

ENRENR
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EBEMEFHARES,736,200,0007T © BE
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Income Tax Expense

The income tax expense of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately RMB579.0 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 17.6% as compared to that of last year.
The decrease in absolute amount was mainly attributable to the
increase of additional tax deduction on eligible R&D expenditure. The
Group’s effective tax rate was approximately 10.3% during the year,
as compared to approximately 12.5% of last year.

The tax rates applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are

Fr&HRX

BHE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HILEE K&
BEMAMERES A ARKS579,000,0007T © 8
KERDH17.6% EABEHSHENRIEE
EHRFGEBGRENMERZATEINESHT
BReEm- RFR REBNBERHRELY
10.3% + =FAI#12.5% o

TRERAEESHENBRARNERRE

shown as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

MEAREE

Kind of legal entities

EANER

“Zhejiang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Zhejiang Optics”)

IREHEERAT
(TBFHTRE )

“Ningbo Sunny Instruments Co., Ltd.

(“Sunny Instruments”)

B RFEEERAR
((B5EE)

“Sunny Optics (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd.

(“Sunny Zhongshan Optics”)

CRERE (hIL) BRAT
GELTEL N

“Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Opotech”)

TERRTHREERERAT
([#FEAXE])

Limited liability company
(Taiwan, Hong Kong or
Macau joint venture)

BREMELR
(RBRAE)

Limited liability company
(Taiwan, Hong Kong or
Macau joint venture)

BREFAR
(ABRAK)

Limited liability company
(Taiwan, Hong Kong or
Macau and domestic joint
venture)

BREFAT
(RBREZANGE)

Limited liability company
(Taiwan, Hong Kong or
Macau and domestic joint
venture)

BREFAT
(RBREZANGE)

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021

(Expected) (Expected)

(7a#A) (F&#8)

15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
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Kind of legal entities
EAER

“Ningbo Sunny Infrared Technologies
Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Infrared Optics”)
CERBEFAIMIM AR AR
([HFAIIEE])

“Ningbo Sunny Automotive Optech
Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Automotive Optech”)

TERRTEHEABRMARAT]
([RFEEHEXE])

“Xinyang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Xinyang Optics”)

EBRTHEERAA
(IBFEBAE )

“Yuyao Sunny Optical Intelligence
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Optical Intelligence
(Yuyao)”)

TRk FE A ERMARDR
(IBRFERNE (8K ])

“Ningbo Sunny Intelligent Technology
Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Intelligent Technology”)
TERETEREMRARAT
([BFEREMR])

“Sunny Optical (Zhejiang) Research
Institute Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Research Institute”)
YRFXRE NI MRRERAR
([#FHRER])

(Expected)
(F2H)
Limited liability company
(investment by foreign
investment company)
BEREERA
UINERELERE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment by foreign
investment company)
BEREERA
UINEREGFEANBE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(investment by foreign
investment company)
BREFAF
UIBERELERE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment)

BRETAT
CEABE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment)
BREFAAT
CEABE) 25.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment)
BREMELR
CEABE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

(Expected)
(F85)

156.0%

156.0%

15.0%

15.0%

15.0%

156.0%
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Name of subsidiaries

i) PR

Kind of legal entities
EAER

“Zhejiang Sunny SmartLead
Technologies Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny SmartLead”)

NIRRT EERMERLAA
([RFEER])

“Zhejiang Sunny Optical Intelligence
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Optical Intelligence”)
WMIRFEEABRMBRAR]
(IRFEREXE])

Shanghai Sunny Yangming Precision
Optics Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Shanghai Optics”)

LERFHEHREREERAT
([RFLEXE])

Sunny Group Company Limited
(“Sunny Group”)

HTREARRAR
((#F£E])

‘Ningbo Mei Shan Bao Shui Gang
Qu Sunxin Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)

(“Ningbo Sunxin Investment”)

'ERGILRTERZEREER
AaRE (BRAE)
([BERRERE])

Ningbo Mei Shan Bao Shui Gang Qu

Sunyi Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Ningbo Sunyi Investment”)

ERBLRTERZBREEEARAA

([ER%BRE )

(Expected)
(F2H)
Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment)
BREMELR
CEABE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company

BAREERF
12.5% 12.5% 25.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment by foreign
investment company)
BREMELA
UINBREGREANBE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment by foreign
investment company)
BREERA
UINBREGREANBE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

Limited partnership company

N/A N/A N/A
i TER il

Limited liability company

BAREERF
25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021

(Expected)
(F85)

156.0%

25.0%

25.0%

25.0%

N/A

TEM

25.0%
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Kind of legal entities
EAER

Yuyao City Sunny Huitong Microcredit
Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Huitong”)

Sk TERNEERERAF
([RFERE])

Ningbo Sunny OmniLight
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny OmniLight Technology”)
BRFFEFRREMERRA
([FFRRBIM )

Sunny Mobility Technologies (Ningbo)
Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Mobility”)
BRBFETERRMAERLDA
([RFETER])

Shanghai Wissen Automotive Sensing
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Wissen”)
LTEAREHERRMER AR
(TLB/R&kl)

Ningbo Yuanheng Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd.
(“Ningbo Yuanheng’)

ERTEAEEEEERAA
([ERxE])

(Expected)
(F2H)
Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment)
BREAERA
CEABE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment)
BREFAF
CEABE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment)
BREFLT
CEABE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment)
BREAERA
CEABE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment)
BREMAF
CEABE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

(Expected)
(F85)

25.0%

25.0%

25.0%

25.0%

25.0%
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Name of subsidiaries
MEBARARRE

Kind of legal entities

EANER

(Expected) (Expected)

(88) (&)
@Zhejiang Sunnyverse Technology Limited liability company
Co., Ltd. (joint venture invested
(“Sunnyverse Technology’) by foreign investment
company)
ST R AN EARA A BRELAR N/A
(I#AR]) OIEREREGE) A 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
@Sunny OmniLight Technology Limited liability company
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (legal person sole
(“Sunny OmniLight (Shanghai)’) investment by foreign
investment company)
CRTFRRLEEAE(LE)ERAF ARAEERA N/A
(IBFRR(LE)]) OIERERERENEER) A 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

4

The companies were recognised as Hi-Tech Enterprises prior to the * ZERQFRNGEERNERATEASTEMEE -
balance sheet date.

+ The companies have obtained Hi-Tech Enterprise Certification with the + HZEATEEESSHREMTOEBR AR
- FF+ZA=+—8B ZZE=F+=

—t+t—Hs=—E-_=F+-_A=+—H-

expiry dates on 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 or 31 December

lﬂHﬁi\‘#

2023, respectively.
- The company was recognised as a Software Company prior to the balance - ZAFREEHRAHREARGLE  EXhHE
PRSTLE ME R RER =FR+RENEER

enterprise income tax for the first two years and 50% reduction for the ® o

sheet date, and is entitled to the preferential policies of full exemption from

subsequent three years.

' The partners of the company shall be liable for the income tax on their I ZARABRABNLYE  HABABTTRERS
own as it is a limited partnership company. B o
@ The companies were established during the year. @ FZERRRAFEANKIL
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Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The net profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
was approximately RMB5,055.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately 2.3% as compared to that of last year. The increase
in net profit was mainly attributable to the increase in gross profit
and the decrease in income tax expense. The net profit margin was
approximately 13.5% (2020: approximately 13.0%).

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company and Basic Earnings per Share

The profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB4,988.0
million, representing an increase of approximately 2.4% as compared
to that of last year. The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2021 was approximately RMB456.52 cents, representing
an increase of approximately 2.4% as compared to that of last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Cash Flows

The table below summarises the Group’s cash flows for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020:

Net cash from operating activities #&& & E & TS IR & 558
Net cash used in investing activities % & /& E TR IR & F58
Net cash used in financing activities &4 /& B FT IR &% 58

EEEN WD

BRI R FER R

BHE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HILEE K&
B 1% F 49 A R #55,055,900,0007C @ B EF
HIN492.3% o FFIEMEBREAAEFIE MK
FTSBiFAA L o FREAL13.5% (ZF=F
F: 4913.0%) °

RARARREEFARBRESRER

27

BE_Z-—%+-_A=+—HIEFE &1
AP S EAE F M A4 A R % 4,988,000,000
T MEFEMA2.4% - HE-_ST—_—F+=
A=Z+—HLTFE  SREABIHARE
456.52%5 + BAFIEINA2.4% °

REE S K BORIR

REng

TRV AEBHEZ T - —F+_A=1+—
B -_ZE-_EF+_A=+—HULEFENES
MEME

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2020

—E_EF

RMB million RMB million
AR¥®BEER AREBET
6,979.0 7,160.0
(2,901.5) (5,976.2)
(1,241.4) (222.3)

T RBRE (RE) BRATF » 2021 F3H /29>
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Funding and Treasury Policy

The Group derives its working capital mainly from cash on hand and
net cash from operating activities. The Board expects that the Group
will rely on net cash from operating activities, bank borrowings and
debt financing to meet the demand of working capital and other
capital expenditure requirements in the short run. In the long run, the
Group will be mainly funded by net cash from operating activities and,
if necessary, by additional bank borrowings, debt financing or equity
financing. There were no material changes in the funding and treasury
policy of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had current assets of
approximately RMB27,989.3 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB25,629.5 million), comprising bank balances
and cash of approximately RMB5,605.2 million (31 December
2020: approximately RMB2,841.8 million); and current liabilities
of approximately RMB11,873.5 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB13,411.1 million). The Group’s current ratio was
approximately 2.4 times (31 December 2020: approximately 1.9 times).
The Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB38,773.8 million, represented an increase by approximately 9.4%
as compared to that as at 31 December 2020.

Operating Activities

Cash inflow from operating activities was mainly generated from
cash receipt from sales of the Group’s products. Cash outflow
from operating activities was mainly used for the purchases of
raw materials, staff costs, selling and distribution expenses, R&D
expenditure and administrative expenses. Net cash from operating
activities was approximately RMB6,979.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 and net cash from operating activities was
approximately RMB7,160.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The trade receivables turnover days (average of the opening and
closing trade receivables balances/revenue x 365 days) decreased
from approximately 73 days for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately 60 days for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
decrease in trade receivables turnover days was mainly attributable to
the revenue from those customers with longer credit terms grew faster
during the year of 2020.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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The trade payables turnover days (average of the opening and closing
trade payable and accrued purchases balances/cost of sales x 365 days)
decreased from approximately 98 days for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately 83 days for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The decrease in the trade payables turnover days was mainly attributable
to the strategic stocking by the Group at the end of 2020.

The inventory turnover days (average of the opening and closing inventory
balances/cost of sales x 365 days) increased from approximately 68 days
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately 71 days for the
year ended 31 December 2021. The increased in inventory turnover days
was mainly attributable to the continuous strengthening of supply chain
management and strategic stocking by the Group during this year.

Investing Activities

The Group recorded a net cash used in investing activities of
approximately RMB2,901.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2021,
unlisted financial products of approximately RMB46,718.5 million and

which was mainly attributable to purchases and release of

approximately RMB46,923.8 million during the year ended 31 December
2021 respectively, and the Group’s capital expenditure amounting to
approximately RMB2,588.9 million during the year.

Financing Activities

The Group recorded a net cash used in financing activities of
approximately RMB1,241.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The cash inflow mainly came from proceeds from new bank borrowings
raised of approximately RMB5,557.9 million. Major outflows were the
repayment of bank borrowings of approximately RMB5,354.7 million,
dividends paid to the Shareholders of approximately RMB987.0 million,
interest paid of approximately RMB222.1 million and purchase of shares
under share award scheme of approximately RMB212.2 million.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s capital expenditure
amounted to approximately RMB2,588.9 million, which was mainly
used for the purchases of property, plant and equipment, payments for
leasehold lands, payment for intangible assets and purchase of other
tangible assets. All of the capital expenditure was financed by internal
resources and bank borrowings.

BEENWED
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Indebtedness
Bank borrowings

Bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately RMB2,238.9 million (2020: approximately RMB2,070.6
million). No bank borrowings were secured by certain buildings and
land of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. As at 31
December 2021, the bank borrowings were denominated in RMB and
United State Dollar (“USD”).

Details of the bank borrowings are set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Bank facilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had bank facilities of RMB2,770.0
million with Yuyao Sub-branch of Agricultural Bank of China Limited,
RMB2,400.0 million with Ningbo Branch of The Export-Import Bank of
China, RMB915.0 million with Yuyao Branch of Bank of China Limited,
RMB2,500.0 million with Yuyao Sub-branch of Ningbo Bank Co., Ltd.,
RMB380.0 million with Yuyao Sub-branch of Bank of Communications
Co., Ltd., RMB100.0 million with Yuyao Sub-branch of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited, RMB70.0 million with Xinyang
Pingzhong Street Sub-branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China Limited, RMB600.0 million with Yuyao Sub-branch of China
Construction Bank Corporation, USD120.0 million with BNP Paribas
Hong Kong Branch, USD60.0 million with The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited Hong Kong Branch, USD30.0 million with
Ningbo Branch of HSBC Bank (China) Co., Ltd., USD60.0 million with
Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank Hong Kong Branch,
USD20.0 million with Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank
Shanghai Branch, USD90.0 million with Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited, USD50.0 million with Standard Chartered (Hong Kong)
Limited and USD20.0 million with Standard Chartered Bank.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Debt securities

As at 31 December 2021, debt securities of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB3,815.6 million (2020: approximately RMB3,895.9
million). For details of bonds payable, please refer to Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s gearing ratio of approximately 15.6% refers to the ratio
of total borrowings to total capital (total capital being the sum of total
liabilities and shareholders’ equity), reflecting the Group’s financial

position at a sound level.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021,
contingent liabilities or guarantees.

the Group did not have any material

Financing and funding and treasury policies and objectives

The Group adopts prudent financing and funding and treasury policies.
The Group will seek bank borrowings and debt financing when its
operating demand grows, and will regularly review its bank borrowings
and debt securities to achieve a sound financial position.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any pledge or charge on assets as at
31 December 2021, except for the pledged bank deposits of
approximately RMB18.3 million. For details of the pledged bank
deposits, please refer to Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the capital expenditure of the Group in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated financial statements amounted
to approximately RMB684.4 million (2020: approximately RMB356.0
million).

As at 31 December 2021,
commitments save as disclosed above.

the Group had no other capital
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not enter into any material
off-balance sheet transactions.

PERFORMANCE OF INVESTMENTS AND
FUTURE INVESTMENTS PLAN

The Group’s investing activities primarily include the purchases and
release of unlisted financial products, placement and withdrawal
of short term fixed deposits and purchases of property, plant and
equipment. In particular, the purchase and disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss include debt instruments,
equity investments, fund investments and unlisted financial products.
Among them, the fund investments are managed by relevant
financial institutions, mainly investing in debt securities linked to
the performance of related senior debts; unlisted financial products
are managed by relevant banks in China, mainly investing in certain
financial assets such as bonds, trusts and cash funds, and their
investment incomes are determined based on the performance of
relevant government debt instruments and treasury bills.

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group maintained a portfolio of unlisted
financial products with the total carrying amount of approximately
RMB7,992.2 million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB8,197.5
million), of which approximately RMB2,650.6 million has been released
on or before 22 March 2022. As at 31 December 2021, the size of
the unlisted financial products subscribed by the Group in aggregate
represented approximately 20.6% of the Group’s total assets (31
December 2020: approximately 23.1%). The investment costs for the
unlisted financial products subscribed as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately RMB7,992.2 million (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB8,197.5 million). For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
amount of investment income from the unlisted financial products
was approximately RMB302.6 million (2020: approximately RMB215.0
million).

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021

EERERUIRS

R-ZE-_—F+-A=+—8 KAEBELEZ]
VEREANEEABRUINGS -

REXRARRRREE

AEENRERDH T EEREME MERIELD
TREM FTHREAEREHENERAREED
X HBLEE o LERWEBRHERAARE
AAABEMEREERRE  EHTE - ER
B EeRERFLTEREM - HF - £%
KREMHHESHBEEE TERENTEH
BRERAHBANEHES  FFLTEREMD
HPBEMERRTERE  TERERES &
AR ESFETEREE - HREKER
REBERFES TAMBESNRRETE -

EXRE

W_ZE-—F+-"F=+—0 K&EEHEZ—
HELIMeRERMNAES  BREREENARE
7,992,200,000c (ZE=ZEF+_A=+—
B #HAR¥S8,197,500,00070) © EF 4 A
R#2,650,600,000 cER == =_F=AH
T+ ZHSZR R  c R —F+ =R
=t+—H AEERENFELTERELNE
BENEREEREEN20.6% (ZEFF
+ZA=+—8 :4231%) - R=_ZT_—F
TZA=+—H RENFLTERERNRK
ERRALHARET7,992,200,000 0 (ZF=F
FTA=+—8: HHAK%8,197,500,000
L) HEZE-_—F+-A=+—HILHF
E - RAFLTEREMNBREREEBOA
R#302,600,000/t (ZE_ZFF : HARE
215,000,0007C) °



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N

TRV AEBR T -_—F+=-_A=+—H
RENEBIFEETMERERPMAE (BT

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the major unlisted
financial products subscribed by the Group as at 31 December 2021

(in descending order):

Name of the unlisted financial products

FLTEMERER

Bank of Ningbo Ning Xin fixed income 9-month periodic
wealth management No. 2

Name of banks

RITER

Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.

Investment costs

ARBTR

Percentage of fair
value of the unlisted
financial products
relative to the total
assets of the

Group as at

31 December 2021
R=B=-%

Fair value of the
unlisted financial
products as at
31 December 2021
R=B=-% +=A=t+-AH
+ZA=1-H FEmERMERD
FLmEmERN AABRAEE
AfifE HEENAEDL
RMB’000
ARETR

RERA
RMB’000

EREGEME T REFEE A FHRLEN 2% BERFIRINERAT 1,300,000 1,300,000 3.4%
Bank of Ningbo Ning Xin fixed income close-ended wealth  Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.
management No.143*
BRI EMET REBH AR 1435 ERRITROERAF 1,000,000 1,000,000 2.6%
Agricultural Bank of China “AB Shi Shi Fu” open-ended Agricultural Bank of China
RMB wealth management products® Limited
RBEH [ RRREN | ARAARSRHER PERERITROARAF 405,330 405,330 1.0%
Bank of Ningbo Ning Xin fixed income close-ended wealth  Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.
management No.172*
BEREHMEMET REBHRAR 1725 ERBOIROERAT 400,000 400,000 1.0%
CITIC “Gong Ying Wen Jian Tian Tian Li” RMB wealth China CITIC Bank
management products® Corporation Limited
PEEHZ [ARBRARN ] AREEHER PERTRHERAF 373,990 373,990 1.0%
Others?
Hitre 4,512,850 4,512,850 11.6%
Total
@zt 7,992,170 7,992,170 20.6%

*  The English names are unofficial English translations of the Chinese names  *
of unlisted financial products. If there is any inconsistency, the Chinese
names shall prevail.

BABERTENGENIFELMERERNR AT
ARFEIEAEERE - MAPEXAP B BIAR X
RAE

# Other unlisted financial products included 44 unlisted financial products #
with 7 different banks to lower the concentration risk. The fair value
of such 44 unlisted financial products as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately RMB102.6 million in average.

Hi3E LMo mERBERTRTRRITHN44TE
FELMEBMER  UREEFRER - %4483
fheRERR-_T-_—F+-_A=+—HHAQ
R EFAELHARE102,600,0007T °
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In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value change of the unlisted
financial products was insignificant during the year of 2021.

The Board considers that the terms of such unlisted financial products
are on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole.

Such investment activities were funded primarily by the idle self-owned
funds of the Group. Going forward, the Group will continue to
further diversify its investments among different banks to lower
the concentration risk and will closely monitor the performance of
investments made and future investments plan in accordance with its
prudent policy to utilise and to increase the yield of the idle funds of
the Group while maintaining a high level of liquidity and a low level of
risk. Such investment activities were made and will be made on the
premises that it would not adversely affect the working capital of the
Group or the operation of the Group’s principal business.

For the year ended 31 December 2021,
amounted to approximately RMB2,588.9 million, mainly involved

the Group’s investments
in the purchases of property, plant and equipment, the initial
production settings for new products, payments for leasehold lands
and the necessary equipment configurations for new projects. These
investments enhanced the Group’s R&D and technological application
capability and production efficiency, and thus expanded the sources
of revenue.

The Group adopts prudent funding and treasury policies, having its
investment projects mostly capital-protected with fixed income, so
as to strive for a stable and healthy financial position while improving
returns. The Group will consider using financial instruments for
hedging purposes if necessary and will continue to fund its future
investment from its own financial resources.

Looking forward, the Group intends to further invest to enhance its
competitiveness.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risks arising from its bank
borrowings for working capital and capital expenditures that are
associated with the expansion of the Group and utilisation for other
purposes. The rising of interest rates increases the costs of both
existing and new debts. As at 31 December 2021, the effective
interest rate on fixed-rate bank borrowings was approximately 3.10%
per annum, while the effective interest rate of variable-rate bank
borrowings was approximately 0.60% to approximately 0.87% per

annum.
Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

The Group exports a portion of its products to and purchases a
considerable amount of products from international markets where
transactions are denominated in USD or other foreign currencies.
For details of the Group’s foreign currency forward contracts, foreign
currency options contracts and foreign exchange swap contracts,
please refer to Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
Except for certain investments which are in line with the Group’s
business and are denominated in foreign currencies, the Group does
not and has no plan to make any foreign currency investment.

Credit Risk

The Group’s financial assets include derivative financial assets, bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, short term fixed deposits,
time deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade
and other receivables, equity instruments that are included in other
comprehensive income at fair value and debt instruments measured
at amortised cost, which represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets.
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In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade receivables, the
management of the Company (the “Management”) has delegated a
team responsible for the determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that appropriate follow-up
actions are taken to recover overdue debts. The Group has also
purchased insurances relating to trade receivables. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. Therefore, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. The
amounts presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
are net of allowance for expected credit losses, and are estimated by
the Management based on their previous experience, assessment of
the current economic environment and the discounted cash flows to
be received in the future.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk since its
trade receivables are dispersed to a large number of counterparties
and customers. The credit risk on liquidity is limited because a majority
of the counterparties of the Group are banks with high credit-ratings
given by international credit-rating agencies.

Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is primarily related to variable
rates applicable to short term bank deposits and bank borrowings.
The Management will review the proportion of borrowings in fixed and
floating rates and ensure they are within reasonable range. Therefore,
any future variations in interest rates will not have any significant
impact on the results of the Group.

Liquidity Risk
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining an adequate level of
cash and cash equivalents through continuously monitoring forecast

and actual cash flows and matching them with the maturity profile of
each financial asset and liability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MAJOR ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no major
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures of the Group.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board proposed final
dividends of approximately RMB0.910 (equivalent to HKD1.118)
per share, with payout ratio of approximately 20.0% of the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company. The final
dividends payable on 23 June 2022 is subject to the approval of
the Shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 24 May 2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Directors consider sustainable returns to the Shareholders to be
one of the main objectives pursued by the Group. The basic policy is to
pay final dividends in each financial year. Retained profits are effectively
used by the Board to fund the future development of the Group.

The Directors currently intend to recommend a distribution to all the
Shareholders in an amount representing approximately 20% to 30% of
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company in respect
of each financial year by way of dividends. The recommendation for
dividends is subject to the discretion of the Board. The Board takes
into account the following factors when considering the declaration
and payment of dividends:

the Company’s cash position and distributable reserves;

e the Group’s overall business condition;

e the Group’s financial results;

e the Group’s capital requirements;

e the interests of the Shareholders;

e applicable laws and regulations and the articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles of Association”); and

e any other factors which the Board may deem relevant.
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Any dividend declared will be in Hong Kong dollars with respect to
Shares on a per share basis and the Company will pay such dividend
in Hong Kong dollars. No dividend shall be declared in excess of the
amount recommended by the Board. Any final dividend for a fiscal
year will be subject to the approval by the Shareholders.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, no Shareholders have waived
or agreed to waive any dividends during the year ended 31 December
2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the eligibility for attending the AGM, which is to
be held on 24 May 2022, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from 19 May 2022 to 24 May 2022, both days inclusive,
during which no transfer of shares will be registered. All transfer
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17" Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 18
May 2022.

In order to determine the eligibility for receiving the final dividends,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from 31 May
2022 to 6 June 2022, both days inclusive, during which no transfer of
shares will be registered. All transfer of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17" Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on 30 May 2022.
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GLOBAL DEPLOYMENT
Production Bases

The Group’s production bases in China are located in Yuyao of
Zhejiang Province, Zhongshan of Guangdong Province, Shanghai and
Xinyang of Henan Province, respectively.

In order to promote its global production layout and satisfy the
demand of customers in overseas markets, the Group has established
new production bases in India and Vietnam, respectively. During the
year under review, the construction of phase one of the production
base in Vietnam had been basically completed and began to put into
production gradually, and the production base in India was also put
into normal production and operation as planned.

R&D Centers

In order to have a timely insight into the industry opportunities and
cater to the customers for rapid R&D, the Group has set up R&D
centers in China, the U.S.A. and South Korea to provide more
international technical support and reserves for the R&D of optical and
optical-related products.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had 24,664 full-time employees as at 31 December
2021. In line with the overall operation of the Company, the industry
level and the performance of individual employees, the Group has
established a fair and competitive salary and welfare system to recruit
new talents and to reward and retain existing talents, in which the
salary package including annual basic salary, year-end bonus and the
economic-value-added bonus, while the welfare package including
social insurance, housing provident fund, employee holidays and
emergency relief fund, thereby representing the Group’s efforts to
achieve the goals of “consistency in responsibilities and interests,
abilities and values, risks and returns, performance and income” in
remuneration distribution.

The Group has particularly adopted the restricted share award scheme
(“Restricted Share Award Scheme”) since 2010, with a view to
provide incentives and rewards to eligible participants to recognise
their contribution to the Group and to enhance their ownership spirits.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, 1,459,928 shares were
granted by the Group to eligible participants in accordance with the
Restricted Share Award Scheme.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021

1& & 357 B UK

W-ZZ-_—F+-_A=+—8 A&EEHEA
24,664 B 2EE - BRI AL - BB RE
BIRAEAS FEBCREAAGNERES
BER - RAITEKFEREENBARIE  EUAQ
FTREBZFNOHFHRENGE - HPhHHE
RBERES « FRERQEBEENES ZES -
BHEAEEELAERE  AE K  EER
H 2ENPHESS  RPAEEZHELE
BEHFMOBE LI EFEMNZE -3 - e HEE
BE—% - BEESR - - EEEKE B
BERZE -

REBE TS FREFRIERAMR 1% AR (5 52
EhErEl ([PREMERDEBE]) - ETEARYEAR
EEBERMNEGERSHAERREEMEE
HEETWNEASKER BE_ZE-_—F1+=
A=Z+—RIEFE - NEBIRER S MRS 52
Rt 8% 11,459,028 AR 1D T A E RS HEE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

AWARDS AND HONORS

During the year, the Group received numerous honors from customers,
industrial associations and institutions, local governments and the

capital market. These awards and honors were recorded as follows:

Sunny Zhejiang Optics was awarded the “Best Delivery Award” by ZTE
Corporation

Sunny Zhejiang Optics was awarded the “2021 Excellent Supplier
Award” by Wingtech Technology Co., Ltd.

Sunny Zhejiang Optics was awarded the “2021 Quality Management
Innovation Award of Zhejiang Provincial People’s Government”

Sunny Automotive Optech was awarded the “Excellence in Technology
Award” by Jiangsu New Vision Automotive Electronics Co., Ltd.

Sunny Automotive Optech was awarded the “Excellent Supplier
Award” by Bosch Group

Sunny Opotech was awarded the “Best Technological Innovation
Award” by ZTE Corporation

Sunny Optical Intelligence was awarded the “Co-Innovation Award” by
Beijing Roborock Technology Co., Ltd.

The Company’s Moody credit rating was raised from “Baa2” to “Baat”

The Company was awarded the “The Most Remarkable Investor
Relations Recognition (Hang Seng Index Category)” at “Quam IR
Awards 2020” for the third consecutive year

The Company was awarded the “Best Tech Constituent Stock” at the
selection event of “Hong Kong Outstanding Listed Enterprises Awards
2021
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OUTLOOK AND FUTURE STRATEGIES

Looking forward, it is foreseeable that the global economic recovery
might still face difficulties, and the international environment will
be intricate and complicated, hence the consumer demand will be
likely to remain weak. The development of relevant industries is not
optimistic and some enterprises will face huge pressures on the
operation. However, as digital economy and green economy gradually
become the main engines to the global economic growth, they will
bring new growth potentials and development opportunities to the
optoelectronic industry. The rapid development of autonomous driving
will promote the adoption of multi-sensor and huge market potentials
will be appeared in VR/AR, robotic vision and other emerging
industries. As such, short-term pressure also serves as the driving
force and the Group will remain confident on the future development.
It will continue to strengthen and expand the existing advantageous
businesses and constantly expand the market share. Meanwhile, it will
actively increase the investments in emerging businesses to take over
the “commanding height” of the industry. It will also further strengthen
technological innovation and improve operation and management to
achieve high quality and sustainable development.

1. Strengthen and expand the existing advantageous
businesses, further expand the market share

e Continue to advance the R&D and self-production of new
technologies and key components, strengthen the application
of new processes and new technologies in the manufacturing
of products and improve the first pass vyield rate, product
quality and the consistency of quality;

e Speed up the development and iteration of new-specification
and high-specification products, attract and guide customers’

demands; and

e Continue to lower the product cost and achieve rapid,
low-cost and high-quality delivery.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2. Continue to enhance investment in new
businesses and take over strategic control points
in the industry

e Enhance R&D investments in VR/AR, machine vision, LIDAR
and other fields and improve the integration and technical
content of products;

e Aim at globally leading customers and win pioneer advantages
in the markets to inject strong impetus into the sustainable
and rapid development of the Group; and

e Reinforce technological innovation, establish and improve the
mechanism of new business incubation and cultivation.

3. Improve refined management and devote to
continuously improving the quality of operation

e Deeply improve management systems, standardize
management processes and speed up the construction of
informatisation and the digital transformation of businesses;

e Continue to improve the quality of operation, realise distinct
division of duties and clear workflow under a common goal
and achieve efficient business operation; and

e Enhance risk management and promote the implementation of
normalized and intelligent risk management.

4. Strengthen the construction talent team

e Focus on attracting and retaining talents and advance
the construction of cadre teams with the succession of
intermediate and senior cadres as the driver.

Looking forward, the Group will actively leverage its leading
technological advantages, constantly improve the patent layout and
focus on product R&D and technological innovation continuously.
It will pay close attention to market changes and rapidly respond
to customers’ demands and further deepen the construction of
sustainable development capability to constantly enhance its
comprehensive competitiveness, provide more optical products
and services with high quality and high technical added value to
top high-tech enterprises in the world, advance the improvement of
corporate growth and value and continuously create more returns to
Shareholders.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESNGHREEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year of 2021, the Board consisted of seven Directors
comprising three executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors. The information on the
Directors is set forth below.

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Ye Liaoning (¥3&%), aged 56, is one of the founders of the
Group, and currently is an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board and the chairman of the Strategy and Development Committee
of the Company. He is responsible for formulating the Group’s
policies and making decisions. Mr. Ye joined Yuyao County Chengbei
Optical Instruments Factory in 1984 and became its deputy general
manager since 1995. Mr. Ye has obtained a qualification of senior
economist issued by the Personnel Bureau of Zhejiang in 2008. Senior
economist is a recognised qualification in the PRC and is generally
granted to a person who has passed necessary examinations and
has acquired substantial management experience. Mr. Ye obtained
a diploma from Zhejiang Radio & TV University in 1999. Mr. Ye has
been an executive Director since May 2007 and is currently a director
of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ye was awarded the title
of “Outstanding Entrepreneurs” (£t B ) and the title of “Zhejiang
Province Outstanding Builder of Socialism with Chinese characteristics
(Non-public Economic Person) (HITAIEREHLEEALTHRES
RESGEHEEHEEEERE) in the “40" Anniversary of Reform and
Opening, Entrepreneurs of Time (EREFR40EFeBF X ERE)" by the
Ningbo City Government in November 2018. Mr. Ye was awarded
“National May-First Labor Medal” (2Bl —% &)%) and acquired
the title of “Zhejiang Province Model Worker” (HTL%& 44 Eh#E#5) in
April 2019. Mr. Ye was awarded the title of “National Model Worker”
(EH 4 EHEED) in November 2020. Mr. Ye has senior professional
knowledge and experience in optical industry, as well as extensive
experience in financial management, company operations, capital
markets, risk management and strategic planning, and has years of
leadership experience in board committee.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Sun Yang (&), aged 49, currently is an executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is responsible for the
overall operation and management of the Group. Mr. Sun graduated
from Ningbo University in 1995 with a bachelor’s degree in economics.
He then obtained a master’'s degree in economics from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics in 2005. He joined the Group as
a chief officer of investment management centre in 2002. Mr. Sun has
obtained a qualification of senior economist issued by the Personnel
Bureau of Zhejiang in 2008 and has been awarded a qualification of
chief senior economist issued by Zhejiang Province Human Resources
and Social Security Department in December 2018. Currently, chief
senior economist is the highest economics professional and technical
title in the PRC, which is only granted to very few people who have
passed strict examinations and acquired substantial management
experience with major achievements. Mr. Sun has been an executive
Director since May 2009 and is currently a director of various
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Sun has senior professional knowledge
and experience in optical industry, as well as extensive experience
in financial management, company operations, capital markets, risk
management and strategic planning.

Mr. Wang Wenijie (£ 7R), aged 54, currently is an executive Director
and executive vice president of the Company. He is responsible for the
strategic planning and information management of the Group, as well
as the management of Sunny Research Institute. Mr. Wang graduated
from Zhejiang University with a bachelor’s degree in engineering in
1989 and joined the Group after his graduation. Mr. Wang obtained a
qualification of senior economist by the Personnel Bureau of Zhejiang
in 2008. Senior economist is a recognised qualification in the PRC
and is generally granted to a person who has passed necessary
examinations and has acquired substantial management experience.
He has been an executive Director since December 2013. He was
elected as the vice chairman of the Chinese Optical Society in 2017,
responsible for advancing the development of optical industry in China.
Mr. Wang has senior professional knowledge and experience in optical
industry, as well as extensive experience in financial management,
company operations, capital markets, risk management and strategic
planning.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESNGHREEE

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Wenjian (E X E2£),
Board, executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, is one of the

aged 74, former Chairman of the

founders of the Group, and currently is a non-executive Director and
the Honorary Chairman of the Board. Mr. Wang joined the Yuyao
County Chengbei Optical Instruments Factory in 1984 as factory
manager and became its general manager since 1994 when it was
transformed to a joint stock limited liability company. Mr. Wang
(BFBELER)

by Ningbo Entrepreneurs Association and Ningbo Enterprise Unite

obtained the title of “Outstanding Entrepreneur”

League in 2006 and was granted the “Ningbo Excellent Entrepreneur
Award” (B H 2K %) by the Personnel Office under Ningbo
Municipal Party Committee in 2015. Mr. Wang was awarded the title
of “Excellent Entrepreneurs (£ )" in the “40™ Anniversary of
Reform and Opening, Entrepreneurs of Time (EXEFIMA0E G T
)" by the Ningbo City Government in November 2018. Mr. Wang
acted as the Honorary President of Yuyao Charity Federation in 2003
and was appointed as a guest professor of the College of Information
Science and Engineering, Zhejiang University in 2005. He obtained a
qualification of senior economist by Ningbo Municipal Government in
1996. Senior economist is a recognised qualification in the PRC and is
generally granted to a person who has passed necessary examinations
and has acquired substantial management experience. Mr. Wang was
redesignated as a non-executive Director in March 2012. Mr. Wang
has senior professional knowledge and experience in optical industry,
as well as extensive experience in financial management, company
operations, risk management and strategic planning, and has years of
leadership experience in board committee.
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yuging (38R ), aged 74, is an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of Audit Committee. Mr. Zhang has worked
in MBCloud (Shenzhen) Information Technology Co., Ltd. (fRiRE
BICEIIE B MIBRAR) as finance-in-charge from May 2017 to
March 2020. Mr. Zhang worked in Shanghai Port Bureau as heads
of the financial division as well as the auditing division. He was also
appointed as a director of Shanghai Worldbest Industry Development
Co., Ltd. (EBERPEZERRHAERAF]) from 2001 to 2003 and
acted as its chief financial officer. Mr. Zhang worked in Shandong
Sito Bio-technology Co., Ltd. (LUEREBTLEDEERHDERRAF]) as
chief financial officer from 2014 to 2017. Mr. Zhang graduated from
Shanghai Maritime University in 1982 with a bachelor's degree in
economics and is a senior accountant and a non-practicing member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since May 2007.
Mr. Zhang has professional knowledge in optical industry, as well as
extensive experience in financial management, company operations,
capital market, risk management and strategic planning, and has years
of leadership experience in board committee.

Mr. Feng Hua Jun (J523), aged 58, is an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of Nomination Committee. Mr. Feng has
been teaching in the Zhejiang University since August 1986 and been
promoted to his current positions of professor and doctoral supervisor
in July 1998, mainly responsible for works involving teaching and
scientific research. Mr. Feng was the director for the Institute of
Optical Engineering, the director for the Institute of Optical Imaging
Engineering and the head of Department of Optoelectronic Information
Engineering of Zhejiang University. Mr. Feng obtained a bachelor’s
degree in July 1983 from Zhejiang University in optical instrument
engineering, and also obtained a master’'s degree in July 1986 in
optical instrument engineering from the same university. Mr. Feng has
been an independent non-executive Director of Hangzhou Everfine
Photo-E-Info Co., Ltd. (fTMEFHXEEERMDBRAF]) (stock code:
300306) since May 2016. He has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since April 2016. Mr. Feng has extremely
senior professional knowledge in optical industry, as well as extensive
experience in risk management and strategic planning, and has years
of leadership experience in board committee.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESNGHREEE

Mr. Shao Yang Dong (BfPE), aged 52, is an independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Shao currently is the managing partner of Yuantai Investment
Partners Evergreen Fund, L.P.. Mr. Shao was a director of each of
Sunny Zhejiang Optics and Sunny Instruments from May 2005 to
September 2010, Sunny Zhongshan Optics from October 2005 to
September 2010, Sunny Opotech from November 2005 to September
2010 and Sunny Infrared Optics from March 2006 to September
2010. Mr. Shao is a member of Environmental Defense Fund China
Advisory Board. Mr. Shao previously worked as a financial analyst
at the investment banking division of Salomon Brothers Inc.. Mr.
Shao obtained a bachelor's degree in economics in May 1993 from
Columbia University and earned a master’'s degree in business
administration in June 2000 from Stanford Graduate School of
Business. He has been an independent non-executive Director of
the Company since April 2016. Mr. Shao has senior professional
knowledge related to global smartphone and automobile industry
chains, as well as extensive experience in company strategy and
operations, financial and risk management, and capital market, and
has years of leadership experience in board committee.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dong Kewu (E#E), aged 53, is the Vice President of the
Company. He is responsible for human resource management of
the Group. Mr. Dong graduated from Xidian University in 1990 with
a bachelor’'s degree in computer and application and from Fudan
University in 2004 with a master’s degree in business administration.
Prior to joining the Group in February 2012, Mr. Dong worked as a
partner and consulting director in a renowned consulting firm. Mr.
Dong also obtained qualifications of economist and engineer issued by
the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC and the Planning Committee of
Shandong Province.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Ma Jianfeng (5321§), aged 49, is the Vice President and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Ma graduated from Xiamen
University in July 1995 with a bachelor’s degree in economics. Mr.
Ma is a certified public accountant of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and is a qualified senior accountant in the PRC.
Prior to joining the Group in December 2010, Mr. Ma served as a chief
financial officer for Ningbo Bird Co., Ltd. (B K ERHD AR A 7).

Mr. Zhang Guoxian (5K Bl &), aged 56, is the assistant of the President
of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from Yuyao Huancheng High
School in 1983 and joined the Group since his graduation. Mr. Zhang
attended the seminar of executive master of business administration
in Zhejiang University from July 2004 to July 2005 and obtained
the relevant completion certificate. Prior to being appointed as the
assistant of the President, Mr. Zhang held positions including deputy
general manager, executive deputy general manager and general
manager of Sunny Zhejiang Optics.

Ms. Wong Pui Ling (E1f}%), aged 40, is the Joint Company Secretary,
senior investor relations director, authorised representative and agent
of the Company. Ms. Wong is primarily responsible for company
secretarial matters and investor relations’ matters. Ms. Wong joined
the Group in July 2007. Ms. Wong has more than 10 years of
experience in financial reporting, accounting, auditing and investor
relations. Ms. Wong is a qualified accountant and is a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Wong holds a bachelor’s
degree in business administration from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong, a postgraduate diploma in finance and law from the University
of Hong Kong and certificate for module in risk management from
the University of Hong Kong School of Professional and Continuing
Education.

Mr. Wu Jun (21%&), aged 56, is a general manager of Sunny Zhejiang
Optics, Sunny Shanghai Optics and Sunny OmniLight Technology. He
is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny Zhejiang Optics,
Sunny Shanghai Optics and Sunny OmniLight Technology. Mr. Wu
graduated with a bachelor’s degree in optical instruments from
Shanghai Institute of Mechanism in 1986. He obtained a qualification
as a senior engineer by the Personnel Bureau of Zhejiang in 1999.
Prior to joining the Group in March 1997, Mr. Wu worked in Jiangxi
Optics Instrument General Factory (T 78 E &2 488) for 10 years as
research officer and chief of quality control.

EEREREEE

FHRIESLLE 495 - RARFEIERFREE L
AME - BEER-NANAFEAEERES
RE BEKESEELEM - FRESPEGE
SR BENEMEE  YATPENEE
BEREgd AT —TF T+ AMALRE
BAT - BEENERRERNBRAFERY
THHEES

REIBSEAE - 5658 0 BRAARBEBE - K
EER—NN=ZFRERBKRBPE - TR
BEBMAREER - RAER_ZTTNF A
EETRFEAMSNTHIRESRER
ABTAEREIHEN  WESHBEEEE
EZ o BERHER  REEAGERFIIN
BRIBKE  BHAIASE RBKIEERE -

BMZ L - 405% - BAQRBMEARWE -
BRENBERSRBE BERRERREA - *
ZEBERANESERIEEANBRSEY - BX
THRZZEZLFEAMAREE - EL TR
BER - g5t  REERREABREIE#EE T
LEEE - BULh—RAEKREE - AR
HAREHAMAEEERBEABSHARESE
B -BRIHRAEEPXRENIFEES
T8 - WEBBRBEIEGH B RERREX
B UREEBRBEZEBSERDNERRE
BETESE -

RIEFE 565 RETHIALBRERE
FEF LB B TR N BT RO R A A
BERTHIAS  #FLEBXENFFRER
BB BEEERER - RELER—NX
FRENLERMEB BB EERRELE
i e REEE —NANFRITE ARG
SRTIEMER - E—NANEFE=ZAMALRE
B REEN T BEFEREETIRE
MmEEETEETF -

T RBRE (RE) BRATF » 2021 F3H /51>



Directors and Senior Management

ESNGHREEE

Mr. Zhang Zhiping (&%), aged 53, is a general manager of Sunny
Zhongshan Optics. He is responsible for the daily administration of
Sunny Zhongshan Optics. Mr. Zhang graduated from Hunan Radio
and Television University in 1992. Prior to joining the Group in April
2006, Mr. Zhang acted as the deputy factory manager in Sintai Optical
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (EF=X2(FI)BR A 7).

Mr. Chen Huiguang (PR &
Infrared Optics. He is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny

), aged 58, is a general manager of Sunny
Infrared Optics. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in optical
instruments from Zhejiang University in 1983. He also obtained a
master’s degree in engineering from Zhejiang University in 1992. Prior
to joining the Group in January 1999, Mr. Chen worked in Xintian
Precision and Optical Instrument Company Limited (¥ X455 Yt & %22
A A]). In 2015, he was granted the title of “Elite of Ningbo City-Award
for Expert with Outstanding Contribution to Ningbo City” (F 5
H-EEMARHBERMESZK ) by Ningbo Municipal Party Committee,
and was appointed as an executive director of Chinese Society for
Optical Engineering. Mr. Chen was awarded the qualification for senior
engineer of professor level in 2016. At the same time, Mr. Chen was
entitled to the special government allowance of the State Council in
2016. Mr. Chen was obtained the title of “2013-2017 Yuyao Top 10
Technological Researchers” in December 2017.

Mr. Guo Jingchao (385 8), aged 59, is a general manager of Sunny
Xinyang Optics. He is responsible for the daily administration of
Sunny Xinyang Optics. Mr. Guo obtained a bachelor’s degree from
Changchun University of Science and Technology in 1986, and a
master’s degree in engineering management from Nanjing University
of Science and Technology in 2002. Prior to joining the Group in
February 2001, Mr. Guo worked in Henan Costar Group Co., Ltd. (7]
B EERARAR]). He served as a deputy general manager in
both Henan Costar Group Co., Ltd. (AmH X2LEBEEFRAF]) and
Nanyang Lida Optic-electronics Co., Ltd. (EB5FIZENXBER A F). In
1997, Mr. Guo obtained a qualification of senior engineer issued by
China North Industries Group Corporation.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Qiu Wenwei (E301&), aged 45, is a general manager of Sunny
Automotive Optech. He is responsible for the daily administration of
Sunny Automotive Optech. Mr. Qiu joined the Group in November
1997. He engaged in activities relating to R&D from 1997 to 2007 and
served as the head of R&D department in 2006. Mr. Qiu served as
the head of vehicle lens sets business in 2008 and was responsible
In 2012, he
served as the general manager of Sunny Automotive Optech. Mr. Qiu

for preparing for setting up vehicle lens sets business.

obtained a master’s degree in optical engineering from Changchun
University of Science and Technology in July 2014.

Ms. Wang Mingzhu (£ RA%K), aged 44, is a general manager of Sunny
Opotech. She is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny
Opotech. Ms. Wang obtained a master’'s degree in electronics and
communication engineering from Fudan University in 2007. She
joined the Group in April 2014 and held positions including the head
of product development department, associate director of R&D
centre and executive deputy general manager of Sunny Opotech.
She has been the general manager of Sunny Opotech since 2020.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Wang was engaged in the activities
relating to R&D and manufacturing of semiconductors and optics in
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation (A /5B £2 5%
BREEEAR A A]) and Konica Minolta (fi/E <32 4E). Ms. Wang was
selected into the Ningbo Leading and Top Talents Training Project in
2017. In 2018, Ms. Wang was granted the “Yuyao City Outstanding
Contribution Expert Award” (% A = H BEBIE R) and was awarded
the “Yuyao City May-First Women’s Commendation” (8t 71— 118
). In 2020, Ms. Wang was granted as the advanced personal in
the promotion action of “tackling for six challenges, climbing in three
(NEWE - =F#5) of Ningbo City. Ms. Wang has served
as the vice chairman of Ningbo Electronics Industry Association since
April 2020.

years”

Mr. Wang Zhongwei (£ 1), aged 43, is a general manager of Sunny
Optical Intelligence. He is responsible for the daily administration of
Sunny Optical Intelligence. Mr. Wang obtained a master’'s degree
in optical engineering from Changchun University of Science and
Technology in 2010. He joined the Group in September 2001. He
held positions including the head of marketing department, deputy
general manager and general manager of Sunny Opotech. Mr. Wang
was awarded the titles of “National Electronic Information Industry
(EEEFEEITE —FEAY) by China
Electronics Enterprises Association and “2016 Top 10 Yong Shang of
Ningbo City” (B 2016 +RKEZFE ) in 2016.
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EEREREEE

RXREE - 4558 0 REETEREECSHER -

BERTEAALBNEELEEEEK - X
FER—NANEF+—AMALRER - A%
—NMNEFE-_ZTTLFE-EREHEEH

I WRZETRNEARBHMHR - BhE
#_77A¢E$ﬁﬁﬁ$%%%§ BE
BBV RFEHHESE - AR T —ZFF
HTFEHHFNBRLE - BEER T —HF L
ARSEERFEEIREXSETEE 24

THIRZ LT @ 4455 REFHREBHRKIE - 8

BERTHAENHELEET %ﬁ% TR
TR FHIS %’EEK%E&%E@LFIEE@%E
T8 c AR T -HFEAMARER -
FRFLEEMAENDBE - ﬁﬁ?’*‘:‘:/bm”z-z«(
BREBRIERKEBERY YR _T_ZFF
BARFHEBHELE - EMAREER - TRt
DRERTCEEREKERRERR AR M
ERERENETFEB R K BHEBORERE
TEe FRTHRZE—tFANEEREFTMRN
KATEEIRER - —E—\F - T+
kM AREBERMER] - WERE AT
F—MEEEIHER —T_FTF Tut®
RYEREMEEIAAFRE  —F25 1785
EREA  TRTHRZZ-EFHARETER
BFITXHEEIER -

THESRE 435 ARFEENBHAKE
BERTFEREABNATCEEERSE - T4
ERZE—F Xﬁﬁﬁﬁlkﬁtﬂlﬁﬁ
TEA  cERZZZE—FALANALEE -
Eﬁ?”?&%%%ﬂ%ﬁ% . EIJi@m@w@m%%?

Ti% ﬁﬁ*ﬁ’]lea&%f ﬁ% ’.i.“?‘]}\%J
e I%ﬁér%ﬁWZOerﬁﬂ%%?éﬁj o

T RBRE (RE) BRATF » 2021 F3H /59



Directors and Senior Management

ESNGHREEE

Mr. Zhang Baozhong (3R B &), aged 53, is a general manager of Sunny
SmartlLead. He is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny
SmartLead. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in mechanical
manufacture technique and instrument in 1990 and a master’s degree
in business administration in 2013 from Zhejiang University. Mr. Zhang
joined the Group in September 1999 and was engaged in the activities
relating to R&D and administration for many years. He held positions
including executive deputy general manager of Sunny Opotech
and general manager of intelligent equipment business of Sunny
Instruments. In 2014, Mr. Zhang obtained a qualification of senior
engineer issued by Zhejiang Province Human Resources and Social
Security Department.

Mr. Lou Guojun (#ZEIE), aged 57, is a general manager of Sunny
Instruments. He is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny
Instruments. Mr. Lou obtained a diploma in business enterprise
operation management from Zhejiang Radio & TV University in
1999. Mr. Lou obtained a qualification of senior economist issued
by the Personnel Bureau of Zhejiang in 2008. Senior economist is
a recognised qualification in the PRC and is generally granted to a
person who has passed necessary examinations and has acquired
substantial management experience. Mr. Lou joined the Group in June
1984.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Directors are convinced that the management structures and
internal control procedures of the Group must have excellent corporate
governance elements so as to promote effective accountability and
deliver maximum benefits to the Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company complied
with all of the mandatory disclosure requirements and the code
provisions of and adopted most of the recommended best practices
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules governing the Listing
Securities on The Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Principles”) and the Company annually
reviews the application of the Principles. Corporate governance
structure and practices of the Company are summarised as follows.

THE BOARD
Board Functions

Being accountable to the Shareholders, the Board is responsible for
facilitating the further development of the Company’s business by
directing and guiding the business developments and operations in a
responsible and effective manner. Board members have a duty to act
in good faith, with due diligence and care and in the best interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

While the Company’s business operations are supervised by the
executive Directors and managed by the qualified members of the
management, the decisions which are to be taken by the Board
include:

1. Setting the Company’s missions and values;

2. Formulating strategic directions of the Company;

3. Reviewing and guiding corporate strategies;

4. Setting performance objectives and monitoring implementation
and corporate performance;

5. Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest between
the management and Board members;
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

6. Ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial 6. HRAN AT €T EY KB BRES N TE
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and those M BEEBUEZ  UAKBRIZEGEER
appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems for BRE LHERERER - MBEEERST
monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law; and ERRG K

il
]S

7. Performing the corporate governance function, being responsible 7. BB TXE AR  BEARRILE
for the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance MECR REBARFEHPEE GRS -
and reviewing the corporate governance report.

Board Composition BEESHEK

The Board should have a balance of skills and experience appropriate EE©/EFEREIT ALK ENRERES
for the business of the issuer to ensure that the changes to its WHEREEEKENEE NG ERTIHNENE
composition can be managed without undue disruption. The Company  SHE - "R FIRE - EESNHITHEIEHTT
is committed to the view that the Board should maintain a balanced B = (BEBYIIFHITES) ARELE © 1§
composition of executive and non-executive Directors (including REZ=E€HEEB LM UELBIEEHOH
independent non-executive Directors) so that the Board has a strong K - EE SR HZEHMAMK - B -
independence to make the independent and objective judgment. The

Board currently comprises seven Directors, including:

Name of Director

EEHAR

Executive Directors Hi1TEF

Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman of the Board =& * #)
Mr. Sun Yang (Chief Executive Officer 1T 42 %£k)
Bkt

Mr. Wang Wenijie

FXREE

Non-executive Director £ {TEE
Mr. Wang Wenijian
EXELLE

Independent non-executive Directors BV & 1TEE
Mr. Zhang Yuqing

RARELE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun

TSEE S E

Mr. Shao Yang Dong

ABIPER e
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Corporate Governance Report

Each of the Directors (including the non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors) has entered into a continuous
service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the date of appointment or re-appointment setting
out key terms and conditions of their appointment. The Company is
committed to the view that the independent non-executive Directors
should be of sufficient calibre and number to warrant that their views
are acknowledged. Biographical details of the independent non-
executive Directors are set out in the section “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report. The independent non-executive
Directors are in absence of any business or other relationships with the
Group which could interfere in any material manner with the exercise
of their independent judgment. The composition of the Board as at
the date of this annual report is set out in the section “Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report. None of the Directors has
any financial, business, family relationships or relationships in other
material aspects with each other. Each of independent non-executive
Directors has given a written confirmation to the Company confirming
that he has met the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
regarding the guidelines for the assessment of independence of
Directors respectively. The Company believes that the all independent
non-executive Directors have complied with the relevant guidelines as
stipulated in such rule and are still considered as independent.

There are three independent non-executive Directors in the Board,
all of whom possess adequate independence. Therefore, the Board
considers that the current structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of
business of the Group.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The Company has implemented a set of formal, prudent and
transparent procedures for the appointment of new Directors to
the Board. The Company has also put in place plans for orderly
succession of the Board. Subject to the provision under the Articles of
Association, every Director should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. The Board must explain the reasons
for the resignation, re-designation or removal of any Director.
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In view of the recent update of the Corporate Governance Code under
the Listing Rules, where all the independent non-executive directors of
an issuer have served more than nine years on the board, the issuer
should appoint a new independent non-executive director on the
board in three years.

Responsibilities of Directors

Every Director is aware that he should devote sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company.

The Directors are kept informed from time to time on the latest
development of any changes to the regulatory requirements and the
progress of compliance with applicable rules and regulations by the
Company. The Directors are also updated from time to time on the
latest business development and operation plans of the Company.

The functions of non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) include: (a) participating in board meetings
to bring an independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conduct; (b) taking the lead where potential conflicts

of interests arise; (c) serving on the Board committees, if invited;
and (d) scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring performance reporting.
Independent non-executive directors and other non-executive directors
are encouraged to make a positive contribution to the development of
the issuer’s strategy and policies through independent, constructive

and informed comments.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Continuous Professional Training

In compliance with code provision C.1.4 of Corporate Governance
Code, the Company arranges and provides fund for all the Directors
to participate in continuous professional development organised in
the form of in-house training, seminars or other appropriate courses
to keep them refresh of their knowledge, skill and understanding of
the Group and its business or to update their skills and knowledge
on the latest development or changes in the relevant statutes, the
Listing Rules and Corporate Governance Code and practices. Newly
appointed Director would receive an induction training covering the
statutory regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company.
Circulars or guidance notes are issued to Directors and senior
management by the Company, where appropriate, to ensure the
awareness of Corporate Governance Code and the recommended
best practices.

All Directors participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the year of 2021, all Directors received a total of over 180
hours of trainings, including internally-facilitated sessions as well as
external seminars/programmes on the topics relevant to their duties as
Directors.

To summarise, the Directors have received the below trainings to
enhance their skills and knowledge during the year:
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Mr. Ye Liaoning ERERE v
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Delegation to Management

Day-to-day operational management and administration functions
of the Group and implementation of the corporate strategies of
the Group are delegated to the management led by the executive
Directors. The management will report back to the Board and obtain
prior Board approval before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company. The Company reviews the
delegation arrangements periodically to ensure the arrangements
remain appropriate to the Company.

Regarding the Listing Rules’ requirements for Directors to obtain
a general understanding of an issuer’s business and to follow up
anything that comes to their attention, it is considered that the
current arrangements for keeping the Board informed timely of the
Company’s business performance through regular presentations and/
or reports by the management at Board meetings, providing Directors
with complete, sufficient and adequate information, and providing
the Board with timely reports on urgent key events at special Board
meetings are effective, and have satisfied the requirements under the
Listing Rules. A monthly management report, covering key business
issues and the financial performance of the Company, has been made
available to Directors on a monthly basis throughout the year. All
Directors can contact the management of the Company individually
and independently.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Ye Liaoning, being the chairman of the Board (the “the
Chairman”), is responsible for formulating the Group’s policies and
making decisions. Mr. Sun Yang, being the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”), is responsible for the
overall daily operation and management of the Group. This segregation
of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer aligns
with the requirement under the code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code.

To facilitate good corporate governance, the Company has
established the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer set out in writing. The responsibilities of the
Chairman are performed in accordance with the code provisions under
the Corporate Governance Code.
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THE ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS OF
THE BOARD

The Board has meetings regularly and the Board meetings are held
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly interval. During
the year, the Board convened nine meetings having considered the
business developments and the needs of the Company and all the
Directors have devoted sufficient time and attention to the Company’s
affairs. In addition, special meetings of the Board would be held when
necessary. Details of each of the Director’'s attendance record in full
meetings of the Board of Directors are as follows:

Name of Director

EEng

Mr. Wang Weniian (Honorary Chairman) — EX 254 (5283 /)
Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman) HEEESE (EE)

Mr. Sun Yang Bkt

Mr. Wang Wenjie FXRFEE

Mr. Zhang Yuging RARE LA

Mr. Feng Hua Jun RER LA

Mr. Shao Yang Dong BRPER S A&

Note: All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not

by an alternate.

Directors are consulted for matters to be included in the agenda
for regular Board meetings. Dates of regular Board meetings are
scheduled at least 14 days in advance to provide sufficient notices to
all Directors, ensuring that they are given an opportunity to attend. For
all other Board meetings, reasonable notices will be given. Minutes
of all Board meetings and meetings of committees are kept by the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”).
Drafts and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comments and record respectively, in both cases within a reasonable
time after the meetings.
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If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than a written resolution. Independent non-executive
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no material interest
in the transaction will be present at that Board meeting.

To facilitate good corporate practice, for regular board meetings, and
as far as practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying
board papers should be sent, in full, to all directors. These should be
sent in a timely manner and at least three days before the intended
date of a Board or Board committee meeting (or other agreed period).
All Directors have full and timely access to the management for any
information to enable them to make informed decisions at the Board
meetings.

Each Director is authorised to hire external consultants or experts
for independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses to
discharge the Director’s responsibilities. Save as disclosed in this
annual report, the Directors did not request for separate independent
professional advice during the reporting period.

During the year of 2021, as part of the commitment to best practices,
all Directors attended electronic correspondences in respect of certain
business development of the Group. Such arrangement ensured fast
and timely provision of information to Directors, to supplement the
formal Board meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established and delegated authorities and
responsibilities to four specific committees with written terms of
reference to assist the Board to perform its functions effectively,
namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Strategy and Development Committee. These Board
committees should report back to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations. To provide independent views and input to the
Board, the Board has adopted following arrangements: (i) each
committee or committee member is authorised to hire outside
consultants or experts for independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense to discharge their responsibilities; and (i) most
of the committee members in each Board committee are independent
non-executive Directors. The Board is responsible for reviewing the
implementation of such arrangements on an annual basis. The terms
of reference of each of the Board committees have been published on the
Group’s website (http://www.sunnyoptical.com) and the website of the
HKEXnews of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk)
for the Shareholders to review.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee and adopted
its written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee comprises
three members, namely Mr. Feng Hua Jun and Mr. Shao Yang Dong
(both are independent non-executive Directors) and Mr. Wang Wenjian
(non-executive Director). Mr. Feng Hua Jun is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The principal roles and functions performed by the Nomination
Committee during the year include:

a) Reviewing the structure, size, composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) and diversity of the Board and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

b) Identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorship according to the
stipulated nomination procedures;

c) Assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors according to the requirements under the Listing Rules;
and

d) Making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters related
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
plan for Directors, in particular the chairman and chief executive
officer.

The Company provided the Nomination Committee sufficient resources
to perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination Committee will
seek independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to
perform its duties.
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Meeting of the Nomination Committee is held at least once a year.
Two meetings were held in 2021. The attendance of each member at
Nomination Committee meetings is as follows:

Name of Director

EEHE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun (Chairman) REE LA (F/E)
Mr. Wang Wenjian FXELAE

Mr. Shao Yang Dong BMPER SEA

Note: All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not

by an alternate.
NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted the following policy for the nomination of
directors (the “Nomination Policy”).

Selection Criteria

In determining the suitability of a candidate, the Nomination Committee
and the Board shall consider the potential contributions a candidate
can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity. The Nomination Committee and
the Board shall consider the following selection criteria, which are not
meant to be exhaustive:

e the candidate’s personal ethics, reputation, character and
integrity;

e the candidate’s qualifications, skills, knowledge, business
judgment and experience that are relevant to the operations of the
Group;

e the diversity perspectives set out in the board diversity policy (the

“Board Diversity Policy”) of the Company (as amended from
time to time);
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e the candidate’s availability including time commitment to discharge
his or her responsibility as a Director, including being able to
devote sufficient time to attend Board meetings, participate in
induction, trainings and other Board and Company associated
activities (In the case of a candidate who will be nominated as
an independent non-executive Director will be holding his or her
seventh (or more) listed company directorship, the Nomination
Committee should consider the reasons given by the candidate
for being able to devote sufficient time to discharge his or her
responsibility as an independent non-executive Director);

e the candidate for the position of an independent non-executive
Director must comply with the independence criteria as prescribed
under the Listing Rules (as amended from time to time);

e the current size and composition of the Board, the needs of the
Board and the respective committees of the Company;

e the succession planning of members of the Board to ensure the
leadership continuity and smooth functioning of the Group; and

e any other factors that the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
may consider appropriate.

The Nomination Committee and the Board shall ensure that the
composition of the Board is in conformity with the laws of the Cayman
Islands, the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.

Nomination Procedures

The recruitment, identification, evaluation, recommendation,
nomination, selection and new appointment or re-appointment of
each proposed Director shall be assessed and considered by the
Nomination Committee and the Board against the Selection Criteria as
set out in this Nomination Policy.
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In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate to the
Board:

e the Nomination Committee may take such measures that it
considers appropriate in connection with its identification and
evaluation of candidates, including but not limited to considering
referrals from the Directors, Shareholders, management and
advisors of the Company;

e the Nomination Committee shall identify and ascertain the
character, qualification, knowledge and experience of the
candidate and undertake adequate due diligence in respect of
such candidate; and

e the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations by
submitting the candidate’s personal profile to the Board for its
consideration.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing member of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board
for its consideration and recommendation for the candidate to stand
for re-election at a general meeting.

For each proposed new appointment or re-appointment of a Director,
the Nomination Committee shall obtain all applicable declarations and
undertaking as required under the laws of the Cayman Islands and the
Listing Rules (as amended from time to time).

In the case of a nomination for the position of an independent
non-executive Director, the Nomination Committee shall ensure
that the concerned candidate meets the independence criteria as
prescribed under the Listing Rules.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to the
recommendation of candidates to stand for election (and re-election)

at a general meeting.

The ultimate responsibility for the selection and appointment of
Directors rests with the entire Board.
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Reviewing and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee will from time to time review the
Nomination Policy and monitor its implementation to ensure the
effectiveness and compliance with the regulatory requirements at the
relevant time and good corporate governance practice.

The Nomination Committee shall, when necessary, recommend
revisions to the Nomination Policy to the Board for its consideration
and approval.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, namely Mr. Shao Yang Dong, Mr. Feng Hua Jun and
Mr. Zhang Yuqing (all are independent non-executive Directors). Mr.
Shao Yang Dong is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal roles and functions performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year included:

(@) Making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management;

(b) Assessing the performance of the executive Directors;

(c) Approving the terms of Directors’ service contracts, determining
the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and
senior management and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of the non-executive Director;

(d) Reviewing and approving remuneration by reference to corporate
goals resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(e) Reviewing and approving the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management in connection with resignation
or termination of their positions or appointments.

The Board has provided sufficient resources to the Remuneration
Committee to perform its duties.
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The meeting of the Remuneration Committee is held at least once
a year and when required. Two meetings were held in 2021.
The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and approved the
remunerations and bonus payable to executive Directors and senior
management for the financial year. The chairman of the Remuneration
Committee has reported to the Board on the proceedings of the
meeting. Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments of 2021
are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. The
attendance of each member at Remuneration Committee meetings is
as follows:

Name of Director

EEpng

Mr. Shao Yang Dong (Chairman) BMPEREE ()
Mr. Feng Hua Jun BEEE

Mr. Zhang Yuging SRRBE

Note: All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not

by an alternate.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference. The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Zhang Yuqing, Mr. Feng Hua Jun and Mr. Shao Yang Dong (all
are independent non-executive Directors). Mr. Zhang Yuging is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. The Group’s audited final results for
the year ended 31 December 2021 were reviewed by all the members
of the Audit Committee.
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All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been addressed by the
management. The work done and findings of the Audit Committee
have been reported to the Board. During the year, the issues which
were brought to the attention of the management and the Board were
not material and therefore no discussion and disclosure are required in
this annual report. Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary. Drafts and final versions of minutes are
sent to all members of the Audit Committee for their comments and
record respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after the
meeting. Sufficient resources (including the advice of external auditor)
will be allocated to the Audit Committee to discharge its duties.

The principal roles and functions performed by the Audit Committee
include:

(a) Considering and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors,
and approving their remuneration, and addressing any question of

their resignation and dismissal,
(b) Reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the financial statements
of the Group together with the Company’s interim and annual

reports;

(c) Maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Group’s external
auditors;

(d) Reviewing the continuing connected transactions; and

(e) Overseeing the Group’s financial control and internal control.

The Board has provided the Audit Committee sufficient resources to
perform its duties.

The Audit
Committee has reviewed the annual report for the year ended 31

Three Audit Committee meetings were held in 2021.
December 2020, external auditor’s remuneration, internal control
system, risk management report and ESG report for the year ended
31 December 2020 and risk management and internal audit work
plan for the year ending 31 December 2021, and interim report for
the period ended 30 June 2021 at the relevant meetings and reached
unanimous consent to recommend the aforesaid be approved by the
Board. The chairman of the Audit Committee reported to the Board on
the proceedings of these meetings. The Board has not taken any view
that deviated from that of the Audit Committee.

TEERRE

EZZESRINEEEIRTERERE -
MEZZEEN ILERFAEERINESSY
HoFRN MEERERZEFSRILNSEME
BR - WBAERFRPImEEE Fix%
BEENERLHENHARATIWERE  MEE
kTR MR RE CQE%??:AEE%FﬁW%?‘%
EZZEERBNE  HhHHEREER RE
kA  BREZEGRALEZSER (BIE
HMNEZERIMER) REBTTHE -

BERZEEIRHIT I TIERBEERSE

EZRINEZBEZET - %H%&EE%Z$
H - Wit mESSRERS  EINE
% BN 2 FE - LA&J&%E@EEJ%%@E%E
rERCZER:

@

b) BHMERAEEPBHRRRARFHH
REEREZTEBM

(c) BEAKEINSAZBED BT EE R

) BEIBERESS R
(6) EEAEEE Y BATEEIE R NS -

ExgCnERZBERERRER  HERE
1THE -

—EC—F EREESHBT=ZAE g
P ERZEgREHBE_S_TF+_A
=T —RIEFEZFHR  IMNEREMME - X
HEZERR BE_T_ZEF+_A=+—H
IFFEZRRBERRE  ESGMEREZE_ZT
T+ A=t+—HLEFEZRAREERRA
HEZITIE SR E T —F A=+
HILMEz RS - WEK —BORE - BIE
HEEEFEHAEINEE - BEREZEGTFED
R ERBRETEFRAEESHELRE -EF
CHENEZEGEMIWESL

T RBRE (RE) BRATF » 2021 F3H /69>



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Furthermore, another two meetings were held on 4 March 2022 and
22 March 2022 to review, inter alia, the annual report and financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021,
the report from external auditor on the audit of the Group’s financial
statements, the continued non-exempt connected transactions,
the risk management report, internal control system review and the
re-appointment of external auditor.

The attendance of each member at Audit Committee meetings is as
follows:

Name of Director

EEgs

Mr. Zhang Yuging (Chairman) RRESRE(FE)
Mr. Feng Hua Jun BEEE

Mr. Shao Yang Dong BRPER S A

Note: All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not

by an alternate.

STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE

The Company’s Strategy and Development Committee comprises

five members, namely Mr. Ye Liaoning, Mr. Sun Yang and Mr.

Wang Wenjie (all are executive Directors), Mr. Wang Wenjian (a
non-executive Director) and Mr. Feng Hua Jun (an independent
non-executive Director). Mr. Ye Liaoning is the chairman of the
Strategy and Development Committee. The primary duty of the
Strategy and Development Committee is to advise the Board on the
Group’s strategy for business development and future prospects in
the international market for optical related products. It is intended
that members of this committee shall consist of local and international
experts in the optical industry and other related industries. 4 meetings
were held by the Strategy and Development Committee in 2021.
During the year, the Strategy and Development Committee handled
matters in relation to the development strategy of the Group and the

new development plan of the Group and their implementation.
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The attendance of each member at Strategy and Development
Committee meetings is as follows:

Name of Director

EEfE

Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman) BEELE (F/F)
Mr. Sun Yang Rkt

Mr. Wang Wenjie EXARELE

Mr. Wang Wenjian FXELRE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun IHEE S E

Note: All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not

by an alternate.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board adopted the terms of reference for the corporate
governance functions on 22 December 2011 in compliance with the
code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code which was
adopted on 1 April 2012. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the
corporate governance function, the Board (including independent non-
executive Directors) shall be responsible for developing, reviewing
and/or monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance
of the Company annually; carrying out training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; and
reviewing and monitoring compliance with policies and practices in
legal and regulatory requirements of the Company. The Board has
performed the above-mentioned corporate governance functions and
this corporate governance report has been reviewed by the Board in
discharge of its corporate governance functions.

TEERRE

Sk
s
i

EZEeKEHER
3 (1 N

REE R EREZEEE:

Strategy and Development Committee

No. of attendance (Note)/
No. of meetings
KERBEEES

HERB (M), SFRE

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4

M EFHRSHEREEE  MEFmRBEH
fE o

SEEABAE

%$§%_%**¢+*ﬂ*+*ﬁﬁm&%
ERee S E  NEBTHR =T —Z=FWMA
—H%mmiﬁamﬁmmﬁth%Az1
- RIBREECRERESE EFg (8
BEIFNTES)SFEESTE  BHRE
RERARNBTCEERNBRRERER  HES
MR ERERTEIIRBETERER UK
ARERARRAEETEANEERESE
MEEERERE ZEZQCEBITLAGEENR
et BRMBITOEEABECEHLAEE

N #EZ%: °©

m

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF » 2021 R /71>



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

DIVERSITY

Board Diversity

The Board has adopted the following Board Diversity Policy.
Background and Vision

People-oriented and diversity is one of the Company’s core value. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

Policy Statement

The Company believes that board diversity can enhance
decision-making capability and a diverse board is more effective in
dealing with organisational changes and less likely to suffer from
group thinking. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a wide range of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, business perspectives, skills, knowledge
and service term, and any other factors that the Board may consider
relevant and applicable from time to time. High emphasis is placed
on ensuring a balanced composition of skills and experience for the
Board members in order to provide a range of perspectives, insights
and challenges that enable the Board to discharge its duties and
responsibilities effectively, support good decision making in view of
the core business and strategy of the Group, and support succession

planning and development of the Board.
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The current Board’s composition under diversified perspectives is %7t EBHE FNOBRBEEESHEAMMROT ¢
summarized as below:

Name Ye Liaoning Sun Yang Wang Wenjie ~ Wang Wenjian ~ Zhang Yuging ~ Feng Hua Jun Shao Yang Dong
e 3764 s IXA Ixg FRE RER BIR

Gender Male Male Male Male Male Male Male

(:3:] 5 3 3 L 3 3 -

Age
£ 56 49 54 74 74 58 52

Skills/knowledge/
professional experience:

Financial management
BER v/ / / / / /

Operation management
BER / / / / / /

Capital market
-G / / / / /

Risk management
BRER / / / v/ v/ / /

Strategic planning
BmRE / / / / v/ / /

Board committee leadership
experience
ESZEeELR / / / / /

Optical industry and other
related industries

experience
RETEREMHEBTRER / / / / v/ / /
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Measurable Objectives

In view of the recent update of the Corporate Governance Code,
gender diversity at the Board level is strongly encouraged. To achieve
gender diversity, the Company plans to search for suitable candidates
in the coming future in accordance with the requirements under the
Listing Rules. Selection of candidates for newly appointed Directors or
the potential successors to the Board will be based on the Company’s
Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy. The ultimate
decision will be based on merits and contributions that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board, considering the benefits of diversity
on the Board and also the needs of the Board without focusing on
a single diversity aspect. The Board plans to appoint at least one
female Director on the Board by no later than 31 December 2024 in
accordance with the transitional requirement set out in Rule 13.92 of
the Listing Rules.

The Board would ensure that appropriate balance of board diversity
is achieved with reference to stakeholders’ expectation and
international and local recommended best practices. The Board also
aspires to having an appropriate proportion of Directors who have
direct experience in the Group’s core markets, with different ethnic
backgrounds, and reflecting the Group’s strategy.

Continuous Monitoring

The Board continues to review and assess on the Group’s diversity
profile including gender balance of the Directors, senior management
and employees, and its progress in achieving its diversity objectives
in accordance with the Listing Rules on annual basis. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions on the Board Diversity Policy that
may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
its consideration and approval.
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Workforce Diversity BI% ik

The Group aims to provide a diversified working environment to AEBHR IR AE T EEZ T ITIERE -
the workforce. The Board will continue to monitor and review the ZFEWEE EHRABEEEIRTETS
workforce diversity in accordance with the Listing Rules. Set out 7otk TXRBME T (BRESEBEEAR)NS
below is the table summarising the diversity ratio among the workforce — JTib LR

(including the senior management members).

Category Employee structure As at 31 December 2021
LYl ET&E R-B=-—-$+=-A=+—H
Number Proportion
AE o]
Gender Male 15,071 61.1%
3]l S
Female 9,593 38.9%
7
Age group <30 14,388 58.3%
FH R 30-39 8,464 34.3%
40-49 1,458 5.9%
>50 354 1.5%
Type of employees Formal employees 23,149 93.9%
EEmR FREE
Trainees 1,515 6.1%
EEE
Position Senior management members (Note 1) 627 2.5%
Bz =EERAS (M)
Middle management members (Note 2) 3,625 14.7%
HEEERAES (MiFF2)
Grass-roots employees (Note 3) 20,412 82.8%
AEB T (HE3)
Region Mainland China 24,131 97.8%
o [@ HREL At
Other regions 533 2.2%
Hh[E
Notes: BIsE -

(1) Senior management members include personnel with management title of (1) SEEEAEATIEBMERIEE LA FaiEE
deputy department head and above or with professional technical title of HitEREaRIRMEALMAE  Hdh - &
senior engineer and above; approximately 17.5% of senior management [BEIEANER LTI HIA) A17.5% °
members are female.

(2) Middle management members include personnel with the management tite  (2) FEEEAEAETEBMARENIEENE
of division manager and assistant of department head or with professional ¥RMERAIRMOAS -

technical title of engineer.

(3) Grass-roots employees include all personnel other than senior (3) HEEAEARSEETEAERTEEEABNY
management members or middle management members. FIEAE °
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Ma Jianfeng and Ms. Wong Pui Ling, the joint company secretaries
of the Company, are employed on a full time basis and have day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. They both have taken
not less than 15 hours of the relevant professional training for the
year ended 31 December 2021. Please refer to the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report for their
biographies.

Under the corporate governance measures adopted by the Company,
the Board is responsible for approving the selection, appointment or
dismissal of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary should
report to the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. All Directors
should have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure the Board procedures, and all applicable laws,
rules and regulations, are followed.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with
regard to securities transactions of the Directors, all Directors have
confirmed their compliance with the required standards set out in the
Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2021.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND RELATED
MATTERS

The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s approval of appointment
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (the “Deloitte”) as the Company’s
external auditors for 2021. Its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report of this
annual report on pages 129 to 134. Details of the amount of auditor’s
remuneration in 2021 are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Company has also paid fees amounting to
HKD4,000,000 to the auditor for audit service and review service as
a reporting accountant during the year. Besides these, Deloitte also
provided tax filing services and consulting services to the Company
and charged a service fee of approximately RMB761,068. Other than
as disclosed above, Deloitte did not provide any other services to the
Group.

Deloitte will retire and offer themselves for re-appointment at AGM
of the Company to be held on 24 May 2022. The re-appointment of
Deloitte as the external auditors of the Group has been recommended
by the Audit Committee and endorsed by the Board, subject to the
Shareholders’ approval in the forthcoming AGM.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to keep formal
accounting records and prepare the financial statements which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries, in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors have made judgments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis. To the best knowledge
of the Directors, the Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on Company’s ability to continue its business.

Management has provided such explanation and information to the
Board as it would enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial and other information during the Board’s approval.

The statement by the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s
report contained in this annual report.

The Board’s responsibility is to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extended to annual and interim reports,
other price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as
well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledge that the Board is responsible for monitoring
the Group’s internal control system on an on-going basis and
reviewing its effectiveness annually. The Board, the Group’s internal
audit department and the management review the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Audit
Committee reviews the findings and opinions of the Group’s internal
audit department and the management on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control system, and reports to the Board on such
reviews. In respect of the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board
considered the internal control system is adequate and effective. No
significant areas of concern which might affect the Shareholders were
identified.
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The internal audit department of the Group should ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
the Shareholders’ investment interests and the Group’s assets safety.
The main functions of the internal audit department are to audit
the operating efficiencies of each subsidiary of the Company, to
audit upon resignation of key management personnel, to assist the
Board in reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Group, to review internal control of business processes, to
audit the implementation of overall risk management, to promote
the construction of anti-malpractice and to audit individual projects
(such as compliance of related party transactions and audit report of
goods in transit). Evaluation of the Group’s internal controls covering
financial, operational compliance controls and risk management
functions will be conducted annually by the Board.

The internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledge that the Board is responsible for the
effectiveness of the risk management and has authorized the Audit
Committee to act as the professional committee to professionally
review the risk management reports submitted by the Management,
ensuring that the management has fulfilled its responsibilities to
establish effective risk management and internal control systems, and
review them annually. Systems and procedures have been established
by the Group to identify, assess, manage and monitor various risks
including strategy, financing, market, operation and compliance that
may have impacts on the Group and each major department. In
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board considered
that the risk management is adequate and effective.

The risk management of the Company is designed to manage rather
than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Company has built an enterprise risk management (“ERM”)
system with a view to enhancing the risk management and corporate
governance practice, and improving the effectiveness and efficiency of
internal control systems across the whole Group.
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The Group has organised and established a risk management
group (“‘Risk Management Group”) headed by the Chief Executive
Officer,
Group. All of the Group’s subsidiaries have also established their risk

responsible for daily management related to risks of the

management teams, responsible for risk management of their own. At
the same time, the Group has engaged a world-renowned consultant
institution as the risk management consultant to assist the Group
in building effective risk management overall framework so as to
ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
staff training programmes and relevant budget of the Group’s risk
management, internal audit and reporting function.

The Board believes that a heightened focus on risk and compliance is
beneficial for the ongoing development and growth of the Company
as well as its staff. In establishing the ERM system, all key functions of
the Company were carried out by the Risk Management Group of the
Group to undertake the following exercises:

1. Enterprise risk assessment — to identify and prioritise the Group’s
key business risks;

2. Enterprise risk response — to assess the related internal controls
and risk mitigating measures;

3. Risk management implementation monitoring — to review the
inspection report on implementation of risk management and
follow up with the response situation every month;

4. Build the library of key risk indicators — to recognise existing
risk monitoring indicators, monitor the running conditions of the
indicators and timely make risk warning;

5. Improve the risk checklist — to identify and build a risk checklist
which is suitable to the actual situation of the Company;

6. Risk management and multi-system integration — to integrate
risk management with strategic management, the International
Organization for Standardization (“ISO”) system, the Failure Mode
and Effect Analysis (“FEMA”) system and other systems;
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7. Risk management and business integration — to integrate risk
management into the normal operation of each business unit,
invest in personnel and resources and process optimization for
key risks, and concentrate resources on business activities with
relatively high risks;

8. Risk management is included in the performance evaluation of the
Company; and

9. Risk management digitalization construction — timely present risk
management dashboard of the Company.

Summary of Work in 2021

During the year, the Risk Management Group of the Group reported
to the Audit Committee on the annual risk assessment and internal
control reviews. Its work in 2021 included:

Self-assessment on risk management

e Organized risk management training and self-assessment
coaching for each business segment and department;

e Organized risk identification and assessment in each business
segment and department to dynamically identify the potential
risks that are faced by each business segment and department to
formulate specific contingency plan for key risks and generate risk
management self-assessment report; and

e Issued the risk management self-assessment report of the Group
and submitted to the Audit Committee for review.

Optimized and expanded the database of risk management

e Optimized the risk management checklist and unified the language
of risk management;

e Expanded the key risk indicators (“KRI”) identification work for
each business segment and department to attain overall coverage
of KRI for key risks; and

e Organized each business segment and department to establish

key risk register and traced historical risky events to formulate the
case experience database of risk management.
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Raised risk awareness and talent development

e Empowered personnel of every level with risk management
capabilities;

e Basically possessed capabilities of KRI construction and
optimization, risk management self-examination, internal
empowerment of risk management and dynamic management in
each business segment and department;

e Summarized the risk management experience, formed excellent
cases of risk management construction, shared the case
construction experience with external enterprises for many times
and received several awards from external institutes;

e Developed specialized courses of risk management; and

e Established a team of professional talents for risk management in
each business segment and department.

Risk management performance appraisal and digitalization construction

e Risk management was incorporated into the performance
appraisal of each business segment and department and two
performance appraisals were conducted in the middle of the year
and at the end of the year;

e The Risk Management Group formulated the risk management
appraisal standards and scoring rules; and

e FEach business segment and department conducted the
intelligentized construction of risk management to achieve online
and dynamic management.

Normalized risk management

e Reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management system, and reviewed significant risks and emerging
risks with department heads;

e Monitored the operating results of the KRI every month and gave
a timely warning on the indicator results;

e Monitored precautionary results of KRI every month, analyzed
abnormal causes, formulated improvement plans, and integrated
response plan management for daily risks;
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e Monitored the implementation of the risk response measures every
month and revised the response plan in a timely manner;

e Conducted internal control review of key business processes of
each business segment and department;

e Explored the integration of risk management with strategy,
excellent quality management, ISO system and FEMA system in
each business segment and department;

e Explored the nesting of risk management and business systems
of each business segment and department to form a risk
management system to support the business development;

e Centralized resources on business activities with relatively high
risks, invested in personnel and resources and optimized the
process for key risks in each business segment and department;

e The internal audit department independently reviewed the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management system construction and
submitted the review results and recommendations on improvement
to the Audit Committee;

e Collected the major risk events from each business segment and
department every month, traced the historical risky events and
formed a risk register;

e Risk management review meetings were held regularly by each
business segment and department; and

e The Group held the annual conclusion meeting of risk management
and initiated the self-assessment of risk management for 2022.

Risk Management Policy Framework

Effective risk management and internal control systems are critical
in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives. The Group has
established a risk management policy framework, which is approved
by the Board and the Audit Committee, and executed by the Risk
Management Group. It authorizes the Group to mandates a consistent
and effective approach applied across the Group to fully manage the
risks associated with strategies, financing, operations, market and
compliance.
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The following key processes are adopted under the Group’s ERM

framework:

To consolidate the framework and establish the model for the three
lines of defense of risk management according to The Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”):

The Board/ Audit Committee

Exg #RZEET
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The Board/ Audit Committee is the top
decision-making body of risk management
of the Company
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First line of defense: Operational department of each company and
functional departments of the Group

The first line of defense mainly conducts collection of initial
risk information and risk identification, proactively implements
risk response plans and participates in the construction of risk
management culture.

Second line of defense: Risk Management Group

The second line of defense is mainly responsible for coordinating the
planning, construction, maintenance and enhancement of the risk
management and internal control system.

Third line of defense: Internal audit department

The third line of defense is mainly responsible for examining, auditing
and monitoring the overall risk management works of the first line and
second line of defense.

According to the COSO Integrated Framework, the risk management
work follows the six steps of basic procedures as below:

6.Monitoring

B

5.Control

Activity
EHEE

FENBRE

4.Risk Response
[\ iz e
R\ B T
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Phase 1

Goal Setting

The Board establishes common risk assessment criteria and sets up
risk reference tables for the Group. Meanwhile, Risk Management
Group of the Group and Risk Management Group of each business
segment discuss and formulate overall risk management objectives,
management requirements and organization methods.

Phase 2

Risk Identification

Each business segment and department collects risk information
related to the Group and identifies the risks that potentially impact
the key processes of the operations. The Group also identifies
opportunities for improvement.

Phase 3

Risk Assessment

Each business segment and department uses uniform and quantitative
criteria to assess the identified risks along with their impacts on the
business and the possibility of their occurrence to determine the risk
level.

Phase 4

Risk Response

Each business segment and department determines the overall
response strategy and corresponding response plan for the assessed
risks as well as the implementation measures such as risk taking, risk
avoidance, risk transfer and risk reduction to deal with the risks.

Phase 5

Control Activity

Each business segment and department establishes or modifies
relevant systems and control activity procedures to ensure that
necessary risk responses and action plans are implemented and the
risk management response plan is executed,
manage potential risks.

in order to control and
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Phase 6

Monitoring

Each business segment and department continues to follow up the
operation situation of KRI, implementation and effectiveness of the risk
response plan, makes timely risk warning, adjusts response plan and
reports risks regularly to the relevant management within the Group.
The internal audit department independently reviews the adequacy
and effectiveness of the construction of risk management system
per annum, and submits the review results and recommendations on
improvement to the Audit Committee.

With this practical and effective framework, risk management has been
integrated into each functional department to resolve any possible
material internal control defects.

Group’s Risk Report

The Group faces various risks and uncertainties. The relevant key
risks are the risks that the Group must take in order to achieve its
strategic objectives. If they are not handled properly, it might bring
adverse impact to the operations of the Group. A comprehensive
risk assessment and risk mitigation measures help ensure possible
material internal control defects and key risks are properly managed
and effectively controlled, and ensure inside information is properly
handled and disseminated in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
followings are the principal potential risks that the Board has identified

for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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TEERRE

Group'’s principal risks Key controls and treatment plan(s) Target risk trend
AEEIZER TERHREEL R BRERER
Business and Business and Strategic Risks:
Strategic Risk
ERRERER XBRERER

- The uncertainty of changes in regulatory, political -  Proactively monitoring the industry trends, competitors
environment, trading environment, the development and innovative products;
trend of industries and other external envionment — EEERTEBT  BFHTRAFER:
in the region where the Group operates and
COVID-19 may result in significant adverse impact - Proactively monitoring and preparing for global and
to the Group’s international roadmap, business local changes in supervisory regulations that may
performance, market share and prospects for affect the Group;
development and/or the ability to implement its — BRERMEERYTEYEAEENLH R FEE
strategy. RoE

- FRESEMEMREE BARE BHRE 11
SURBEENFRFZCOTREERCOVID-19° - Enhancing supersaturated investment in emerging
MEEASENBEREE  £5RE  mHHE . strategic industries to quickly complete the strategy
BRARR/ AEROEHRIEATHTE - rollout;

- MAMEEREZERNRA  ARTHERER

- Increasing investments in new businesses and
cultivating new growth points;

- MAHEEEA  BEEMOERE '
- Dynamically updating the development strategies of

the Company and regularly adjusting the means and
methods of promoting strategic objectives according

to the situations;
- PEFHANFREEE  REFZTEABEEER
BEMAANFE

- Continuing to facilitate the construction of overseas
production bases and equity investment;
- RERRSHEEEHNBRRRZREE

- Continuing to identify cooperation risks between
customers and supply chain; and

- RERREP fEEAFRREN R

- Implementing corresponding projects of monitoring,
increasing strategic flexibility and specially reserving
resources for strategy.

- BiHEARER  ENERBEELRAERKEER -
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TEERRE

Group'’s principal risks Key controls and treatment plan(s)

Target risk trend
BERRED

FEEIERR FEEHRERLR
Operational Risk Safe Production Risks:
EERR RR2EERK

- Material accidents affecting safe production -
of equipment and facilities, property safety,
occupational disease hazards of employees and

enterprise’s continuous operations may occur as a —

result of the enterprise’s internal and other factors.

- RCENSEREMP T HBYERE  F
yiiﬁ MEZZ aIH%FﬁgM&%gﬁ%—
BEREMEARESHE
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Enhancing employees’ safe production training,
organizing safety training and drills irregularly,
enhancing employees’ safety awareness;
MﬁEIQEEFEW~KE%@ﬂiiﬁm&E%~
RFBIR2ER

Strengthening the daily monitoring and timely

maintenance of various equipment, and carrying out

safety and fool-proof transformation of equipment;

MERBRENAEERERERE - THRBENR
PhRME

Timely monitoring the operations of the KRI, carrying
out inspections on hidden hazards regularly,
controlling safe risks from their sources and thoroughly
remediating hidden safety hazards;
ERERKRIETER THARE2HS  #5R3E
ZrER  HR2EBETHERR:

Optimizing the integration of security management and
the Standard Operating Procedure (“SOP”) to adjust
operating procedure as appropriate;

1wyeeeﬁ¢$¢%er<mom> GRS

,,,,,

Optimizing emergent contingency plan system and
immediately activating the emergency response
procedures in case of black swan events; and
BrEZERNE WEERBEHVORDEZER
BF R

Participating in property insurance and purchasing
insurance for the employees

SNPERBRAEIBERR



Group'’s principal risks

AEEIEAR

Environmental Protection and Climate Change
Risks:
REREERGE AR :

- Due to changes in internal operations and the
overall external environment, there may be
discharges of waste that have a significant impact
on the environment, and inadequate efficiency in
energy consumption may also adversely affect the
Company's operating costs, reputation, markets,
legal and policy compliance. At the same time, the
Company may experience loss of assets and supply
chain disruptions due to the global climate change.

- ERBEERNMPERREEY  TRENBHERY
REBEAR @m%%% EREAMETED - 71

AREARNRRERA  BE T AERIES
ﬁﬁﬂﬁ ITM V8 o R EWzHﬁfmiv
AREAEBEEBA RMERTESER
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Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IREHREENR

Incorporating the environment, climate and energy
management and control into the long-term
development strategy of the Company, paying
continuous attention to, collecting issues related to the
environment and climate, and reporting to the Audit
Committee regularly;

FEE - Ak REEMALDARNERER &
BEI BERS ARER THRERZECE
g

Enhancing waste monitoring, disposal compliance and
discharge of waste;
MABRMERE - EENARREEFN

Increasing the consumption ratio of green energy,
developing and promoting suppliers to use green
energy;

RRGERRRALI B EDHERERZER
B

Increasing the energy consumption efficiency and
enhancing energy management and control capability
of each business segment and department; and
REEEXDPNBPRREARE  RIALRE T
IR

Securing a safe environment for employees.
BREIFZHERENRE -

BERAWME

Target risk trend
BERRED
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TEERRE

Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IREHREERR

Target risk trend
BRERER

Group'’s principal risks

FEETERR

Public Safety Emergency Risks:
REMR2BHER:

- Subject to external factors such as natural disasters
and pandemic, public safety emergencies may affect
the enterprise as a going concern. Prevalence of
COVID-19 may occur in India, Vietham and China,
and the instability of the pandemic may cause the
disruption of the Group’s busingsses.

- XOBERLE RBEREME REDAREF
Rk ey R 5NREEE - COVID-19EDE - ¥
ARAEATHEREERERR  RERRNTR
E - RS AR B R -
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Proactively monitoring the external development of

public safety emergencies;
REERREMARLEHIIERBY

Improving emergent contingency plans for public
safety emergencies;
TERENAZ2EMHERRR

Regularly organizing the emergency management team
of public safety emergencies and holding emergency
meetings;
THABREAAZISNESER ME  BHRES
HEzgE:

Implementing grid management and emergency
management work to all grid leaders, and carrying out
publicity and management to all employees;
BITARIER RESHERERIEREIRBR
R EEREEEEINEuEL:

Strengthening the management of public safety
emergencies of overseas subsidiaries; and

MREMHBLRRELALZENER R

Basing on the local national and governmental
pandemic prevention work arrangements, timely
adjusting the pandemic prevention work of the
Company and its subsidiaries.
BEEBEAXRERONGEIELS
RNBARMIELE -

BRBRALT

jesll]
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TEERRE

Group'’s principal risks

Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IREHREERR

Target risk trend

AEETERR BEERER

Human Resource Risks:

ADERER :

- The demand of the Group’s development cannot
be fulfilled if there is insufficient human resource
reserve, which thereby affects the Group's
production plan and operation. It might render
the Group’s products or production methods
uncompetitive;

- MEREEIR  BRASENERFLELERF
AAMRUFEREEE EE B RIT THER
FEENEQREERNEREREN

- Failure in the optimization of human resource
allocation and insufficient incentive mechanism may
lead to loss of talents, work stoppages and other
labour related issues, which may adversely affect the
Group’s operation; and

- MERAENEEETARBBENTE - A7
HEIBATRE  FIREMSIMNE HAEHE
MEZBKINTE Rk

- As overseas investment increases, the difference in
employment overseas and within China may lead to
risks in overseas employment.

- BEEMENEN  §HRIRENEEZEN
AERFEENEIAR -

Carrying out organization diagnosis regularly,
formulating talent plan that matches the Company’s
strategies to reserve talents in advance;
THRRAGIE  HEAARABBEROATR
8 REEEAT

Proactively promoting the production line automation;

BERELEREDL:

Carrying out talent evaluation and assessment
regularly, hiring and retaining talents with attractive
incentive program;
THYATETRERTE  WALBRS N0 KB
HERRBEANT

Re-formulating the remuneration strategy and
improving the remuneration incentive mechanism;

EXFITHMAR - TEFHARMN

Improving the entire life cycle management of cadre to
optimize the rank system;

rERDEREHEE BLBAEZ

Driving the transformation of human resource services
into a three-pillar model to bring more human
resources business partners (‘HRBP");
RPANER=XHEY REBTANEREBAE
#H (THRBP)) :

Carrying out multilevel talent development programs to
improve employees’ business standard;

REZEANATEEE RERTHEHKT :

Strengthening the construction of corporate culture
to enhance employees’ satisfaction and engagement;
and

MECEXCERTE  RABIREEENER Rk

Optimizing the systematized management mechanism
of overseas employment recruitment, remuneration
and personnel.

BILENAIRE  FHRASSEMICNERMAS -
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Group'’s principal risks

Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IREHREERR

Target risk trend

AEETERR BEERER

Supply Chain Management Risks:
HEEERRER

The supplies of some core raw materials, -
components, high-end equipment were limited. As

affected by energy shortage, COVID-19, international —

relations and fluctuations in exchange rates, the
Group was facing risks related to the supplies of raw -
materials and components, rising cost, which have

affected the delivery of products. -

BARORMH - TEM - SRREHEAR - Xi
REER - COVID-19 - ERBEREXRDYE K&
BeRRMH  TRIRE KA LES T AEER

B FEERRN - -
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Optimizing supplier management strategies to enhance
supply flexibility;
BHEBERRR REHEEREN

Expanding resource channels to explore supplier
resources;

BRERRE FAHERER

Strengthening its control over the use of materials to
improve the utilization rate of materials;

NEPHEREENE - RRVHHRER

Strengthening its cooperation with suppliers and
stockpiling in advance to safeguard the supply of
materials;

MERHEHAE - RABH  REDHEEE

Paying attention to and monitoring exchange rates,
market supply and demand relationship, tariff polices,
market prices of bulk raw materials, international
political dynamics in a timely manner and reducing
procurement cost;
REEITELER WHEFEE  BRIE KR
RMkaminEs  ARIagE - BERERE

Safeguarding full delivery life cycle by identifying
delivery risks at its source, confirming materials
in advance, planning production capacity and
coordinating overall resources; and
PEGRARNRE - RRBFAR AR - RAER
nE - REER  HERRERER R

Promoting the construction of digital and intelligent
plants and improving information board.
REABIRER TEEHER -



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Group'’s principal risks Key controls and treatment plan(s) Target risk trend

AEETERR IREHREERR BEERER

Product Quality Risks:
EREERK:

- The Company’s products may have product quality - Carrying out the quality first activities actively and
issues that affect customer satisfaction, damage the enhancing the awareness and capability of quality

Company’s image and increase cost of operations. among all employees of the Group;
- FMAARERHFAERESERE YERFPRE - AREABBERESZLNED RE2EmEER
[E - BRAVERBUEMEENE « Y

- Enhancing the ability to identify quality requirements of
customers and track customer satisfaction from time

to time;
- RASPZFPREERME N TTHBUEPRE
B

- Improving the control ability of production process
and the ability of quality management, applying
FEMA to identify potential quality risks in advance,
and improving the ability of trial production to mass
production;

- RREERRENEN  EEEREN  ERAFEMAR
AEnEEnERR  REFMESEY

- Optimizing the system for each phase of the entire life
cycle of product management and the SOP;
- REREGBHERERRREOMNERSOP:

- Enhancing on-site trainings for operators and the
operators shall strictly follow the SOP in processing;

- MERGREABEI - BIFERRZRSOPETM
I:

- Proactively promoting the production line automation
and enhancing investment in informatization of
inspection equipment; and

- BREELESEDL  MAGSILRARBRA : R

- Implementing and applying the informatization system,
realizing data tracking throughout the entire process.

- EREERESLAR EREHEHEEH

T RBRE (RE) BRATF » 2021 F3H @
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TEERRE

Group'’s principal risks Key controls and treatment plan(s) Target risk trend

AEETERR IRRHREERR BEERER

Information System and Information
Security Management Risks:

ERARARER2EEAR

- The operation of the Group is highly dependent - Establishing an information security management
on the informatization system. The system may be system, continuously improving the management
hacked or attacked or inadequate management of system of information system and continuously
trade secret information that may lead to the leakage enhancing the information security control measures;
of the Company's confidential information and affect — BUESEZ2EREE  BEXEESZHEEE -
the normal operation of the Company. A EEEER DRI :

- FEEERRERBESLEN  ZARARIHY
E g @ENREEEETEN - TAEKARRIE - Strengthening the physical security of enterprise
REEEE  YRANAITEE - data centres, developing information system/data

backup and information system disaster recovery
plans, standardizing personnel operations to ensure
continuity in the information system business;

- MECEBERONMERS  HTESRE/ UBE
REESZRAERENE  REARRE  BRES
F e sk i

- Continuously increasing the publicity of information
security and creating a cultural atmosphere
of information security, regularly checking the
implementation of information security strategies and
continuously optimizing the construction of information
security system; and

- BEMAGEZEEE BEEEZANIEE - THE
EEEREREHT THRIERREREARR &

- Strengthening protective measures on internal and
external network security and abilities to prevent
viruses. The Group has passed the 1SO27000
certification to ensure the information security and
business system security of the Company.

- MEANPBEZ 2 EERRRENEH N FRE
BREBIS0270002% - REALAEER2EEBER
g
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TEERRE

Group'’s principal risks

Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IREHREERR

Target risk trend

AEETERR BEERER

Overseas Investment Risks:

BHRERR -

- Differences in the politics, laws, technologies,
societies, cultures in international operations and
the impact of COVID-19 may result in low efficiency
in overseas investment management and failure in
investment to the Company.

- BERCESTIR AR BB ie WEEE
RCOVID-19M%/2 - Al @ ERARTGIMREE
BEETRREXE -

n

Foreign Exchange and Interest Rate Risks:

HERFIZER :

- International exchange rate fluctuations may result
in significant foreign currency losses. Significant
floating interest rate liabilities may result in higher
finance costs if current interest rates increase.

- BREXRYALEHEANEEE « WRITMEL
Tt RARFEMNRABTEHRENRAEN -

Consolidating the level of international operations;

FEARLEZRT

Continuously improving the construction of
systematization and standardization of overseas
investments in order to continuously lower the
overseas investment risks; and
BEYEBMREZG L RABLER -
RERR : &

RERESIN

Strengthening the analysis of international situations
and investment environment and warning management
in order to continuously improve abilities in overseas
investment management.
MﬁI%%Q&Téﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%E
MREERE

RERTE

Improving the foreign exchange management system,
formulating the foreign exchange management system,
and regularly paying attention to the trends of the
changes of foreign exchange;

TENEEREZ  HENEERHE THBIIE
2859

Maximising natural hedging position by setting up
offshore factories or currency pairings in sales and
procurement contracts; and
ERERNRBIHERREA NN EREY  RER
RERHAHR R

Implementing centralised management of foreign
exchange funds of onshore companies, coordinating
the foreign exchange funds of various subsidiaries to
implement centralised foreign exchange payments,
while operations such as conducting exchange rate
lock-in and purchasing financial instruments for foreign
exchange hedging to reduce exchange rate exposure
and lower the exchange rate risk.
EBRRRANERSRTER  REXMBLRAINE
B BITMNEERRRN  VETEXHT BESR
TEETEXERSRAENISERRO  BEEXE
Rk -

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF » 2021 R (;%>
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Group'’s principal risks

Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IREHREERR

Target risk trend

AEETERR BEERER

Market Competition Risks:
TERTAR

- The Group is operating in a highly competitive
industry, the uncertainty of the global trading
environment, the instability of the pandemic, the
changes in market demands and peers” conditions,
the sluggish growth of handset business, the
continuous expansion of the gap between supply
and demand, the failure of emerging businesses
to become a new development engine and the
intensified market competition might result in the risk
of lower earnings for the Company.

- FREFRERBFFERN  2REIRENHTHE
Tl RENRE  DERRARELRE LR
FREBERZ N HBZEREEA HEEEH
TR RTERSIE  THRFNE - AT W8
HelE TR -
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Expanding the layout of global industrial bases, such
as setting up overseas factories in India, Vietnam and
other places;

MR EFEMME - MEE - BEEHEE
%

Focusing on industrial and terminal development
trends in a timely manner, increasing spending
on the product R&D, strengthening scientific and
technological innovation and improving the R&D and
self-production capability of new technologies and key
components, laying out product lines in advance, and
enhancing product value in respond to the changes in
market demand at any time;
ERBITERERERBE  MAERHERAX
It - BACRIBRAIR - RAFERN - BRBHOHENS
BN RAGRERS RAEREE UBKEYH
mi5mReEL :

Refining advantageous businesses and continuously
improving market share and profitability;

WEEZEE  BERTTAEAZRENES

Improving refined management so as to further
improve operation quality;
RAEBRAR E-IHEERES

Keeping close eyes on the market dynamics,
continuously exploring new markets or new customers,
and maintaining good relationships with customers; and
TNRETHBE  BEREHMAINE,  TEY
PRERFNAEERE: R

Continuously tracing customers’ demands and
developing capacity plan to ensure product supply and
keep inventory within the safety standards.
THBREPES  HRERRE  IREERMRE
TREFEHERSRER -




Group'’s principal risks

ZEETERR

Customer Credit Risks:

EEERRR

- Failure to timely detect the changes in global trading
environment, the credit issues that customers may
face and customers’ credit changes in time may
lead to issues such as failure to collect payments for
goods and for stocked up goods.

- ARBERIZRESREEL  RPURERKER
FRREFEREAREXEREALDY RAB -
REENHERE -
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Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IREHREERR

Improving the credit management system, regularly
reviewing the credit assessment of customers, and
adjusting the credit limit;

TERPERERNE  YEHHE,PETERNIEL
BEEREE

Conducting risky customer screening management
when choosing new customers, and tightening
management on business terms and conditions for
high-risk customers in the early stage;
MEPERRENARTFHFEER BRARETFAE
ETABEEEIMEER ;

Implementing customer classification management;
EIRFHEER

Improving the precautionary mechanism of abnormal
customer credits;

BILEPERERBERS

Participating in account receivable insurance to reduce
bad debt losses; and

SMEMES R - BORRER R

Strengthening the supervision and management of risk

indicators, making early warnings on the trend in credit

changes and analysing the reasons for trend changes

MARRESEREEE - RABLEAZDED
IHBLEIRA -

BERAWME

Target risk trend
BRERER
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TEERRE

Group'’s principal risks

FEETERR

Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IREHREERR

Target risk trend
BRERER

Legal Risk
EERR

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has carried out HE-—"ZT—-—F+_-_H=+—
a review of, and the Board has received a confirmation from the

Risks of Laws and Regulations:

ERERER

- The uncertainty of international trading environment, -

or non-compliance with applicable laws, local
regulations and compliance responsibilities where
the Groups has legal entities, such as trade control,
anti-monapoly, anti-unfair competition, labour usage,
intellectual property rights, omit or untimely identify
domestic and international laws and regulations,
policies and other requirements and insufficient
implementation of the relevant policies, may cause
the Group to suffer from severe penalties or even
subject to legal proceedings, causing adverse impact
on the public image of the Group.

- ERESRENAREY A TETEREE BB
FERNETRANSREE NESEH RE
B RAEEHRT SBRI A3EES J4E
RINERER - BRREMERBHER - FRE -
RERFREE L B EnrSEEERER
i EEERERFD  UAEEARVEBRAMN

2

o
=

RS

7

Expanding internal audit team and legal team, and
also hiring external excellent lawyers, law firms and
compliance advisors for consultation in order to seek
legal advice and review the conditions for compliance;
BRABEREGLEREN  ARZEIDESE
- 2REBmReRER  UEHEEEE 5XF
BEEERRRASABR

Promulgating trade compliance system, and further
optimizing the compliance system of each business
segment and department and embedding it into the
implementation of business operation;
BHRESARHE  LE-FREXREXDBRIMA
REZ BARBETER:

Strengthening the management of all types of business
information of the Company, relying on informatization
for screening all types of messages;

MAARAREBREREE  KRERLHRERE

ETRE

Optimizing the intellectual property management
system and building an overseas intellectual property
litigation system to predict intellectual property risks in
advance;

BICAREREERZ EREIAZEEFDER
REBAAEEERR

Improving the whistleblowing platform and
strengthening the compliance publication; and
TEERTRUMEAREE R

Proactively monitoring and preparing for global and
local changes in regulations that may affect the Group,
S0 as to improve the mechanism of rapid response
and emergency handling.
BREENERENTEYEASEN2RRTHES
ROZS  TERRRENESRERS -

=

BILFE - A&
ECENAESeC R EREHASENE

management on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group. No significant matters of concern were

REREMARERARAERENER  BES
SUEZRFTNFZEFWINEESZE - A5H
R-E - —FURBEREAEEEREATE
T ELE B o

identified by the Board. The Group has not identified any emerging
risks that had significant impacts on the operations in 2021.
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Major Initiatives for 2022

In 2022, the Group’s main focuses will continue to be on:

(i)

(i

(i)

enhancing internal control and strategy management system
and monitoring the situations of the key risks in each business
segment and department in order to manage the strategic risks of
the Group;

further expanding the management and control intensity of KRI
by each business segment and department, and optimizing the
precautionary effects of KRI on business, and enhancing the risk
warning and improvement of the operation results;

dynamically identifying the risks that are faced by each business
segment and department, continuing to carry out in-depth
normalized management on risk management, and continuously

promoting the implementation of the risk response plans;

incorporating risk management into performance evaluation by
each business segment and department;

continuing to promote the integration of risk management and
businesses, and increasing the innovation of risk management by

each business segment and department;

optimizing an intelligent risk management system; and

i) continuously empowering the risk management to enhance the

awareness and sense of commitment in risk management of the
Group.

AN TR -2 NN
TEERHRE
R CFIXERE

RZZTZZF - NEBETESEGEENRT -
(i) DD%@;P\HW*% REEEIB RS EREA

l—‘tx%%“%ﬂuﬁ?%’]l oo AR
$’$IE’E€WHK

%ILJJ
sEIbiBITHE

(i) SFEDIAMELE—FBAKRIE
E o BEKRIBEREZLEUWR
REMRTEZENE

BB E D EBANERFT B R85 R T b B [ B
i%%é?&)\?ﬁ;&ﬂAﬁ FRLEERE K&
HEE B FE ST B0

(i)

(v) SEEDHMEFIKEREEMNAERE
*Z .

(v) SEEDIMBrIFEEER G ETRMZE
HEa - MARBREREF

vi) BlERBEELDELLES &

(vii) Ti,ﬁj"i‘ TREBEEEEE LIRS AEERY

EEMEB S LR -
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has set up the whistleblowing channels, and a dedicated
person from the internal audit department is delegated to be in charge
of each of the channels. The Group has formulated the Whistleblowing
Instructions and Rewards and Protection Measures (23R8 %1750
22E) - REHE)) to clarify the policies on whistleblowing rewards
and whistleblowing protection. The Company has established strict
confidentiality measures and procedures to keep the information of
the whistleblowers (especially the information related to personal
privacy) as well as the relevant information provided, confidential. The
Company will make every effort to protect the personal and property
safety of the whistleblowers, and take various protection measures
based on the whistleblowers’ opinions. For any violations of laws, the
Company will assist the whistleblowers to take legal actions for the
corresponding liabilities against the corresponding persons.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has adopted the Anti-Malpractice Policy (fZ£884|E )
to prevent and control various corruption and fraud incidents such
as commercial bribery, commercial benefit transmission and financial
embezzlement. For connected transactions, the Group has established
the Connected Transaction Policy KEEXZZHIE)), requiring
personnel in relevant positions to make declarations in relation to their
associates and/ or related persons. Among them, each personnel with
management title of deputy department head and above, and those
occupying key sensitive positions have to sign an Anti-Malpractice
Guarantee ((REEBRFEZE)). The employee occupying a key sensitive
position has also to sign an Integrity Guarantee (B2 EELE))
and a system involving regular rotation and integrity reports has been
implemented to strengthen the internal control. Suppliers shall also
sign the Undertaking for Operating with Integrity (FR{S&LEFHEE))
and make declarations in relation to their associates and/ or related
persons.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group deeply knows that enterprise is not an organization only for
maximising its own interests, but also an important driver to facilitate
wealth accumulation of the whole society, advance social civilisation
and promote the sustainable development of the environment. The
management of the Group pays high attention to corporate social
responsibilities. The management strictly monitors the development,
implementation and results of various departments of the Group, in
which the environmental, social and governance standards have been
integrated into their daily operating activities. Details are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report which will be published
before the end of May 2022.

CONTINUOUS DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATIONS REGARDING
PRICE SENSITIVE AND/OR
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has developed a system with established policies,
processes and procedures across all relevant segments and
departments for complying with the disclosure obligations regarding
price sensitive and/or inside information. The system continues to be
effective. The Company will continue to further enhance its effects
on the business operations, development of the Company and new
regulations and laws with great effort.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
for its Directors. The insurance covers the corresponding costs,
charges, expenses and liabilities for legal action against them arising
out of corporative activities.
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CHANGES OF THE CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no significant
changes in the Company’s Articles of Association. The latest version
of the Company’s Articles of Association is available on the websites
of the Group (http://www.sunnyoptical.com) and the HKEXnews of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk).

In view of the recent amendments to the Listing Rules (update
No. 134), the Company proposes a new resolution at AGM on 24
May 2022 to adopt the proposed amendments to the Articles of
Association and the proposed adoption of the amended and restated
Articles of Association. Please refer to the circular published by the
Company for more details.

SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND
EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION

The Company is committed to creating channels of communication
between the Directors, senior management and investors,
maintaining close contact with all the Shareholders through a variety
of channels and promoting the communication with investors. The
Chairman would ensure the appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication with the Shareholders and that their view
are communicated to the Board as a whole. The Company has
adopted an updated Shareholders’ communication policy on 28
December 2021 to formalise and facilitate an effective and healthy
communication between the Company and the Shareholders and
other stakeholders, which is available on the website of the Group
(http://www.sunnyoptical.com). The Company considers that
the Shareholders’ communication policy contributed an effective
communication between the Company and the Shareholders for the
year ended 31 December 2021. The main communication channels
with the Shareholders include:
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Investors’ Meetings

Investor presentations are held by the Group in respect of its
annual results and interim results. In addition, the Group’s senior
management and personnel from investor relations management
department hold meetings with investors. Investors are provided with
the latest information of the Group, in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. The Group keeps close contact with the investors.

During the year of 2021, given by the travel restrictions of COVID-19,
the Company held the virtual investor meetings in relation to
the publication of 2020 annual results and 2021 interim results.
Meanwhile, the Company attended numerous virtual investor meetings,
including an investor day, 35 non-deal roadshows and other types
of communication activities, so as to keep close contact with the
investors.

Annual General Meeting

The AGM is an important platform for the Shareholders to participate
in discussions, facilitating the communications between the
management of the Group and the Shareholders. The AGM is held
once a year, being publicly accessible to all the Shareholders. The
Group’s senior management answers any questions that Shareholders
have in the meeting and the external auditors and legal adviser attend
the AGM as well. The chairman of the general meeting would ensure
that an explanation is provided of the detailed procedures for conducting
a poll and answer any questions from Shareholders on voting by poll.
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The attendance of each Director at the AGM held in 2021 is as
follows:

Name of Director

Mr. Wang Wenijian (Honorary Chairman) EXELE (EEEE)
Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman) RERELLE (ZE)

Mr. Sun Yang ok A

Mr. Wang Wenijie FXAREE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun TBEE LA

Mr. Shao Yang Dong BRI S A

Mr. Zhang Yuging RAREEE

The meeting was attended by the Directors themselves, and not by an
alternate.

Apart from AGM, any one or more Shareholders of the Company
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. No EGM was held in 2021.

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Act (formerly
known as Companies Law) or the Articles of Association. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene
an EGM following the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.
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All matters proposed to the Shareholders for approval shall be
submitted in separate resolutions and resolved by way of poll at the
general meeting. The procedures of conducting a poll are explained
in details to the Shareholders by the Group prior to the voting, to
ensure the Shareholders are familiar with such arrangement. Poll
results will be published on the websites of HKEXnews of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Group
(http://www.sunnyoptical.com).

The Group has also maintained the procedures for nomination of
director by the Shareholders, which has been published on the
Group’s website (http://www.sunnyoptical.com), to ensure the
interests of Shareholders.

Annual Reports, Interim Reports, Announcements
and Circulars

The Group issues its annual reports and interim reports after publishing
the annual results and the interim results in March and August every year
respectively, so as to periodically review the development of the Group
as well as to update the Shareholders with its latest business information
and market trends. In addition, the Group explains to the Shareholders
through announcements regarding any major events or price-sensitive
information. For any matters requiring the approval of the Shareholders,
the Group holds an extraordinary general meeting according to the
requirements of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and issues a circular
prior to the specific date of the meeting, allowing the Shareholders
to have sufficient time to learn more about the matters for making
voting decisions. All annual reports, interim reports, announcements
and circulars are uploaded to the websites of HKEXnews of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Group
(http://www.sunnyoptical.com).
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The Group’s Website

The Group’s website (http://www.sunnyoptical.com) offers timely
access to the Group’s press releases and other business information.
Meanwhile, it provides shareholders with the electronic version of
the financial reports, the presentation materials for investors, as well
as the latest news about the Group’s businesses, announcements
and general information, etc. To make contributions to environmental
protection and maintain effective communication with Shareholders,
the Group encourages all shareholders to browse the Group’s
information on the website.

Investor Contact and Inquiries

The Group has a dedicated team to maintain contact with investors
and handle shareholders’ inquiries. Should you have any inquiries,
please contact the Group’s investor relations management department
(Tel:+86-574-6253 0875; +852-3568 7038; email: iroffice@sunnyoptical.com).

On behalf of the Board
Ye Liaoning
Chairman and Executive Director

22 March 2022
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The Directors are pleased to present the 2021 Annual Report,
including the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Review

Under the multiple pressures of COVID-19 still raging around
the world, rapidly changing market environment, fierce industry
competition and complex economic situations, the Group faced
various challenges and enhanced its overall competitiveness by further
strengthening R&D investment in technology and intensifying its efforts
on new businesses to seize the development opportunities in emerging
markets, and enhancing internal incentive mechanisms to continuously
attract excellent talents at all levels. As a result, the Group realized
solid growth in its overall results. The details of core businesses are
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this annual report. A discussion and analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using certain financial key performance
indicators are set out in the section headed “Financial Summary” of
this annual report.

Outlook and Future Strategies

Looking ahead to 2022, the Group will further enhance its market
share, strengthen and expand its existing advantageous businesses;
enhance its refined management and continue to improve the quality
of operation; enhance investment in new businesses and take over
strategic control points in the industry and strengthen the construction
of corporate culture and talent team.

Directors’ Report
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Major Financial and Business Performance Indicators

Major financial and business performance indicators of the Group
include revenue, gross profit margin, ratio of operating expenses,
profit for the year, return on equity, trade receivable turnover days,
trade payable turnover days,

ratio, etc. Details of the Group’s revenue, gross profit margin, ratio of

inventory turnover days and gearing

operating expenses, profit for the year, trade receivable turnover days,
trade payable turnover days, inventory turnover days and gearing ratio
are set out in the section “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report. Details of other major performance indicators are
discussed below.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s return on equity
decreased by approximately 5.2 percentage points to approximately
24.2% as compared to that of last year. The Group will aim at
continuing to increase the return on equity by increasing the profit
margins and earnings per share, etc.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group has formulated and adopted some policies in accordance
with environmental regulations, such as conducting environmental
impact assessment for various types of materials or machines prior
to making any purchasing decision during the stage of design and
R&D; enhancing awareness of environmental protection among
all employees by organising environmental protection activities,
training programmes and promotions; and leading a core role by top
management of the Group to establish a well-defined structure and
system for environmental management by outlining corresponding
responsibility, scope and policy.

During the daily operations, the Group has closely monitored the latest
development of domestic and international environmental protection
laws and regulations to ensure that the environmental policies are in
line with domestic and international standards, as well as the pace of
global peers.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with the
requirements of relevant laws and regulations. Any failure to comply
with such requirements may result in termination of the operation
permit. The Group has allocated systems and human resources
to ensure continuing compliance with rules and regulations and
sound working relationships with regulators through effective
communications. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
has complied with the Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”), the Companies Ordinance, the Restriction
of Hazardous Substances Directive (the “RoHS”) of the European
Union, the Regulation on Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and
Restriction of Chemicals (the “REACH”) of the European Union, the
Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Contract Law and
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China and other relevant
rules and regulations.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The main business activities of the Group include the production and
sale of optical related products. It is exposed to a variety of principal
risks including interest rate risk, foreign exchange rate fluctuation risk,
credit risk, cash flow interest rate risk and liquidity risk. Details of the
above principal risks and measures for risk reduction are set out in the
section “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s business and
profitability growth were affected by the fluctuations and uncertainties
of macroeconomic situations of mainland China and other countries
around the world. Discrepancies of the monetary policies among
major developed economies are expected to continue to affect the
capital and trade flows as well as the asset price of mainland China.
In addition, as the main business activities of the Group involve such
fields as smartphones, vehicle imaging and sensing systems, security
surveillance systems, AloT and optical instruments, they are also
subject to relevant market environments. The long-term business
and profitability growth of the Group are expected to be continuously
impacted by variables of the Chinese macro-economy (including
but not limited to consumer and asset price indices, credit demand
and total output value growth) and qualitative factors (such as the
development of political and economic policies of various countries in
the world).

Save as disclosed in this annual report, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, no important events affecting the Company that have
occurred during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Important Events after the End of 31 December 2021

Save as disclosed in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report, to the best knowledge of the Directors, no
important events affecting the Company that have occured after the
end of 31 December 2021.

Relationships with Major Stakeholders

The Group’s success also relies on the support of major stakeholders
including employees, customers, suppliers, regulators and Shareholders.

Employees

Employees are considered to be the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. The purpose of human resource management
of the Group is to reward and praise the staff with excellent
performances through the provision of generous remuneration
package, the implementation of the comprehensive performance
evaluation plan and the Restricted Share Award Scheme. Besides,
the Group formulates an appropriate training plan based on various
positions, duties and titles and provides certain opportunities and
platforms to assist the employees in developing and getting promoted
within the Group.

Customers

The major customers of the Group are handset terminal manufacturers,
handset camera module manufacturers, vehicle equipment integrators
and so on. The Group is committed to providing its customers with
superior products and services so as to strive for sustainable growth
in respect of revenue and profitability. The Group has adopted various
means to strengthen the communication with its customers, and
expanded different businesses to provide customers with superior
products and services so as to increase market shares and improve
market competitiveness.

Suppliers

Maintaining good relationship with the suppliers is essential to the
Group in respect of the supply chain and when facing business
challenges and regulatory requirements. It can achieve cost efficiency
and promote long-term commercial benefits. Major suppliers include
raw material suppliers, system and equipment suppliers, external
consultants providing professional services, suppliers of office supplies
or commodities and other business partners providing the Group with
value-added services.
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Regulators

The Company is subject to the regulation of the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Ministry
of Emergency Management of the PRC, State Administration for
Market Regulation and other relevant regulators. The Group expects
to ensure compliance with new rules and regulations as updated from
time to time.

Shareholders

The Group distributes certain dividends to the Shareholders in order
to reward their support after boosting its business development to
achieve the sustainable profit growth and taking into account the
capital adequacy level, the liquidity and the business expansion needs.

DIVIDENDS DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 135.

The Directors recommended the declaration of a final dividend of
approximately RMBO0.910 (equivalent to HKD1.118) per share payable
on 23 June 2022 to all persons registered as holders of shares on 30
May 2022.

In order to be qualified for receiving the dividend, the Register of
Members will be closed from 31 May 2022 to 6 June 2022, both
days inclusive. Shareholders should submit share certificates together
with transfer documents to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17" Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong at or before 4:30 p.m. on 30 May 2022.

In order to be qualified for attending the AGM to be held on 24 May
2022, the Register of Members will be closed from 19 May 2022 to
24 May 2022, both days inclusive. Shareholders should submit share
certificates together with transfer documents to the Company’s Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17" Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong at or before 4:30 p.m.
on 18 May 2022.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Details of the Group’s transactions with its major customers and
suppliers during the year are set out below:

In 2021,
approximately 20.4% of the Group’s total revenue as compared to
In 2021,
five largest customers accounted for approximately 61.1% (2020:

the revenue from the largest customer accounted for

approximately 26.5% of last year. revenue from the top

approximately 67.7%) of the Group’s total revenue.

In 2021, the purchases from the Group’s largest supplier accounted
for approximately 16.2% (2020: approximately 19.2%) and the
aggregate purchases attributable to the top five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 52.4% (2020: approximately 51.3%) of
the total purchases of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2021,
associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the

no Directors, their close

Directors own more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the
Company) have any interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers
or customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes during the year in the share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2021,
calculated under the Cayman Islands Companies Act (formerly known
as Companies Law) amounted to approximately RMB20,106.4 million
(2020: approximately RMB16,076.1 million).
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

DONATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made charitable
donations of RMB1,016,400.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ye Liaoning
Mr. Sun Yang
Mr. Wang Wenjie

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Wang Wenjian
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yuging
Mr. Feng Hua Jun
Mr. Shao Yang Dong

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, at least one-third of the Directors will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company. A circular containing the explanatory statement
on repurchase by the Company of its shares, the biographical details
of the director candidates and the notice of AGM will be sent to
Shareholders of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not terminable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory compensation.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from the date of
appointment or re-appointment.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES

BEBABAREANE

RZTE-Z—F+ZA=+—8 BREAQFE
(BEREEKRD)E352EFBENE LM
and debentures of the Company or of any associated corporations % @ iR IBIZESFREEMBHNE AR NE
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register BN EEZENTEITHAEHAARQASH
HAMMEEEZE (ERR(EFRARKL)E

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives in the shares, underlying shares

maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,

or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

=1

Name of
corporation

BT

Long/short
position
%,/ KA

mT -

Type of interest
R 28R

Number of
CHETES
REGHE

XVER) #) B tn ~ AEEAR D MBS AV m MOR R

Approximate
percentage of

shareholding
BERENEIL

Mr. Wang Wenjian The Company Long position Trustee and beneficiary of a 389,091,927 35.47%
TXERE ZIN/NE] we trust (Note 1)
EAXFEARTHA (1)
The Company Long position Beneficiary and founder of a 33,164,133 3.02%
ZIN/NE] we trust (Note 2)
EeEX@m ARBOLA (F5E2)
The Company Long position Beneficial owner (Note 3) 156,394 0.01%
AR e EnEAA (K5E3)
Mr. Ye Liaoning The Company Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 4) 389,091,927 35.47%
REELL AN/NG] e EEXmA (Mid)
The Company Long position Beneficial owner (Note 5) 2,285,715 0.21%
PN ) BREAA (K5E5)
Mr. Sun Yang The Company Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 6) 389,091,927 35.47%
S e PN ) SrEX @A (HiF6)
The Company Long position Beneficial owner (Note 7) 125,715 0.01%
PA/NG] ) BEREAA (K5E7)
Mr. Wang Wenijie The Company Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 8) 389,091,927 35.47%
ITNREE PN ) FEeEX @A (HiE8)
The Company Long position Beneficial owner (Note 9) 1,570,216 0.14%
ARA] e BEaEE A (H529)
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Notes:

M

Mr. Wang Wenijian is one of the two trustees (together with TMF Trust
(HK) Limited) and one of the beneficiaries of the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.84% of the beneficial
interest. The Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust is a trust on the entire
issued share capital of Sun Ji Limited (“Sun Ji”), which owns 100.00%
equity interest in Sun Xu Limited (“Sun Xu”), which in turn owns 35.47% of
the issued share capital of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenijian
is deemed to be interested in 389,091,927 shares held by Sun Xu under
the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is the beneficiary and founder of the Sun Guang Trust*.
The Sun Guang Trust* is the trust of the entire issued share capital of Sun
Guang Limited (“Sun Guang”), which owns 3.02% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenjian is deemed to be
interested in 33,164,133 shares held by Sun Guang under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is taken to be interested as a grantee of 156,394
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is a beneficiary of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 8.45% of the beneficial interest.
As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the
equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under
the SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn
owns 389,091,927 shares of the Company. Accordingly, as a controlling
shareholder, Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun
Xu owns under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Ye Liaoning is deemed to be
interested in 389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is taken to be interested as a grantee of 2,285,715 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Sun Yang is a beneficiary of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.60% of the beneficial interests.
As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the
equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under
the SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn
owns 389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder,
Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns
under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Sun Yang is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.
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Mr. Sun Yang is taken to be interested as a grantee of 125,715 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Wang Wenjie is a beneficiary of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 4.93% of the beneficial interests. As
a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the equity
interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under the
SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn owns
389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder, Sun
Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns under
the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenijie is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjie is taken to be interested as a grantee of 1,570,216
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

The Chinese translation of Sun Guang Trust (‘3& X {55E”) is for identification
purpose only.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives

had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares

or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as at 31 December 2021.
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 22 March 2010 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board has adopted the
Restricted Share Award Scheme. According to the Restricted Share
Award Scheme, the Directors, all employees, senior staff, agents
and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries are entitled
to participate in this scheme. The purpose of the Restricted Share
Award Scheme is to assist the Company in attracting new staff as well
as motivating and retaining its current talents. The scheme shall be
effective from the Adoption Date and shall continue in full force and
effect for a term of ten years and be managed by its administrative
committee and the trustee. On 16 March 2020, the Board resolved to
extend the Restricted Share Award Scheme period for ten years. As
a result, the Restricted Share Awards Scheme, which shall originally
terminate on 21 March 2020, shall now, unless terminated earlier by
a resolution of the Board, terminate on 21 March 2030. Details of
the Restricted Share Award Scheme are set out in Note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, details of movements of the
shares issued under the Restricted Share Award Scheme were as
follows:
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HE-Z-_—F+-A=Z+—HLEFE  BE
PR 1 14 A 1) SR BT B TR B B B 1B A
I

Number of shares (Note 2)
BRAEE (K 2)

Granted
during

Fair value

of each share
(Note 1)
shRHZ
AR (W 1)
HKD

BT

7 May 2010 1.64 - -

Date of grant

the period

RiLAM REARY

“2-3FEALA

14 March 2011 2.67 - -
By
18 August 2011 1.64 - -

“E—%/\At/H

Vested
during
the period

REANER

As at
during | 31 December
the period 2021
R=B=-f
1Azt~

Lapsed
Vesting period

RARER BRS

From 6 May 2014 to
6 May 2015
“E-MERASAZE
“Z-1ERASH
From 13 March 2014 to
13 March 2015
“Z-NF=fAt+=ZR%
“E-R¥=At=H
From 17 August 2014 to
17 August 2015
“E-mENATLAZ
“E-RE\ATLE
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Number of shares (Note 2)

RAHE (W 2)
Fair value Granted Vested Lapsed As at
of each share during during during | 31 December
Date of grant (Note 1) the period the period the period 2021 | Vesting period
shEfH2Z R=%=-%
REAH AAfE (1) RERRE RENER REAXY | T2ZA=t-F | BBH
HKD
B
14 March 2012 2.70 - - - - 18 March 2016
I “Z-%=R+=H
17 August 2012 3.08 - - - - From 16 August 2015 to
16 August 2017
“F--#N\ATtAR “Z-RENATREE
ZZ—+E\ATH
21 December 2012 512 - - - - 20 December 2016
ZE-CEfZAZTA ZE-R"ETZAZTH
9 March 2013 8.10 - - - - 8March 2017
—T-=%=AnA “T-t¥=A)\R
13 August 2013 8.69 - - - - From 12 August 2016 to
12 August 2017
“3-Z5\AT=A ZE-~"EN\ATZRZE
“Z—+E\ATZH
22 October 2013 7.79 - - - - 21 October 2017
“E-=ETAZTCA “FLETAZT-A
11 March 2014 719 - - - - 10 March 2018
“T-mE=A+-H —Z-N\E=ATH
15 August 2014 9.74 - - - - From 14 August 2017 to
14 August 2018
“Z-mENATHA “E-tF\ATHER
ZZ-N\E/\ATRA
21 October 2014 12.46 - - - - 20 October 2018
“F-mEHAT1-R —2-NFHA=1H
9 March 2015 14.30 - - - - 8March 2019
ZE-nE=ANA “Z-hE=ANR
26 May 2015 17.28 - - - - 25May 2017
ZE-RERACTA ZE—+ERACTRA
24 August 2015 12.26 - - - - 23 August 2019
“E-RFNAZTNA ZE-NENAZT=H
15 November 2015 17.76 - - - - From 14 November 2017 to
14 November 2018
“EB-REt-AThA E-tFT-ATOER
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Fair value
of each share

Date of grant (Note 1)
BRRf2
RABH N (W 1)
HKD
BT
15 April 2016 24.25
ZE-§NATHA
15 November 2016 37.45
ZE-rEt-ATHRA
18 April 2017 55.20
ZE-tEMATNR
30 June 2017 70.00
“E-t§RA=TH
15 November 2017 140.10

“E—+F+-A1EH

16 April 2018 156.00
“E-\ERATH

3 July 2018 144.30
“F-\§$tA=H

15 November 2018 75.85

“F-\Ft-ATERA

15 April 2019 100.90

“E-NERATRA

2 July 2019 88.20
“E-NEtAZH

15 November 2019 123.40
“F-hFt-AtER

15 May 2020 122.50

“2-ZFRATHA

51,648

521

961,728

208,171

the period

RARRH

Number of shares (Note 2)
RAHE (W 2)

Granted Vested
during during

the period

RANER

- (51,154)

- (689,001)

- (113,701)

- (131732)

- (404,078)
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Lapsed As at
during | 31 December
the period 2021
R-B=-F

RBA%EY [ T=A=t+-8

(494) -
- 501
(7,850) 264,787
(2,676) 91,794
(8,585) -
(24,954) 386,101

EEEHRE

Vesting period

BEA

14 April 2018
“Z-\FNATHA
From 14 November 2018 to

14 November 2019
ZE-\FT-ATHAZE

ZE-NET-ATEA
17 April 2019
ZE-NFNATLR
29 June 2020
ZECRERACTAR
From 14 April 2019 to

14 November 2020
ZE-NERATIER

ZECEFT-ATEA
15 April 2020
“Z-TENATHA
From 2 July 2020 to

2 July 2021
“TCTFLACZRE

ZZZ-£+AZH
From 14 April 2020 to

14 November 2020
ZZCTENATNAR

ZE-BE-A1MA
From 14 April 2021 to

14 April 2022
ZZ-ENATHAE

ZECCEMATIA
From 1 July 2021 to

1 July 2022
ZTC-FtA-BE

ZTCCFLA-R
14 November 2021
ZE--E+-A1MA
14 April 2022
ZECCEMATIA
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Number of shares (Note 2)

Lapsed As at
during | 31 December

the period 2021 | Vesting period
R-B=-F
REAXY | T2ZA=t-F | BBH

(4,193) 163,286 From 1 July 2022 to
1 July 2028
i St ol =
s
(31,891) 157,653 15 November 2022
i St g S il
(32,868) 852,111 14 April 2023
ZZZ-EmATMA
(2,308) 185,116 From 1 July 2023 to
1 July 2024
ZZZ-%+f-R%
“Z_mE+A-A
(2,735) 384,790 14 November 2023

RAHE (W 2)
Fair value Granted Vested
of each share during during
Date of grant (Note 1) the period the period
shEfH2Z
RABS AAfE (1) RERRE RENER
HKD
B
2 July 2020 126.80 255,785 - (88,306)
“TTELACH
16 November 2020 153.40 349,422 - (159,978)
ZEZEET-ATRA
15 April 2021 180.30 - 884,979 -
“E--§NATHA
2 July 2021 236.60 - 187,424 -
i Sablc o
15 November 2021 230.00 - 387,525 -
ZE--§T-ATHA

2-=6t-A10R

2,782,830 1,469,928 (1,638,040)

(118,554) 2,486,164

Notes:

(1) The fair value of the shares was calculated based on the closing price per
share on the date of grant.

(2) According to the Group’s internal policy, the shares which have been
granted to the employees (to be promoted later) but not yet vested, will
remain unvested during the promotion year and be carried forward to the
next year after promotion.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or any of their spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other corporation.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S SHARES

The Company is empowered by the applicable Cayman lIslands
Companies Act (formerly known as Companies Law) and the
Company’s Articles of the Association to repurchase its own shares
subject to certain restrictions and the Board may only exercise this
power on behalf of the Company subject to any applicable regulations
imposed from time to time by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. There
was no purchase, sale, redemption or writing-off by the Company,
with the exception of the trustee of the Restricted Share Award
Scheme, of the Company’s listed shares during the year ended 31
December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions” of this report below, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, to which the
Company, its holding company, its controlling shareholder, fellow
subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No management contract in force during the year for the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the Group’s
business subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DISCLOSURE OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITIES

As at 31 December 2021, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the following persons or institutions have beneficial interests or short
positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Sun Xu
)l
Sun Ji

PEES
Mr. Wang Wenijian
EXERE

TMF Trust (HK) Limited
ERERY (FE)
BRAA

Mr. Ye Liaoning

REBELL

Mr. Sun Yang
FomrgeE

Mr. Wang Wenijie
EXAREE

JPMorgan Chase & Co.

JPMorgan Chase & Co.

Long position/

short position/

lending pool
we/ %E/
AT AR £

Long position
e
Long position

e
Long position
e
Long position

e
Long position

e
Long position
S}

Long position
S}
Long position
iE
Long position
e
Long position
e
Long position
S}
Long position
E
Long position

R

Short position

293
Lending pool

AR D

Type of interest

R ER

Beneficial owner

EnlEaA

Interest in a controlled corporation
(Note 1)

Ry EE R (M)

Beneficial owner (Note 2)

BEanEA A (H5E2)

Beneficiary and founder of a trust
(Note 3)

EERm ARKIA (FE3)

Trustee and beneficiary of a trust
(Note 4)

BERERFEAFREHA (M5E4)

Trustee of a trust (Note 5)

EFEXEEA (M5E5)

Beneficial owner (Note 6)
EnEA A (FIiEe)
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 7)
it A (FFE7)

Beneficial owner (Note 8)

BEnEA A (H5E8)

Beneficiary of a trust (Note 9)

Bt mA (M9)

Beneficial owner (Note 10)

EnEA A (MFE10)

Beneficiary of a trust (Note 11)

ErERam A (ME11)

Interest of controlled corporation,
investment manager and person
having a security interest
in shares (Note 12)

MREEE R REKLBERER
IRt VR E R HIA (FiFE12)

Interest of controlled corporation
(Note 12)

REEE 2 #m (f5E12)

Approved lending agent (Note 12)

ZEBEREA (EE12)
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Number of
share

igrip 4=
389,091,927

389,091,927

156,394

33,164,133

389,091,927

389,091,927

2,285,715

389,091,927

125,715

389,091,927

1,570,216

389,091,927

65,733,422

3,682,553

21,774,299

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

FREBNED T

35.47%

35.47%

0.01%

3.02%

35.47%

35.47%

0.21%

35.47%

0.01%

35.47%

0.14%

35.47%

5.99%

0.32%

1.98%



Notes:

M

As Sun Ji owns more than one-third of the voting power of general
meetings of Sun Xu, Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in the 389,091,927
shares held by Sun Xu under the provisions of SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is taken to be interested as a grantee of 156,394
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is the beneficiary and founder of the Sun Guang Trust*.
The Sun Guang Trust* is the trust of the entire issued share capital of Sun
Guang, which owns 3.02% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenjian is deemed to be interested in 33,164,133
shares held by Sun Guang under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is one of the two trustees (together with TMF Trust
(HK) Limited) and one of the beneficiaries of the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.84% of the beneficial
interest. The Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust is a trust on the entire
issued share capital of Sun Ji, which owned 100.00% equity interest in
Sun Xu, which in turn owns 35.47% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenijian is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares held by Sun Xu under the SFO.

As TMF Trust (HK) Limited is one of the two trustees (together with Mr.
Wang Wenjian) of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust, TMF Trust
(HK) Limited is deemed to be interested in the 389,091,927 shares held by
Sun Xu under the provisions of SFO.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is taken to be interested as a grantee of 2,285,715 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is a beneficiary of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 8.45% of the beneficial interest. As
a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the equity
interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under the
SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn owns
389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder, Sun
Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns under
the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Ye Liaoning is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Sun Yang is taken to be interested as a grantee of 125,715 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.
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(9) Mr. Sun Yang is a beneficiary of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.60% of the beneficial interests.
As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the
equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under
the SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn
owns 389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder,
Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns
under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Sun Yang is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

(10) Mr. Wang Wenijie is taken to be interested as a grantee of 1,570,216
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

(11

Mr. Wang Wenjie is a beneficiary of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 4.93% of the beneficial interests. As
a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the equity
interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under the
SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn owns
389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder, Sun
Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns under
the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenjie is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

(12) JPMorgan Chase & Co., through various subsidiaries, is indirectly
interested in (a) 65,733,422 shares of the Company (long position), of
which (i) 5,429,368 shares (long position) were held in the capacity as
interest of controlled corporation; (i) 38,129,603 shares (long position)
were held in the capacity as investment manager; (i) 400,152 shares (long
position) were held in the capacity as person having a security interest in
shares; and (iv) 21,774,299 shares (long position) in the lending pool as
described in the SFO in the capacity as approved lending agent; and (b)
3,582,553 shares of the Company (short position) held in the capacity
as interest of controlled corporation. Among them include (i) physically
settled listed derivatives in respect of 101,000 underlying shares (long
position) and 275,000 underlying shares (short position); (i) cash settled
listed derivatives in respect of 53,900 underlying shares (long position) and
32,700 underlying shares (short position); (iii) physically settled unlisted
derivatives in respect of 726,471 underlying shares (short position); and (iv)
cash settled unlisted derivatives in respect of 2,776,800 underlying shares
(long position) and 414,772 underlying shares (short position).

*  The Chinese translation of Sun Guang Trust (“3#%{55E") is for identification
purpose only.
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Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of any
other person who had an interest or a short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to equity
derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December
2021.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent
persons.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has established connected transaction policy to
strengthen internal control, protect the legitimate interests of the
Shareholders and improve the corporate governance structure. This
policy has defined the scopes of connected parties and connected
transactions in accordance with the Listing Rules. It also requires
the Company to disclose the related information of connected
transactions, conduct the annual audit of continuing connected
transactions and follow the principles of the connected transactions

decision-making and abstaining rules.

The Audit Committee shall, in accordance with its roles and functions,
review whether the arrangements for connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions are fair and reasonable. The Audit
Committee judges whether the connected transaction is beneficial to
the Company according to objective criteria, and if necessary, it will
hire professional appraisers or independent financial advisers to give
or provide advice. A director who has any interest in the connected
parties shall abstain when the Board votes on the matter. If necessary,
an independent board committee shall be established to evaluate and
approve the conflict transactions, and the members of the committee
shall not have any independent non-executive Director who has
significant interests in the relevant transactions or arrangements.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company review the
Group’s continuing connected transactions every year and confirm
that such transactions meet the following requirements: 1. concluded
in the Group’s daily businesses; 2. conducted in accordance with
normal or better commercial terms; and 3. conducted in accordance
with the agreement on relevant transactions, with fair and reasonable
terms and in line with the overall interests of Shareholders of the
Company. The Company has also hired an external auditor to review
the Group’s continuing connected transactions. As disclosed under
Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements, none of the related
party transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended
31 December 2021 constituted a connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction under the Listing Rules. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the Company has not entered into any connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction.

INTERESTS IN COMPETITORS

No Director or chief executive of the Company holds any interests in
entities which compete with the Group in any aspects of its business.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group’s emolument policy is designed to attract, retain and
motivate talented individuals to contribute to the success of its
business. The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
formulated and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee on the basis
of their merits, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regards to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme
under rules and regulations of MPF Schemes Ordinance for all its
employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ salaries and are charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF scheme. The assets of
the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF scheme.
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable
in the future years as at 31 December 2021.
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The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with the
applicable regulations of the PRC, participate in a state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the local government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific percentage of their
payroll costs to the retirement benefits scheme. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make
the specified contributions.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total amounts contributed
by the Group to the schemes and costs charged to the consolidated
income statement represent contribution payable to the schemes by
the Group at designated rates according to the rules of the schemes.

Details of the retirement benefit scheme operated by the Group are
set out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within knowledge of its Directors at the latest practicable date prior
to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be proposed at the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte as
auditors of the Company. There was no change in the auditor of the
Company in any of the preceding three years.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur
or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective
offices or trusts, except such as they shall incur or sustain through
their own fraud or dishonesty.

By order of the Board of Directors
Ye Liaoning

Chairman and Executive Director

China
22 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUNNY OPTICAL TECHNOLOGY (GROUP) COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sunny
Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
135 to 306, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

HRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREMMEEEREREE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables & 5 & Uz kI8 ) e (B 515

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial position
and the involvement of subjective judgement and
management estimates in evaluating the expected credit
loss (“ECL”) of the Group’s trade receivables at the end
of the reporting period.
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(REEEBE KPR TBHBMERE MG O&R
H K E 5 RUGRARNBER EHE R RARETFER -

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net trade
receivables amounted to RMB5,634,652,000, which
represented approximately 14.5% of total assets of the
Group. Details of trade receivables are set out in Note 25
to the consolidated financial statements.
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As disclosed in Note 36(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables based on
provision matrix through grouping of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and forward-looking information. In
addition, trade receivables that are credit impaired are
assessed for ECL individually.
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:

BV E 5 RUGRIANE EFEERERD T

e Understanding the internal controls related to
providing allowance under ECL model;

s BRERHEEEBREATHBYERBMNREIET

e Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables ageing analysis as at 31
December 2021, on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in the analysis with supporting
documents;
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e Challenging management’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables as at 31 December 2021, including their
identification of credit impaired trade receivables, the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of the
remaining trade debtors into different categories in
the provision matrix, and the basis of estimated loss
rates applied in each category in the provision matrix
(with reference to historical default rates and forward-
looking information); and
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e FEvaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables in Notes 25 and
36(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Other Information

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 A% B ED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 A% B ED

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Jacky Wong Suk Hung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ReEskAMEZEKRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

2021 2020
—B--F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Revenue BA 5,6 37,496,852 38,001,765
Cost of sales $H& KA (28,760,659) (29,303,890)
Gross profit EF| 8,736,193 8,697,875
Other income EH iz 7(a) 689,949 510,390
Other gains and losses £ Uiz & E518 7(b) 99,065 187,257
Impairment losses under expected credit loss model, net of reversal
RREAEEEREXGENRHEESE - MKRED (5,182) 12,218
Selling and distribution expenses $H& &7 5 X (274,105) (313,478)
Research and development expenditure Aff 2% 32 (2,642,196) (2,499,090)
Administrative expenses 1T EF 3% (757,592) (718,568)
Share of results of associates 7155 & 2 7 245 18 19,007 20
Finance costs gl & A 8 (230,252) (233,740)
Profit before tax 7t Al £l 5,634,887 5,642,884
Income tax expense FT1SHif X 9 (578,972) (702,630)
Profit for the year &R & 10 5,055,915 4,940,254

Other comprehensive income (expense) Hth 2 E Wz (B x7)
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
TEETHEZ R ER -
Fair value gain on investments in equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI”), net of income tax
BAREGFARMPENS ([RAREFAEBEEEE]) 6
RETARBNAAERE - HERAEHR 2,808 18,977

ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or l0ss:
RGBT DL B ER -
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations

BEGINETSFTE £ HME X =58 (4,271) (41,606)
Other comprehensive expense for the year £RE b 2 HEE % (1,463) (22,629)
Total comprehensive income for the year £ A2 H 45 5,054,452 4,917,625
Profit for the year attributable to: 15 F A A :

Owners of the Company 72 7] i% 4,988,007 4,871,793

Non-controlling interests JEZ& % iz 67,908 68,461

5,055,915 4,940,254

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to: fE{L & R4 EINZEA5
Owners of the Company X2 &% &R 4,987,488 4,849,009
Non-controlling interests FFiERkiEZ 66,964 68,616
5,054,452 4,917,625
Earnings per share — Basic (RMB cents) &R Z&F| — =X (ARED) 12 456.52 445,78
- Diluted (RMB cents) —BE(ARED) 12 455.93 44514

RTRERE (RE) R AT « 2021 F3H :,4135



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRIR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 R=ZF——4F+_H=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS kARE&E

31/12/2021

RMB’000
ARBT T

31/12/2020
—E-FF

+=HA=+—8

RMB’000
ARETTT

Property, plant and equipment ¥ % - #23 &% & 14 8,303,229 7,513,193
Right-of-use assets ff & & 15 504,684 480,005
Investment properties & #12 16 40,380 40,907
Intangible assets & & &= 17 306,926 363,137
Interests in associates FBf 4 A B ERS 18 201,641 1,953
Deferred tax assets BRI IH & = 19 255,651 207,332
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
UIEYE - MERREE TR E 20 471,595 359,086
Equity instruments at FVTOCI {2 A R Bt AR 2 E W maEm TH 21 178,762 134,609
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
BEARBEFABR([RAAEFABRE D WemEE 23 19,518 206,236
Time deposits & Hi7F 26 500,000 500,000
Goodwill B2 2,119 2,119
10,784,505 9,808,577
CURRENT ASSETS REIEE
Inventories 17 & 24 5,481,858 5,783,071
Trade and other receivables and prepayment
B 5 K& H b fE W IR KR TR FRIE 25 7,448,385 8,212,025
Derivative financial assets $T4£ & R E & 27 27,237 21,307
Financial assets at FVTPL I AR BT ABTZMEmME E 23 8,314,143 8,480,186
Debt instruments at amortised cost Z# K ANt S HEE T A 22 - 52,823
Amount due from a related party fEU—% & A LFIA 41(c) 327 -
Pledged bank deposits & 1R 1T1E 26 18,292 3,438
Short term fixed deposits %8 Hi7F Hi7F 3¢ 26 1,093,914 234,917
Bank balances and cash $R1745 88 MR & 26 5,605,179 2,841,771
27,989,335 25,629,538
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 R=ZF——4F+_H=+—H

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E-FTF

+=HA=+—8

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT

CURRENT LIABILITIES #RE& &

Trade and other payables & 5 K i & {51 8 28 9,868,687 10,733,364
Amounts due to related parties fE{~EdiE A T 7B 41(c) 6,934 6,996
Derivative financial liabilities $74& gt & (& 27 40,446 101,888
Contract liabilities & 48 & 29 178,101 131,191
Tax payable B 718 188,022 314,804
Bank borrowings — current portion $R17f5 & — ENEAEE - 30 1,538,897 2,070,611
Lease liabilities — current portion A& & (& — BNEAEE 31 46,271 43,580
Deferred income — current portion &I A — BIEFEE S 32 6,099 8,695

11,873,457 13,411,129

NET CURRENT ASSETS M & EE& 16,115,878 12,218,409
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES A& ERAEBEE 26,900,383 22,026,986
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥ G 8&E
Deferred tax liabilities #EIEFLTE & & 19 1,015,890 888,809
Derivative financial liabilities $T4 4 &l 8 & 27 5,057 4,782
Long term payables & /&~ FA 28 172,044 245,636
Bank borrowings — non-current portion $R1T{&E — JEENEAER S 30 700,000 -
Lease liabilities — non-current portion T & & & — JERNEIEE 31 107,999 96,899
Deferred income — non-current portion #EIEUW A — FEENHAEE S 32 188,504 68,855
Bonds payable fE{T &% 33 3,815,623 3,895,888
6,005,117 5,200,869
NET ASSETS ¥&E #H 20,895,266 16,826,117
CAPITAL AND RESERVES RZA K &
Share capital J&A~ 34 105,163 105,163
Reserves & 20,482,909 16,492,061
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 72 &) A% 58 B (5 #E 25 20,588,072 16,597,224
Non-controlling interests JF#Z i A %5 307,194 228,893
TOTAL EQUITY #4458 20,895,266 16,826,117

The consolidated financial statements on pages 135 to 306 were #HMNE 13523068 Zira MBHMERLETZN
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 Z—ZE==F=F -+ HibERBTETIE - I

March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: ATIEEREKREE
Mr. YE Liaoning Mr. SUN Yang
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
FE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATRREL

At 1 January 2020

R=F-%%-A-A 105,163 1,846 149,800 31,008 916 427,412 (217,607) 82,237 (18,847) 3430 11,987,534 12,552,887 173,290 12,726,177
Profit for the year /it - - - - - - - - - - 4871793 4871793 B8461 4940254
Qther comprehensive income (expense) for the

year EREM 2ENE (%) - - - - - - - - 18917 (41761) - [8Y 155 (22,629)
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the

year EMZEWE (F%) 88 - - - - - - - - 18977 (41,761) 4,871,793 4,849,009 68,616 4,917,625
Purchase of shares under share award scheme
RERD RE HEERD - - - - - - (151,307 - - - - (151,397) - [151397)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments BAMEREE RO X [EE - - - - - - - 151811 - - - 151811 - 151811
Shares vested under share award scheme
RERH LB HBBORN - - - - - - 111380 (137,417) - - 26097 - - -

Acquisition of additional interest of a subsidiary
from non-controling interests (‘NCI')

sl ([ FaREs]) WE—FIEAR

HENER - - (8,628) - - - - - - - - (8628) (18013  (21,641)
Dividends paid (Note 11) EfH& (Ff11) - (1,846) - - - - - - - - (796,661)  (798,507) - (798,507)
Dividends received under share award scheme
RERAEETEHNRORE - - - - - - - - - - 2,049 2,049 - 2,049
Appropriation &5 - - - - - 14807 - - - - (14,607) - - -
At 31 December 2020
RZ2Z2F+ZA=1-H 105,163 - 4172 31,008 916 442019 (257,624) 96,631 130 (38,331) 16,076,145 16,597,224 228,893 16,826,117
Profit for the year A& = - = - - - - - - - 4,988,007 4,988,007 67,908 5,085,915
Qther comprehensive income (expense) for the year
EREM2ERE (FR) - - - - - - - - 2,808 (3.327) - (519) Q48 (1,469
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year
FREERE (F3) 88 = - = - - - - - 2,808 (3,327) 4,988,007 4,987,488 66,964 5,054,452
Purchase of shares under share award scheme

(Note 42)

RERREEHRERA (Hite2) - - - - - - 1218y - - - - (212,183) - [212,189)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments (Note 42)

AR R 30 (i) - - - - - - - 1882718 - - - 188218 - 183278
Shares vested under share award scheme (Note 42)
RERG R HSBORG (i) - - - - - - 145308 (165429) - - - - -
Capital contribution from NCI FE2RE R+ & - - - - - - - - - - - - 27,110 27,110
Acquisition of additional interest of a subsidiary

from NCI E £l aiiie

—ZFHEARMEINER - - (994) - - - - - - - - (994) () (1,470
Dividends paid (Note 11) 28 (1) - - - - - - - - - - (974003 (974,003) - (974,009
Dividends received under share award scheme
RIERH B EMRNRS - - - - - - - - - - 2262 2,262 - 2,262
Dividends paid to NOI St PR AR & - - - - - - - - - - - - (15,207)  (15,297)
Appropriation &4 - - - - - 6,113 - - - - (6,113) - - -
At 31 December 2021
R=E-—%+-A=t-A 105,163 - 140178 31,008 916 448132 (324,499 119,484 2,938 (41,658) 20,106,415 20,588,072 307,194 20,895,266
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

Notes:

(@)

The statutory surplus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve are non-
distributable and the transfer to these reserves is determined by the
Board of Directors of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the subsidiaries. Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up
for previous year’s losses or convert into additional capital of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Company. Discretionary surplus reserve can be used to
expand the existing operations of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

Other reserves represent enterprise expansion fund and reserve fund.
These reserves are non-distributable and the transfer to these reserves
are determined by the Board of Directors of the PRC subsidiaries in
accordance with the Articles of Association. Other reserves can be used to
make up for previous year’s losses or convert into additional capital of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

The Group irrevocably elected to designate certain investments in equity
instruments as at FVTOCI and the FVTOCI reserve is related to the gains
or losses arising from the changes in fair value of the designated equity
investments recognised in other comprehensive income.

GEX

(@)

EEBRBBEELDERASKBETITREIK
HREZEREVFBEANTEARLME
((HEDRIVHEAANEETSRIENEA
AIMERRARNETE - AERBRFEETRAREE L
FREBEIERRARR T EKNE R RNEINE
K- RERHFETRERRAXFRHENBA
RIRIRA X -

HitBHECERERES RFEES - 2FHBED
AREDK  MEBEREZSRENFIREHDEH
MEARNEESRESEANET - HibHE
AARNEE EFEBBERERRARR T BME
RAMEEINEAR »

AREETA MR R EE R AR B ARLME
ERERER TANE TRE - MRAAETA
Lt 2T UK 2 ) 8 L LA 2 TR MR O REERR AR
HEBRRENA A BEEEEE MWW EE
A -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

2021
—E-—F

RMB’000
ARBF T

OPERATING ACTIVITIES &% 558

Profit before tax & &1 Al Al 5,634,887

Adjustments for: FE% :
Share of results of associates 7 1E Bk ‘& A 7] 24 (19,007)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #2 - #22 R REITE 1,638,067
Depreciation of right-of-use assets & L E & 60,845
Depreciation of investment properties & & ¥4 4,633
Amortisation of intangible assets /24 2= # & 56,211
Allowance for inventories 17 & &5 132,374
Impairment loss under expected credit loss model, net of reversal
RIEHEEEEREGTE2/REEE - HREE 5,182
(Gain) loss on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments, net
TESBMITARAREZEN (W) BEFHE (67,097)
Loss (gain) on fair value changes of financial assets at FVTPL
BRAnBEF AEBEmNEREEAABEZIMNER (W) 1,769
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y% - 25 N R EEE 1,350

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary & —XH B R sl M EE -
Expense recognised in respect of share award scheme
AR 1 B2 B 51 & i FERR ) S 188,278
Interest income from time deposits, short term fixed deposits, pledged bank

deposits and bank balances

TGN SETHER  EERRITERRRITEBRI WA (97,112)
Interest income from debt instruments &7 T EF| B Ug A (4,400)
Investment income from unlisted financial products at FVTPL

REEAREF ABENIELTEREMIRERA (302,638)
Finance costs @& XA 230,252
Net foreign exchange gain 4MNE Y35 % 58 (81,518)
Loss (gain) on lease termination & 4% |FE51E (W) 935

2020
—E-TF

— = —=

RMB’000
ARBTTT

5,642,884

(20)
1,513,407
54,285
4,391
56,202
245,674

(12,218)
111,002
(86,243)
11,156
1,673
151,811
(47,230)
(9,335)
(215,042)
233,740

(297,945)
(54)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEHERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

2021
—E-—F

RMB’000
ARBTF T

2020
—E-FF

RMB’000
ARBTT

LEEEPINKLER RS 7,383,011 7,358,138
Decrease (increase) in inventories 77 & 54> (4% 1) 168,839 (882,783)
Decrease in trade and other receivables and prepayment

B 5 N H e W R IE R TR SRIE R A 833,615 1,453,392
Increase in amount due from a related party fEU — & BEE A 3B 1E 0 (327) =
Decrease in trade and other payables & 5 K H th &~ I8 R 4 (942,589) (496,536)
Increase in contract liabilities & 498 E1 41 46,910 47,989
Increase (decrease) in deferred income JEFEW AL HN (i 4) 117,053 (6,450)
Decrease in amounts due to related parties FE{~BEsE A £ 7= 2 (62) (502)
Cash generated from operations & & BB FTSIH & 7,606,450 7,473,248
Income taxes paid B 15 TS E (627,488) (313,237)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES && ;ZB TSR &5 6,978,962 7,160,011
INVESTING ACTIVITIES &

Placement of short term fixed deposits 175 2 & HiTz 3¢ (1,540,339) (958,277)
Placement of time deposits 17/ E Hi7F 3K - (500,000)
Withdrawal of short term fixed deposits H2EUAE 2 5F HiTE X 681,342 738,360
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BE&E ¥ 3 - #22 L &kE (2,082,924) (2,332,864)
Payments for leasehold lands & £ i 5k (22,705) (81,655)
Payment for intangible assets & E N K (40,252) (39,738)
Placement of pledged bank deposits 77 2 H 3R 1777 3K (16,508) (3,375)
Release of pledged bank deposits fi#k 2 H iR 1777 3K 1,654 6,050
Purchases of unlisted financial products Y8 3F T & Rl E & (46,718,495)  (59,212,284)
Release of unlisted financial products 2 JE F T4 BE & 46,923,800 56,303,979
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment

BB  BBEREBENOES (443,056) (344,093)
Purchase of debt instruments at FVTPL W QA A Bt ABREF TR - (77,617)
Purchase of fund instruments at FVTPL WA A BT ABRmMES T A - (619,227)
Purchase of debt instruments at amortised cost W BB IZ# LAk AT B EL T A - (29,262
Purchase of equity investments at FVTPL WESIZ A 7t Bt AR AR E (20) -
Purchase of equity instruments at FVTOCI Wiz A A B AR M EEWEMER T A (40,849) (100)
Interest and investment income received &YW 8 &IEE WA 329,143 247,968
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

HEWE - WBERREBPIEHIA 58,568 62,108
Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments at FVTPL

HERQAEFABRNER TAMSKIE 31,062 -
Proceeds from disposal of a debt instrument at FVTPL

HE-BRAAEF ABRNER TEMEHIEA 32,427 81,668
Proceeds from disposal of fund instruments at FVTPL

HERARBEFABRNES TAMSRIE - 729,226
Repayment from debt instruments at amortised cost

REHK AT ENERE TENEENA 51,691 54,200
Investment in an associate A — & A A Z & (106,040) (1,250)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES & ZEfT AR €58 (2,901,501) (5,976,183)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& EE

2021
—E-—F

RMB’000
ARBF T

2020
—E-FF
RMB’000
ARETFIT

Interest paid 21~ Fl &8 (222,125) (224,439)
Dividends paid BEfJ & & (987,038) (796,458)
New bank borrowings raised ¥11ZiR17EE 5,557,947 3,810,422
Repayment of bank borrowings E&RITEE (5,354,662) (2,793,677)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHE & & (48,981) (45,065)
Purchase of shares under share award scheme 1R I {7 22 Eh=t 2 & B A% (7 (212,183) (151,397)
Acquisition of additional interest of a subsidiary from NCI
B IE AR i s WS — KB A RI R R ME =R (1,470) (21,641)
Capital contribution from NCI A FE¥E AR E ST E 27,110 =
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
RETEARES TR (1,241,402) (222,255)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ReRASEEEBIENTERE 2,836,059 961,573
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY
R—A—HWEERAESEEER 2,841,771 1,917,239
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [E RSB/ & (72,651) (37,041)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER,
RTt-ZA=+—BAWBEEeRRELEEHIER -

represented by bank balances and cash IASR1T4 R KN IR& 27 5,605,179 2,841,771
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 21
September 2006 as an exempted company under the Companies
Act Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised,
formerly known as Companies Law) of the Cayman Islands and
its shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited with effect from 15 June 2007. Its ultimate holding and
parent company is Sun Xu Limited, a private limited company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its ultimate controlling
party is Mr. Wang Wenjian, also a director of the Company. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information section
of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the business of designing, researching and developing,
manufacturing and selling of optical and optical related products
and scientific instruments.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

1. SR ER

BT RERE (KE) BRAA ([RRQF])
R_BTERFLA-ZT—BHEHRSHESR
BHESEHERAREF2R2E (—NAR—FF
ZRRD - BERA RIER] - ULATTER QA
)M AEH R AT ERHBE-F
ELFEANATARAREERHERIMA
RAB LT RERERRSARRHEE
RATE - —RINREREZESEMKIE
ABRRE] > MEBRERATREXE
£E - TAARRESE - ARFEMMPE
BREFEEZ BRI TR FRADFE
R — SR -

ARABH/—RAREEZERATF - ARFRE
MEBAR (FiE AEm]) EBLSFRT
MAEME  LERHELERCEIEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MY R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and

HKFRS 16

Reform — Phase 2

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the International
Accounting Standards Board issued in June 2021 which clarified
the costs an entity should include as “estimated costs necessary
to make the sale” when determining the net realisable value of
inventories.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework ?
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture #
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 20217

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) °

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies °

and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates °

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction 4

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract ?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 ¢

C AT E R ER 2 HR] RAEIERT
BRMBREER

AEBWERFRAUATEBMABERRE
MHVFR] RAIERT BB SR E LR -

BB RE &R RIE & A RIGREETAS
FATH

BB RE &R BEaRER 2 122
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F10HRRBHEEE REEPRELES
RRE28% (BFIAR) FALE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2. EARETEEMBRE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING R ([BFRAMBREE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) Al ]) (

RATE M ARER 2R RAEIER]
MR EER ()

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

I (U

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

HAR AR o

S

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

HiR AR o

R-ZE-—FMA-—HAZERABZFE

KRB —F—A—HkZERABRZFE

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. 8 RIZE_=F—HA—HEZERHBZFE

HAR AR o

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be ¢ R—EAFEBRHRScERBzFEHBEE
determined. o
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all AARIEETEERME I REIERTE
the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact BB EEANAARERNRRETS S
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future. REMBMREEERTE -
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF . FEMBHRCEHUERER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EESTTHE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial M RMEMBHRRZFERESE
statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared HREVBEBRRDIBEEESTMAE
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In BB B mMEEAGBE - It
addition, the consolidated financial statements include Oh  REHBHMEBBERBHMER
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the FTERARES EMMRA ([ LEHR
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Al ) RBEBLAGUEHIRE 2 BRAEE
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies B} o
Ordinance.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 /Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MY R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results
of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e |Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e |level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e |evel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

* has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MY R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liguidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

e |ease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as defined
in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases
at the acquisition date, except for leases for which (a)
the lease term ends within 12 months of the acquisition
date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low value. Right-
of-use assets are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease when
compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’'s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed
directly of the previously held equity interest.

Gooawill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Gooawill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &7
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MY R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &R
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 2}
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) S2EEEF K (@)
Investments in associates (Continued) RBERNFZRE (&)
When the Group ceases to have significant influence over MAEEHBEERARAREEAZE
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire 7 HEARINELREWHIEEFTNEE
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being Hm o MEENEERNEZER - &
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an REBERBRATEE AR 2= - B
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is REEZ BB BYBEHRELERFE I
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group ﬁmﬁ’]ipﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ  AEEREBZ
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and ARBEFERBER  MARER®K
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. REEBXEREZANE - BE QA
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate FEHEEAAREEZ AN ERD
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds T & N Rl R FTS AR FTS 3K
from disposing of the relevant interest in the associate is HeBMERE Dt ABEEHEH S
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of NAEIZHER o N NEBEFEAIE
the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts HEMe2HEWaEziE R aER
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in BoBAR  EEHRMWMZBEE QAR
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be EHEHRBEEEXBREMNEEMER -
required if that associate had directly disposed of the related H bt - Wz & AR LRI E R EM
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously 2EMEER  AIgREEHEBEE
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate EXBEREFIHAEER  E8#H
or would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of EANRIHE PoEER  AEE
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the BRI EREREN Y EEER
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification (EREHHEAE) -
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.
The Group continues to use the equity method when an ERBEARINKESENREEDLE
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint MITER  ASBESFRAESE -
venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such EZEEEEEHE - WEHD

changes in ownership interests. RENEFTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MY R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBHRZRAUEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EZEHE(R)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’'s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contract costs
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as
an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of some temporary staff dormitories that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; and

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REMBREZEREER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEFETBUR (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 EERGICKR ()
Leases (Continued) HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBERAHEA ()
Lease liabilities MHEERE
At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises REERKE  AEEZREAMARAX
and measures the lease liability at the present value of FHEENHKAEERRLFTEHE
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating BE A EHENZKHIRER - 1
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the REERRERSHAXREUREE - BN
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement SEEHERKRBFERIZSERFE -
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
The lease payments include fixed payments (including HENFEERENR (BREEMER
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives B BEMEREEER -

receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
when the lease term has changed, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (Continueqd)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for
as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Renminbi) at exchange rate prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss
on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees

(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Shares granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

For shares of the Company granted under The Sunny Optical
Technology (Group) Company Limited Restricted Share Award
Scheme (“‘Restricted Shares”), the fair value of the employee
services received is determined by reference to the fair value
of the Restricted Shares granted at the grant date and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share award scheme
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of Restricted Shares that
are expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
estimates, if any, is recognised in the profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share award scheme reserve.

When the Restricted Shares are vested, the difference of the
amount previously recognised in the share award scheme
reserve and the cost of the related Restricted Shares
previously acquired by the Group will be transferred to
retained profits. When the Restricted Shares are lapsed before
the vesting date or are still not vested at the expiry date, the
amount of previously recognised in the share award scheme
reserve will continue to be held in the share award scheme
reserve.

3.2 EEEREE (&)

AR BEREZ (T30
DRSEEROZNNRS
KT ERAIR L

e 8 Kk E MR B R A L 1E
Hey A A E R RER 2 R TD
REGTARNETRHNAAENE -

BT AERZ(EE) BRAAIR
il M AR 10 BB R 8118 R E B AR A A
o ([BREERSE])  BEXREBES
AR 75 B9 A st B T 2 FR BT % 1 BRI 14 A%
MAREHBEHNARE ZARENR
BEREREBHZH - IIZ*BJE%?JME
w (R1D BB R8I ) - REHRES
R AEERBEMEEHIETSH
B AR B AT B AT E R B AR (D PR 5
B R A TR EA AR BLAT MR (5T o EEET M
STREMEE (A ) IR iEE P g
R RErAE REERIEE
I AB FE AR AR ) SE B R B 4 o

ERHMERD FEE - TR R
BAt Bl EERN S REAKE LA
P 458 BRI 14 B A PR S 2 ) ) 22 BB
BEREFREBRN - BERHERORE
BRYAAAIRNINABDARES -
A1) 55 B 7 B A0 SR B AT 8 & 4 o RE R A0
SRBEBERD RBFERFEAR
5o

BRERBME (RE)HRAF « 2021 8 171



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax of leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirement to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary difference arising from
subsequent revision to carrying amounts of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not
subject to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the
date of remeasurement or modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, other than construction in
progress, stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 EERBEUR ()

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position. When the consideration cannot
be allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

32 EEEHBE ()

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued) EREE (18)

ABELEBFEE - RMAX

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditures

98 B X R P EE A B i 3R A B
in the period in which it is incurred. X o

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense

EHEZHEAME TIERE - F%E
EE (HKABEIEBENFEN) MELED
NEDEBET T AR -

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell

the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditures (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MY R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets other than gooadwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets other than gooawill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continueqd)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continueqd)

(i) _Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, expect for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &4 |k
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEESTTHE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 EERGICKR ()

Financial instruments (Continued) THTA(E)

Financial assets (Continued) cREE (F)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets THEEN S ENAEE (B)

(Continueqd)

(i) _Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (i) FEEZEAAMBEAEME B w1

#mTA

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI| are BAREF AEMEE RS 2 e
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses TEMKEARBIZANEFE H
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other R EEBEEEN W REERHE
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVTOCI b 2R RNE A EFTA
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. Hm2mEWz= RE R - &
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit RYERER G - RETBRBETERN
or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be SHEETERERECEBRE K
transferred to retained profits. EBRERERET -
Dividends from these investments in equity instruments EAEEARWEARER - ZER
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to ERERTERENRENER
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends EPTJE- F BRIEBEZZRE AKE
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the DIREKRA - ERBREPEFA
investment. Dividends are included in the “other income” (ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂl s |IERH -

line item in profit or loss.
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Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continueqd)

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss exclude any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including debt
instruments at amortised cost, trade and other receivables,
amount due from a related party, pledged bank deposits,
times deposits, short term fixed deposits and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 EERBEUR ()

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant

12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to

instrument. In contrast,
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors credit-impaired and/or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition
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Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &R
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL =)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 EERBEUR ()

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) AT A ()

Financial assets (Continued) SRMEE (F)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) ZHEERE (&)
() Significant increase in credit risk () 1EEmBANE LA

RHEEERR B VIZERARE

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBHRERHMAEUEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EESEX (&)
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 EERGICKR ()
Financial instruments (Continued) LHTA ()
Financial assets (Continued) cREE (F)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEERE (&)
() Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) () 1EERBAE LA (&)
e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the s FBEHRANERNTEHEERES
operating results of the debtor; A TR
e an actual or expected significant adverse change e BEBAERLE - &B ESFEM
in the regulatory, economic, or technological IRE W ER TR E R A
environment of the debtor that results in a significant BEHEBABTERERE
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt HIRE DA MR TN BE o
obligations.
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, Tam DtV (h AR A - BS54
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased @ A 30 R « AEBREE
significantly since initial recognition when contractual ER B 9P HER AR AR EF
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the BRIREEESERBAEERF
Group has reasonable and supportable information that BRI R FELA L o

demonstrates otherwise.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(1)

Definition of default

(1)

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

ZimEE
(#&)

i

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. )54
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Hax
TR

B
=

=)
=

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 EERGICKR ()
Financial instruments (Continued) THTA(E)
Financial assets (Continued) SRMEE (F)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) ZHEERE (&)
(i) _Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued) (i) EERERLHEE (&)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or () ERANERARAFBERA
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s Eﬁkli’ﬁﬂ’]i&/mié%@ﬁl’
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a FERAE—RBERLTIE
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise %J?-EEI’\J@%ﬁﬁ ;
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter (d) fERAFREH EREEIEE
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or 4 QZ

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that (6) e RLEERERMIEE I
financial asset because of financial difficulties. RSk E K o

(iv) Write-off policy (iv) METEHE

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is HWEBRBERR HHFRNBREM

information indicating that the counterparty is in severe TERE R EER AL A R B R K

financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of AEEBMEZeREE (HlR

recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been ROGFFHBEBIEAWERF
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy ) o @REEMBINZRAAE

proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be EERFEF THRTES - B

subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s FHEBRATHEREEEZER - #l

recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice SHIERN —THAR LR EIE - E A

where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition %I B M R TR IB S NFER ©

event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted and
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables is considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

e Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
other receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issued
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for
trading, or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &4 |k
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEESTTHE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 EERGICKR ()

Financial instruments (Continued) THTA(E)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) cRBERER (&)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued) R EGA BB LA E (&)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: MEHBETIER  BemaEis

HEARBIEEE

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of e BAZFEZEEMARTABKE
repurchasing it in the near term; or EI=

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified o RYUFLHERE  HAAKEBESE
financial instruments that the Group manages together BrEdfem T AHAEG 2 —F
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; 7 - i BB B AR HER 2 &
or = 2k

e it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial o HANMATH(EAERMEREY
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging SIEERBEREHPTAZITAETA
instrument. BRAI) ©

Financial liabilities at amortised cost HBEHA AT EN T HEE

Financial liabilities at amortised cost, including trade and other LEEKR A ENeREE (BEE

payables, amounts due to related parties, bank borrowings, SR EMERN I - BIBEEALTR

long term payables and bonds payable, are subsequently H - RITEE  REBNRERES

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest &) B2 R B B AR A AR

method. = o

Derecognition of financial liabilities AIFTER TR E B

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only REER (RER) NEBHE TER

when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or B EERRRILIERERE

have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of B -RIERNeHBEREERED

the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid NREFREZ ZER BT R o

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;%2 —

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z2 —F - —4# 1+ =-HA=+—HIFFF

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Assessment of the finite useful lives of intangible
assets

The Group estimates the useful lives of intangible assets based
on the expected lifespan of those patents. The intangible assets
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives after taking into account the estimated residual value, if any.
The Group determines the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets on initial recognition in order to determine the amount of
amortisation expense to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives are determined taking into the factors including the
prevailing industry condition and the practice of intangible assets.
The amortisation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates. As at 31 December
2021, the carrying amount of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is RMB306,926,000 (31 December 2020: RMB363,137,000)
as disclosed in Note 17.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s financial
instruments, including unlisted equity instruments amounting
to RMB198,280,000 (2020: unlisted equity instruments
of RMB267,961,000 and derivative financial assets of
RMB3,650,000) and derivatives financial liabilities amounting
to RMB4,087,000 (2020: RMB96,805,000) are measured at
fair values. In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. When market
observable data are not available, the Group uses valuation
techniques that include inputs that are not based on market-
observable data to estimate the fair value of certain types of
financial instruments. Note 36(c) provides detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.
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Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade
receivables which are not credit-impaired. The provision matrix
are based on debtor’s aging as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The provision rate is based on the
Group’s historical observed default rates taking into consideration
the forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
trade receivables which are credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are
disclosed in Note 36(b) and Note 25 respectively.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

5. REVENUE 5. KA

() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i) EFEHARANAD
with customers

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-_—F+-H=t—HLEFE

Optical | Optoelectronic Optical

Components Products Instruments
KEBEH KREEM KEBEHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥T R

Types of goods & REE
Sales of optical and related components

RERBEAZHHEE 8,776,030 28,333,519 387,303
Total &% 8,776,030 28,333,519 387,303
Geographical markets it &5

China F 4,944,126 23,666,093 270,171
Asia (except China) 22l (AR EIRR M) 2,078,974 4,495,319 38,204
Europe BUM 1,046,409 3,459 29,099
North America 1t 678,102 113,843 47,742
Others E At 28,419 54,805 2,087
Total # %8 8,776,030 28,333,519 387,303
Timing of revenue recognition 52 A #55 &

At a point in time B 2HFER 8,776,030 28,333,519 387,303
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Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

5. WA (&)

() EFEHBANHAD (F)

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_ T ZTF+-_A=1+—HIFE

Optical | Optoelectronic Optical

11 O

Types of goods & R EE
Sales of optical and related components

Components
FHETH
RMB’000
ARBTT

Products
HEE M
RMB’000
AREET T

Instruments
B E S
RMB’000

ARETFIT

HEREETHIEE 9,181,097 28,494,260 326,408
Total &4 9,181,097 28,494,260 326,408
Geographical markets #E 5

China 5,441,334 25,899,773 237,073
Asia (except China) 22 (FR BEI& M) 2,177,165 2,492,908 25,418
Europe BUM 939,207 12,873 14,014
North America 1t i 603,906 60,718 48,518
Others EAth 19,485 27,988 1,385
Total 4% 9,181,097 28,494,260 326,408
Timing of revenue recognition T2 A #Y B

At a point in time B 257& 2 9,181,097 28,494,260 326,408

(i) EFEXNNBHER

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

customers

The Group sells optical and optical-related products directly
to customers. For sales of optical components, optoelectronic
products and optical instruments, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when customer
acceptance has been obtained, which is the point of time
when the customer has the ability to direct the use of these
products and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits
of these products. The credit term granted to customers is
average 90 days. The transaction price received by the Group
is recognised as a contract liability for sales in which revenue
has yet been recognised.

AEEERATFPHE LB RSN
FAEMm > SLABZTM - XAEEMMNL
BREF[NVHEEMS - WAREmAE
HEBRE  BRGRPEXRE
R AREPRAEFHNERNERARE
BHF U FE a0 P A TR A 2 10 B
B RTEPHNEEHNFHRO
R o AN SR [ YA A i R AR MR O 5
ENRXHER - NHERAS/EHEE -
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The Group’s contracts have an original expected duration
of one year or less, as permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations is not disclosed.

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the Board of Directors, being the chief
operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods delivered because the Board of Directors has chosen to
organise the Group among different major products. No operating
segments identified by chief operating decision maker have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s operating segments under HKFRS 8
Operating Segments are as follows:

1. Optical Components
2. Optoelectronic Products

3. Optical Instruments

€04\ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEDEP(HF)

Segment revenues and results DEWAREE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by AEBIZEBERAIHKEDEE D HUWA K
operating and reportable segments. FEESWAT o

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE

Optical [Optoelectronic Optical Segment

Components Products | Instruments Total | Eliminations Total
XEBH XEEM HEER 2EAE i B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T R AR%T R ARETR AR®TR AR®T T

REVENUE A

External sales 9 EfsHE 8,776,030 28,333,519 387,303 37,496,852 - 37,496,852
Inter-segment sales 7 2PfEISEE 2,927,700 12,519 90,889 3,031,108 (3,031,108) -
Total #%8 11,703,730 28,346,038 478,192 40,527,960 (3,031,108) 37,496,852
Segment profit 225 2,674,903 3,027,049 99,604 5,801,556 - 5,801,556
Share of results of associates

AMEBME AR REE 19,007
Unallocated income A2 BLUA 74,959
Unallocated expenses &7 B Fx (260,635)
Profit before tax &% Al 7l 5,634,887
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HILFE

Optical | Optoelectronic Optical Segment
Components Products Instruments Total Eliminations Total

KRBT HEEM HEHRE 7 E R B ik

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE | ARETR | ARRTI| ARBTR| ARETT| ARET:E

REVENUE YA

External sales S} EfiH & 9,181,097 28,494,260 326,408 38,001,765 = 38,001,765
Inter-segment sales 2 2Ff#HE 2,324,546 23,202 115,272 2,463,020 (2,463,020) =
Total 4848 11,505,643 28,517,462 441680 40,464,785 (2,463,020) 38,001,765
Segment profit 2 Z0% 7 3,086,783 2,598,882 65,856 5,751,521 = 5,751,521
Share of results of associates

VoK (a)i A UNCIES 20
Unallocated income A&7 BE4A 29,772
Unallocated expenses 2 BB (138,429)
Profit before tax B Al 7l 5,642,884

FRFNBRL (RE) ARAF » 2021 3 @
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A% 98 3R (4

6. =} )

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of income and expenses of unallocated subsidiaries
and central administration costs including directors’ emoluments,
share of results of associates and finance costs. There were
asymmetrical allocations to operating segments because the
Group allocates interest income, government grants, depreciation
and amortisation and gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment to each segment without allocating the related
bank balances, deferred income, property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets to those segments. This is the measure
reported to the Board of Directors for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEDEP(HF)

Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by AEBZEBERAKREDHEDHNEE K
operating and reportable segments: BEITAT :
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-_—F+=-A=+—H
Optical | Optoelectronic Optical
Components Products Instruments Total
KEZH HEEM N B{HES wzE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AR¥T AR¥ T AR® T
Assets &
Trade receivables & 5 fE Wz IE 1,878,514 3,690,969 65,169 5,634,652
Bill receivables fEUZ=1E 616,115 387,528 5,993 1,009,636
Inventories & 1,854,941 3,532,694 94,223 5,481,858
Total segment assets 7 2B & E B 5 4,349,570 7,611,191 165,385 12,126,146
Unallocated assets k9 Bl & &= 26,647,694
Consolidated assets #2& & 38,773,840
Liabilities B &
Trade payables & 5 Eft 5k 2,085,218 3,741,727 104,278 5,931,223
Note payables B Zi% 530,292 1,267,054 23,938 1,821,284
Total segment liabilities 2 28 & & 42 %8 2,615,510 5,008,781 128,216 7,752,507
Unallocated liabilities k2 At & & 10,126,067
Consolidated liabilities 428 & 17,878,574

BRTAERK (RE) ARAF « 2021 F3# @
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020

Optical | Optoelectronic Optical
Components Products Instruments Total
BT HEE SR 2 E 2 488
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARET T ARETIT AREFIT
Assets &

Trade receivables & 5 fEU A 2,367,013 4,368,386 56,344 6,792,243
Bill receivables FEUWZ % 658,226 88,041 10,263 756,530
Inventories 17 & 1,559,605 4,155,765 67,701 5,783,071
Total segment assets 7 2B & E B 50 4,584,844 8,612,692 134,308 13,331,844
Unallocated assets &% Bt & &= 22,106,271
Consolidated assets #2& & 35,438,115

Liabilities B &
Trade payables & 5 &I 5/1E 2,318,329 4,752,353 88,693 7,159,375
Note payables B Zi% 135,048 1,177,220 23,708 1,335,976
Total segment liabilities 7 3 & (& 448 2,453,377 5,929,573 112,401 8,495,351
Unallocated liabilities &% B & & 10,116,647
Consolidated liabilities 428 & 18,611,998

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

e Trade receivables, bill receivables and inventories are allocated
to the respective operating and reportable segments. All
other assets are unallocated assets, which are not regularly
reported to the Board of Directors.

e Trade payables and note payables are allocated to the
respective operating and reportable segments. All other
liabilities are unallocated liabilities, which are not regularly
reported to the Board of Directors.
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. £EDH (&)
Other segment information Hth 7 5 & #
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-—F+-A=+—HLEFE

Optical | Optoelectronic Optical Consolidated

Components Products Instruments Unallocated total
HEBH XEEM REER AOE ReBE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Amounts included in the measure of segment

profit or loss: &7 HE =T ANKE
Depreciation and amortisation #78 J & 957,606 781,873 18,283 1,994 1,759,756
Impairment losses on trade receivables recognised

(reversed) in profit or loss
REZTHER (BE) 08 ZREFERESR 1,778 (2,881) 6,285 - 5,182
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment
HEWF - BEREE (he) B1E (6,822) 8,178 (6) - 1,350
Share award scheme expense A% 22512137 94,336 73,018 15,450 5,474 188,278
Interest income from bank and financial instruments
BIREBMIAFSHRA (24,096) (365,327) (7,596) (7,131) (404,150
Allowance (reversed) for inventories 17 & #{& (%[ ) (27,710) 163,887 (3,803) - 132,374

Amounts regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker but not included
in the measure of segment assets:
EEHBTEEERRERMEERT A
PRHEEFENTE
Addition to property, plant and equipment
¥ - BRERREEM 1,596,179 896,012 6,099 162 2,498,452
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. BEDIP (&)

=
Other segment information (Continued) Hih o ERE R ()
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-_ZTFF+_A=1+—HIFE

Optical Optoelectronic Optical Consolidated

Components Products Instruments Unallocated total
HETH HEEM KEER RO ReRE

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTTT

Amounts included in the measure of segment

profit or loss: &7 HE =R ANE
Depreciation and amortisation #78 J & 792,709 812,377 20,682 2,517 1,628,285
Impairment losses on trade receivables reversed

in profit or loss
RNEEPRENE 5 EIGRREBE (6,320) (4,658) (1,240) = (12,218)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and

equipment
HEMSE - BB RREER () 2,408 8,755 7) - 11,156
Share award scheme expense #1782 E)5t 21 77,369 54,874 14,747 4,821 151,811
Interest income from bank and financial instruments
BAREMIAFSKA (19,672) (233,447) (5,876) (12,612) (271,607)
Allowance for inventories 77 & & & 22,657 218,367 4,650 - 245,674

Amounts regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker but not included
in the measure of segment assets:
EEHBTEEERRERMEERT A
PRHEEFENTE
Addition to property, plant and equipment
ERE =PSB 1,697,434 930,988 9,229 64 2,537,715
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6- '”\ /-\ﬁB (n\ﬁ)

FEEMBA

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Revenue from major products

AT AAEENRE EEEROBRADH :

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major
products:

2021 2020
—E_—F

—E—TF
RMB’000
ARETT

RMB’000
AREF T

Handset related products F # 8 %8 & & 29,597,845 32,119,027
Vehicle related products B & #H 8 & 2,960,628 2,511,766
AR/VR related products AR/VRHEREZE 1,344,637 596,237
Digital camera related products £ iH# 48 = & 1,004,258 592,186
Other lens sets E1th$3 28 490,446 473,348
Optical instruments Yt 2z 22 273,734 204,974
Other spherical lens and plane products Hth Bk &2 5 & T EE 142,255 164,946
Digital video lens Ei5 1% SAE 58 15,593 29,423
Other products E b G 1,667,456 1,309,858

37,496,852 38,001,765

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in China, Vietnam,
Korea, Japan, India and the United States.

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from external
customers is presented based on the locations of goods physically
delivered and information about the Group’s non-current assets
by the geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

it E &R

AEENEBEIZMNPE - B 78

B HERER -

BRERINEYHE M THREIBER
Eﬁ$‘§IZﬁ%%EH&)\&}E;ﬁFi@Ef*
BRI AKE R EENER L

—|T :
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

6. &

BEoE ()

wEER (%)

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

REPBEFE BN ERBEE
2021 2020 31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E=-—F —E_TF
—EB-—F —E_FTF [+t=ZHA=+—-H |TZA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 2]Y [ =X0]0]0] RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFIT AR¥T ARETIT
China & 28,880,390 31,578,180 8,969,717 8,516,376
Asia (except China) 22 (AR B4 ) 6,612,497 4,695,491 656,476 238,324
Europe UM 1,078,967 966,094 128 179
North America 3t 3 839,687 713,142 493 1,449
Others EAth 85,311 48,858 - -
37,496,852 38,001,765 9,626,814 8,756,328
Note: Non-current assets excluded interests in associates, deferred tax Wi : FERBEETERREEARMNER
assets, financial assets at FVTPL, equity instruments at FVTOCI, BEEFHBEEE  RARBEFABRENE
time deposits and goodwill. %ﬂﬁ% ° ?ﬁ” BT AE fh 2 E W e 8
T B R -
Information about major customers FEEFEHR

REATEEFHNBRAMAEBHEERTE 2
thEREBR10% ¢

Revenues from the following customers contributed over 10% of
the total sales of the Group:

2021
—E-—F

RMB’000
ARBFR

2020
—E-TF

—= —=

RMB’000
ARETT

Customer A, revenue mainly from Optoelectronic and related Products

ARF  F2REXEBERIEBERBUKRA 7,664,838 8,881,539
Customer B, revenue mainly from Optoelectronic and related Products N/A*
BEF T EXREHXERBHEERBA 5,811,013 TEmA*
Customer C, revenue mainly from Optoelectronic and related Products N/A*
CEP  XERBHXE RMEHERNKA 4,946,670 TEA*
Customer D, revenue mainly from Optoelectronic and related Products N/A*

DEF  TEREABLERERNUA TERA* 10,064,270

*

Y HAENRAERREBRAZ LB RS
#B10% °

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group.
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7(a). OTHER INCOME 7(a). Hfttliz

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT

Government grants (Note 32) B fF#Bh& (Fi=£32) 212,314 141,810
Interest income from time deposits, short term fixed deposits,

pledged bank deposits and bank balances

EHGEN BEHTHER - BEMBRITERRRITEHRT B 97,112 47,230
Interest income from debt instruments & L EF 2 k25 4,400 9,335
Investment income from unlisted financial products at FVTPL

BRAREBEAABSNIFLHERERRE RS 302,638 215,042
Interest income from small loan services /)88 & AR5 F1 B Y25 7,833 7,049
Income from sales of moulds &8 B ks 16,467 24,148
Income from sales of scrap materials $ %6 EE#HK#E 30,753 24,344
Others HAth 18,432 41,432
Total 4238 689,949 510,390
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7(b). OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7(b). il sz & E518

2021 2020
—E-—F e e 3

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

HEWE - EBELRENER (1,350) (11,156)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 1 & — & &E A 7 & &8 - (1,673)
Net foreign exchange gain 4N J 25 % 58 33,950 225,506
Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments, net
TTESRMIARREZELN WG (BIR) F8R 67,097 (111,002)
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of equity investments at FVTPL
BRARBEFABRNREREAABEZDHEELD (BE) W (8,151) 32,773
Gain on changes in fair value of debt instruments and fund investments at FVTPL
BARBEABENEBTARESREAABEHEENKE 6,382 53,470
Others HAth 1,137 (661)
Total 42%E 99,065 187,257
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BE A
2021 2020
—B-—F —EFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Interests on bank borrowings fR1TEEF| & 62,490 54,737
Interests on bonds payable & &% T8 153,970 164,282
Interests on long term payables related to intangible assets
BRI B B A ) R HA R T RUE R R 6,203 7,158
Interests on lease liabilities A& & &F & 7,589 7,563
Total #2%8 230,252 233,740
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

9. FRIBHRAX

2021
—E-—F

2020
—E-FTF

RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARMET T

Current tax: BNEAFLIE :

PRC Enterprise Income Tax F B> ¥ 1551 447,809 540,600
Withholding tax expense J844%1 5 sz 46,792 24,000
Other jurisdictions H1th & & [E 9,717 18,075
504,318 582,675
Over provision in prior years: 8t FEEREE B ¢
PRC Enterprises Income Tax & B> 2155 (3,612) (4,515)
Deferred tax (Note 19): IEFERTIE (Fi3E19) :
Current year NEE 78,266 124,470
578,972 702,630

Under the Law of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards, except as

described below:

(i)

Ningbo Sunny Infrared Technologies Co., Ltd. (“Sunny
Infrared Optics”) and Yuyao Sunny Optical Intelligence
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Optical Intelligence
(Yuyao)”), domestic limited liability companies, were approved
as Hi-Tech Enterprises and entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15% with the expiry date on 31 December 2021.

Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Opotech”), Ningbo
Sunny Automotive Optech Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Automotive
Optech”), Sunny Optics (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd. (“Sunny
Zhongshan Optics”), Ningbo Sunny Instruments Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Instruments”), Sunny Optical (Zhejiang) Research
Institute Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Research Institute”) and
Zhejiang Sunny SmartLead Technologies Co.,Ltd. (“Sunny
SmartLead”), domestic limited liability companies, were
approved as Hi-Tech Enterprises and entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 15% with the expiry date on 31 December 2022.

RIBHECEMRFIE ([REREBE])
REEMBREABRES - PENEQF
BEROREE _ZETNF-—A—HER
25% -+ HET &R -

(i)

EREFAINIEMERAT ([ FRFA
SRE ) Rk RFEEABRME
BRAF ([RFEEXE (8REK) )13
BREEREERAR  WERATAS
e BEEZX15%HNEERRM
E -RZIE—F+-HA=+—HE
W o

EREFHEELARAT ([FFH
E]) ZERERFEHFALERMARA
A([BRFEHKXE])  BFHAE(FP
W) BRAR ([FFEPILNE])  BK
RFHEBARDA ([RFHEE]) - 2
FRECHI) ARERBRAF ([RF
MER]) RDINIRFEERMERA
A ((RFEERM) HANEEARE
TR WERA ASFEMEE -
EREZZISRHMERRE  RZF
T+ -A=+—HEmMm-
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Zhejiang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Zhejiang
Optics”), Xinyang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Xinyang
Optics”) and Ningbo Sunny Intelligent Technology Co.,Ltd.
(“Sunny Intelligent Technology”), domestic limited liability
companies, were approved as Hi-Tech Enterprises and
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% with the expiry date
on 31 December 2023.

Zhejiang Sunny Optical Intelligence Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Optical Intelligence”), a domestic limited liability
company, was recognised as Software Enterprise and entitled
preferential policies of full exemption from enterprise income
taxation for the first two years till 31 December 2018 and reduction
half for the subsequent three years till 31 December 2021.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021

9. BB ()

(il

(iv)

NIRRT HBERAE ([BREHRTIH
B|) EERFXB2ERAF([RF
EBHXE]) REERFEEREER
ARA([RFEENFE D HRRNES
REMAR - WERA A= D
¥ EREZXZI5%MERME K=
T-_=Ft+-_A=t+—HE" °

NI FEEABERMARAA ([ 3
FEEXE|) ANEEREMELAA
WER SR EE  IREMEER
EZFE-N\EFEF+ZA=F+—HEXZ
HRRECEMGEHONERRE - UK
REB=FEHEE-_"T-—4¥+—-A
=T —REXVEBIEES

g BENRERABEEENRTE
FABEEY -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

?.v'?\AEJJ TR R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. MEHEX (&)

The income tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FARMEHEBE HEGEERREME
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and W =P TIBR T AR A SRR AN

other comprehensive income as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTTT
Profit before tax Bk 51 4 £ 5,634,887 5,642,884
Tax at the PRC EIT tax rate of 25% &9 Bl 1k 3 FriS 3 i 25 % H 1,408,722 1,410,721
Tax effect of share of results of associates D {H 4 A B 248 2 Fifs e 2 (4,752) (5)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose
NAHBFA X 2 R E 8,949 5,793
Tax effect of allowance granted under share award scheme in the PRC
RIBRR ) REY T S B B R BB 8 (21,859) (14,437)
Tax effect of preferential tax rates for certain subsidiaries (Note a)
ETHBRARAREEE 2HBTE (ta) (337,501) (372,942)

Tax effect of additional tax deduction of research and
development expenses (Note b)

MER X BINIBHIRZ R E (HiiEb) (573,148) (385,378)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R IERTEE 18 2 iS55 2 64,542 28,315

Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognised

RERATEINE R EE 2B E (3,745) -

Utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised

AL ARERIAER (13,431) (8,991)

Deferred tax provided for withholding tax on income derived in the PRC

FAIK B P B A TR T e B R AE A IR 65,436 49,205

Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions

REMEERLCENMBRARINTRABTE 2 METE (10,629) (5,136)

Over provision in prior years &1t 5 & B EEE S (3,612) (4,515)

Income tax expense for the year & A FTSHF 578,972 702,630

Details of deferred taxation and unrecognised temporary difference FEIEFTA R AR B 2 A BRI

are disclosed in Note 19. 199255 -

Notes: B

(a) For the PRC subsidiaries which were approved as Hi-Tech Enterprises (a) BERAIASHMEMEEXRELENSP
or Software Enterprise, they are entitled to a preferential tax rate of BB ARIME HAREZZ15%MESR
15% or preferential policies of full exemption from or half reduction of MELEERRIRAFCEMSHOESR
enterprise income tax. BUE -

BERBRE (RE) ARAT » 2021 £ @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(o)

In August 2018, Caishui [2018] No. 99 “Notice on Increasing the Pre-
tax Deduction Ratio of Research and Development Expenses” was
released, according to which certain PRC subsidiaries are entitled to
an additional 756% tax deduction on eligible research and development
expenses incurred by them for the both years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

In March 2021, the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration
of Taxation released No. 13 announcement of 2021 named
“Announcement on Further Improving the Policy on Pre-tax Deduction
of Research and Development Expenses”, according to which certain
PRC subsidiaries engaged in manufacturing industry are entitled to an
additional 100% tax deduction on eligible research and development

expenses incurred by them for the year ended 31 December 2021.

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:

9. BB ()

(o)

R=ZT—\F\A  B5i[2018]995% &
1R = B B R R AT A0 & H0 BR L 6 &Y 3B
MY - RIFEBEM  ETHEMBA
ARBE TS —FR-_ZT_FTF+=A
=t+—BHIMEFEEENFTA GEEAH
BREAZEBINSKOHER R

i
i

—F=8 KB BHELBR

—E-—FEIHELE(ERE— S =EE
HEEBRATMAHBREENAE) - RIE
s BETHEREZNTBEMEA R
EERERE T - —F+-_A=+—8
FFEEENFEKENMEER=ZAE
SMO0% T B R R

=
z
E

10. F =R

FREHNEIRIA T IR

2021
—E_—F

2020
—EFF
RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARET T

Directors’ emoluments (Note 13) E=FI& (Ff:E13) 16,159 16,169
Other staff's salaries and allowances H#f 8 T Hy % & K8k 2,518,548 1,968,313
Other staff’s discretionary bonuses Hfth 8 T H)EJIFIEAL 217,220 474,763
Other staff's contribution to retirement benefit scheme
Hth B T #RIRT8 N T &1 5K 319,894 219,448
Other staff’s share award scheme expense Hfth & T &I #2Eh 5T 2157 B 178,746 142,279
3,250,567 2,815,972
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense #2457 17 SRR 23,807,323 24,741,675
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 2tEHEl 4 4,666 4,209
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #)3£ - #3233 & LT E 1,638,067 1,513,407
Depreciation of investment properties I &M EITE 4,633 4,391
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {# FHHEEETE 60,845 54,285
Amortisation of intangible assets %/ & 2= # £ 56,211 56,202
Allowance for inventories (included in cost of sales)
FEREE GTAHEEMNA) 132,374 245,674
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

11. DIVIDENDS

Dividends for ordinary shareholders of the Company recognised
as distribution during the year:
FAERBDIROAR R L BRFEARE
2020 final dividends — RMB88.80 cents
(2020' 2019 final dividends — RMB72.80 cents) per share
—F- fﬁjiﬁﬂﬂx 8 — BRARKS8.80%
T oRF ZE-NFERPERE - 8RARK72.805)

1. RE

2021 2020
—E-—F

—E-FTF
RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARMET T

974,003 798,507

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 of approximately
RMB91.00 cents per share, equivalent to Hong Kong Dollar
(“HKD”) 111.80 cents per share, amounting to a total of
approximately RMB998,133,000 (2020: approximately RMB88.80
cents per share, equivalent to HKD105.70 cents per share,
amounting to a total of approximately RMB974,003,000) has
been proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The final dividends proposed after the end of reporting
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of
reporting period.

RIEHRE AR ESERENETR
HARMQ1.000 (FHHEREFK111.80/8
il (M8 1)) - & H4AKE998,133,000
m(:gfiﬁi EROARKES8.800
(FEZENERR105.70 L) - BHHARK
97400300071)%%@ T —F+=H
=T —HILEFERBARE @ EEERRER
EERRBFAS EHE - RN HRESR
RERN B REANG B I AR AR E BRIER
RAfE -

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.88RER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share A RREESRERARBERF TR
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following BATEEE :
data:

2021 2020
—EB-—F —TFF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Earnings 27|
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share
AAEHEREAREERNNEAR 4,988,007 4,871,793

Number of shares & {32 B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the

purpose of basic earnings per share (Note)

AT E IR E AR T 8T @A 9 & (M5E) 1,092,612 1,092,870
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: &7 #58 @R £ -
Restricted shares & #1815 1,416 1,578

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of diluted earnings per share

STEBREE RN T RN T8 1,094,028 1,094,448
Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares has been MieE - MEFHETRIROEEFEDZERRMD
calculated taking into account the shares held by the Group under SRR EI T AEEFERD o

share award scheme.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 13. E% FETBRAEBERESR
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ EeFMEESM <
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and executives’ remuneration, disclosed pursuant to the BEENTHRAEMESZERA ETRIUIEAD
applicable Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance, is as follows: AHRGIB BT ¢
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Share Total

benefits Bonus | contributions award 2021

FER RAEHN —R--F

ik Ht 2 A AL T EH R 43 32 b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT | AR®TR| AR¥T:R ARBTR | AR%®TR| AR¥ETR
(Note)
(RH=E)

A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

HITES

Ye Liaoning ¥#& 2 = 1,274 373 89 2,383 4,119
Sun Yang %% = 1,120 420 46 2,383 3,969
Wang Wenjie £ XA - 942 411 59 2,383 3,795
Sub-total /st - 3,336 1,204 194 7,149 11,883

Retirement

Salaries benefit
and other scheme Share Total
benefits Bonus | contributions award 2021

FER RAEAN —R--F

ik HitfE A AL T & H R 43 52 k]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TR | ARBTR | AR®TR ARBTR | AR%®TR| ARBTR
(Note)
(B aE)

B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FHITES
Wang Wenjian £ 3% 1,274 - 373 - 2,383 4,030

RERERE (RE) HRAF « 2021 5% @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ BEE FETHAERASR
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ BEeFmMESENE (8)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Retirement

Salaries benefit
and other scheme Share Total
benefits Bonus | contributions award 2021

FeR BHKEF —BE--fF

e Hin B Al 4L B 47 5 #m
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR | AR%TR| AR%®TxR ARETR | ARBTR| AR®Txn

C) INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

BIYFBTES
Zhang Yuging SR E 82 - - - - 82
Feng Hua Jun S%EZE 82 - - - - 82
Shao Yang Dong BB % 82 - - - - 82
Sub-total /&t 246 - - - - 246
Total 4% 16,159
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 13EE FETHAERAR
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ EeFMEESNE (8)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z-_ZF+-_A=1+—RHILFE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Share

Fees benefits Bonus contributions award
ek BRER

ik H fth 7 7 TEAL ATl Rt 228 k]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT | ARBTI| ARETET ARETT | ARBTRT| ARETT
(Note)
(BE3E)

A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

HITES

Ye Liaoning ¥#& 2% - 1,120 547 73 2,383 4,123
Sun Yang %% = 942 596 43 2,383 3,964
Wang Wenijie £ X7 = 793 547 57 2,383 3,780
Sub-total /&t - 2,855 1,690 173 7,149 11,867

Retirement
Salaries benefit

and other scheme Share

Fees benefits Bonus contributions award
Fek RIKEM

itk Hfth 7 7 TEAL AR Rt 2278

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT | ARBTT| ARETET ARETT | ARBTRT| ARETR
(Note)
(B3E)

B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FUTES
Wang Wenjian F X% 1,120 - 547 - 2,383 4,050

RTRERE (RE) R AT « 2021 F3H @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Retirement
REEUES benefit
and other scheme Share
Fees benefits Bonus contributions award
ek R e S 323
ik H fth 1 7 TE4T AT R 1 228 k]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT | AR®TR | ARETT ARETT | ARBTT| ARETR
C) INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS
BYEHTES
Zhang Yuging SR E 84 - - - - 84
Feng Hua Jun S%EZE 84 - - - - 84
Shao Yang Dong BBP% 84 = = = = 84
Sub-total /)&t 252 - - - = 252
Total £2%8 16,169

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were paid for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

The non-executive director’'s emoluments shown above were for
the services as a director of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were paid for their services as directors of the Company.

Mr. Ye Liaoning, Mr. Sun Yang and Mr. Wang Wenjie are also
the executive directors of the Company and their emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by them as
the Chief Executives.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: Nil), no director waived emoluments.

€24\ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ BES FETHAERASA
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ BaHMESME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included 4 (2020: AEERAFENAEZRSTMALTETE
4) directors for the year. Details of their emoluments are set out WE(ZZFF - @%)i% HiM e
above. The emoluments of the remaining 1 (2020: 1) highest paid BEREX - HBA—RB(ZE_ZF :
individual were as follows: ) EaTWALTHMESOT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Salaries and other benefits ¥4 & H b &5 832 541
Bonuses (Note) fEAT (Fffz) 375 1,336
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iE /R 4&Fll51 2 £ 7K 65 61
Share award B% {5 #£E 2,317 1,508
3,589 3,446
Their emolument was within the following band: BHMESEE LT
2020
—EEF
No. of
employee employee
ETAH BT AH
HKD4,000,001 to HKD4,500,000 4,000,001 %t £ 4,500,0007% 7T 1 1
Note: The bonus is determined by remuneration committees based on MizE : BATBETHNEESRBEASERESH
the Group’s performance for each financial year and subject to a BREEMRBAETE  ETAImRARQ A
maximum of 5% of consolidated profit attributable to owners of the IR E(R AR & m A 5% ©
Company.
During both years, certain directors, non-director and non-chief RBFER - RERNSBERRDEZEEE -
executive highest paid employees were granted restricted shares, HETES  FESRIFETBRAERS
in respect of their services to the Group under the share awards FTMEES MBS AAREEREN ARG ME
scheme of the Group. Details of the share awards scheme are set RSB o R RENETEIMFFIBER
out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements. e EERMTE42 o

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 %)% - B RRE

Machinery and Fixtures
Owned production Motor | and office | Construction
properties equipment vehicles | equipment | in progress Total
HAER BRR
BENE EERME RE WARE ERIR %%
RMB’000 RMB’000 | RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET ARBTE | ARBTR | ARBTR ARBTRE | ARBTR
COST A&
At 1 January 2020 Z2-F4—-H—H 913,898 7,434,775 19,251 1,021,050 714,219 10,108,193
Additions RE 52,042 1,562,262 394 199,759 723,258 2,637,715
Transfer &5 345,576 204,541 - 34,353 (584,470) -
Disposals (H& (11,056) (249,505) - (10,309) - (270,870)
Derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary
HE—FMBAREKILER = (849) = (303) - (1,152)
Exchange realignment 51 $82 - (2,786) (110) (1,892) = (4,788)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
ZECEFF-A=t—ARZE=-4-f—H 1,300,460 8,948,438 19,535 1,242,658 853,007 12,364,098
Addmons AE 28,360 991,314 801 503,859 973,618 2,498,452
Transfer &% 405,942 391,986 - 101,482 (899,410) -
Transferred to investment properties
BRERANE (8,418) = = = = (8,418)
Disposals (& (1,635) (284,543 (1,816) (23,353) - (311,347
Exchange realignment S E 532 (1,166) (8,250) (20) (2,607) = (12,043)
At 31 December 2021 R=E=—F+-A=+—H 1,724,043 10,038,945 18,500 1,822,039 927,215 14,530,742
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
RIMERAE
At 1 January 2020 R=E-2F—F—H 156,696 3,012,338 14,345 353,069 - 3,536,448
Charge for the year FRH H 45,504 1,287,297 1,810 178,796 = 1,513,407
Eliminated on disposals & & £ (9,504) (179,036) = (9,066) = (197,606)
Derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary
HE—RMBL AR KRR = (835) = (286) - (1,121)
Exchange realignment 51 382 - (63) (105) (55) = (229)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
RZBZE+_A=+-BR-Z-_-4%-A-H 192,696 4,119,701 16,050 522,458 - 4,850,905
Charge for the year FR 67,508 1,289,851 1,474 279,234 - 1,638,067
Transferred to investment properties
ERERANE (4,312) = = = = (4,312)
Eliminated on disposals & F £ (1,678) (227,849) (1,641) (20,366) - (251,429)
Exchange realignment JME % (15) (3,780) (18) (1,905) - (5,718)
At 31 December 2021 R=E=—F+=-A=+—H 254,304 5,177,923 15,865 779,421 - 6,227,513
CARRYING VALUES [
At 31 December 2021 R=E-—#+—-F=1+—H 1,469,739 4,861,022 2,635 1,042,618 927,215 8,303,229
At 31 December 2020 R=E=FF+=-f=1+—H 1,107,764 4,828,737 3,485 720,200 853,007 7,513,193

@6\ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

14, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.¥)% - #3ER=%E (&)

(Continued)

btk - #ERERERE (ERTER

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than

construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

M) REREAVAR K 5B+ Al A M
17 -

Owned properties 20 years EREE/ES 204F
Machinery and production equipment 3 to 10 years R R A E RS 3E10%F
Motor vehicles 4 1o 5 years RE 45
Fixtures and office equipment 3 to 10 years RN E NS = 3& 104

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has obtained the ownership
certificates for all buildings and no buildings of the Group were
pledged to secure bank borrowings granted.

The Directors of the Company considered no impairment loss
on property, plant and equipment for the both years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

R-_E-_—F+-_HA=+—H XEEHP
REMEEFNEBEE  BAEETR
KB FEAERNERETEE -

HE_ZT-_—FR_ZFT_ZFTF+_H1
Zt+—BHUMEEE  KRAEZEZERAEY
¥ BERIEITERELSSE -

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15 FERAEEE

Leasehold Leased

lands properties Total

HE LT

HEME #EE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT

RMB’000
ARETT

As at 31 December 2021 R =—Z-—F+ - H=+—H

Carrying amount BRE{E

356,268 148,416 504,684

As at 31 December 2020 A —ZE —ZFF+ - H=+—H

Carrying amount BRE{E

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-—F+-_A=+—ALLFE
Depreciation charge 7% &

342,552 137,453 480,005

8,989 51,856 60,845

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE—Z-ZEF+-A=1+—RILEE
Depreciation charge 7% &

7,908 46,377 54,285

RERERE (RE) HRAF « 2021 5% @
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has obtained the land use
right certificates for all leasehold lands and no leasehold lands of
the Group were pledged to secure bank borrowings granted.

The Directors of the Company considered no impairment loss on
right-of-use assets for the both years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

Expense relating to short-term leases 52 AT & +HRIFH

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets,
excluding short-term leases of low value assets
BREEEEHERBERX (TREEHEEELEEES)

Total cash outflow for leases FAEIR & H 42 E

Additions to right-of-use assets (£ BEEERE

15. EHEEE (&)

RZEBE-_—F+_A=+—H ' x£EE
BEMBEHRE L T FERAERERFE
£ BASEWAREKAEE L HERER
NERIRITEE -

HE-_ZT-_—FFRrR_ZT=-_ZF+=A1
=+ HLIMEFE  AREEZRAE
FREEEERBERIS -

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E-—F —E-FF
+=A=+—H +=-—B=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
28,671 8,218

48 235

107,994 167,567
91,711 134,287

For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouses,
staff dormitory and machines for its operations. Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of 1 month to 10 years (2020: 1
month to 10 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of each
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

@8\ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

In addition, the Group owns several office buildings and industrial
buildings where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located.
The Group is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire these property interests. The
leasehold land components of these owned properties are
presented separately only if the payments made can be allocated
reliably.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for machines.
As at 31 December 2021, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases entered during the
year.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB154,270,000 are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of RMB148,416,000 as at 31
December 2021 (2020: lease liabilities of RMB140,479,000
and related right-of-use assets of RMB137,453,000). The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

BERAEEE (8)

o AEBEEHERHAERIEETF
(FE2ELEHEERE) AEERZE
¥R (PREAFEELH) WELES
A o BIRRAT—IRMZ 2 FRIB A EEZ

EYERER ERENESRNRE - 5
Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂ’ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁkpm
2751 e

AEBETFEHU BRI LERHEE - R-F
——f+t-A=t+—8H" Lﬁﬂfﬂ SHAH
FRATZMEHBEAS R -

HER IR

o BEZT=Z—F+=ZA=+—8 -
HEBBEARKE154,270,0007T & HHE
MFEREEEAR 148,416,000 0
BR(ZEZZF - HEBBEAARK
140,479,000C RHB@HEAEEE B A

R#137,453,0007T) ° B EH AR B E
EEETHERERSI HEHBZE TN
ERIEMEL - HEEETS AR ERE
R o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. IR E W £

The Group leases out several offices under operating leases with AEBUSZEESFFENRKHES EHE
rental receivables quarterly or semi-annually. The leases typically FHELEHEETHHAE - EEHE A1
run for fixed period of 1 to 10 years. E104F »

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result HRFEHEEYNEEREBNEENEE
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the EtE  MASET2HEHGRHEREESIH
respective functional currencies of the group entities. The lease RINERRR - HES N T BIEFBRERE
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and lessee’s BERAEARHEERE S Y EREERE

option to purchase the property at the end of lease term.

RMB’000
ARETIT

COST B A&

At 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020

RZBE_EF—A—BAk_ZE_ZTF+_A=+—H 67,601
Transferred from properties s 5 #)3£ 8,418
At 31 December 2021 A-ZE-—F+-HF=+—H 76,019
DEPRECIATION 7&

At 1 January 2020 R—ZE-ZT4F—H—H 22,303
Charge for the year FFA 4,391
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

RZE_EF+_A=+—BAk=_F-_—F—H—H 26,694
Transferred from properties 85 5 ¥ 4,312
Charge for the year FFA 4,633
At 31 December 2021 A-—ZE-—F+_-HA=+—H 35,639
CARRYING VALUES BEEE

At 31 December 2021 A—ZE-—F+=-_A=+—H 40,380
At 31 December 2020 R—ZE—ZEF+—-_H=+—H 40,907
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Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(Continued)

All of the investment properties are measured using the cost
model. The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2021 was RM108,385,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB93,348,000). The fair value has been determined by the
management of the Company reference to recent market evidence
of transaction prices for similar properties in the same locations
and conditions.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about
the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

16. I E W 5= (F])

FIBEREYMHEUKAEXGTE - RZZ
T —F+-A=+—H8 AEEREWE
HAREAARK108,385,000C (&=
TF+-_A=1+—H : AR#¥093,348,000
TC) ° ZARBEEARARAREREBLRERE K
HREMRENENCIATISKRIERE

}—\’_Eo

AEERENENFBRRNBSHRERA
RABFEHERMT

—E_—F
Fair value
at Level 3

Carrying

amount
AREE
RMB’000
AR®T T

hierarchy
BE=ZRHARE
RMB’000
ARMET T

Commercial property units located in the PRC {i7 7> F1 [ ) 7 2 1) 22 B8 (i1

40,380 108,385

Commercial property units located in the PRC i 72 FR B 8 7 % ) 2 B2 i1

2020
—E_THF
Fair value
Carrying at Level 3
amount
FREE
RMB’000

ARETIT
40,907

hierarchy
E=RNDAE
RMB’000
ARBTT

93,348

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line
basis from 13 to 20 years.

As at 31 December 2021, no investment properties of the Group
were pledged to secure bank borrowings granted.

The Directors of the Company considered no impairment loss
on investment properties for the both years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

A EMEMMIE20ENIRBEGEET
%0

RZEBE-_—F+_A=+—H8  xEET
RRIFIEEMHEEBERAERIEITEE

BT -Gk - _ZFTF+= A

=t ALMEFE  ARREERR/K
BEMERVWERERBE -

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

1 EBEEE

Patents
=RIE
RMB’000
AR®T T
COST A&
At 1 January 2020 R—ZE-_ZFT&—H—H 570,833
AddlthﬂS //J\\E 176
At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021
R-BE-_TF+_A=+—HE T - —F+-_F=+—H 571,009
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT #84 & s &
At 1 January 2020 R—ZE-_ZF&—H—H 151,670
Charge for the year A 56,202
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
R-E_EF+_A=+—BrR T -_—F—H—H 207,872
Charge for the year A 56,211
At 31 December 2021 A—Z—-—F+-A=+—H 264,083
CARRYING VALUES EHEE
At 31 December 2021 R—ZE=-—F+—-A=+—81 306,926
At 31 December 2020 R=F=_FF+_-A=+—H 363,137

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held (i) licensing patent
acquired from Konica Minolta, Inc. (“KMI”), an independent third
party of the Group, which allows the Group to develop, produce
and sell licensed products, (i) patent and other intangible assets
acquired from the acquisition of Sunny Mobility Technologies
(Ningbo) Co., Ltd. to develop the advanced driving assistant
system in automobile industry.
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Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 1. EBEEE (&)
These intangible assets have finite useful lives and are amortised ZEBTEEREBEBRAERFEE - WA
on a straight-line basis over 10 years. B AR T F A -
The Directors of the Company considered no impairment loss on HE-_ZTZ-_ " 4FR_ZFT_ZTF+=HA
intangible assets for the both years ended 31 December 2021 and =T —HILFE RRAEERRBETLE
2020. EWEREEE -

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REtE N B RS

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E-—F —E-TF

t+=A=+-B| t=ZA=t—H

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT

Cost of investment in unlisted associates FE | B & A B E A 251,115 93,569
Share of post-acquisition profit or loss and other comprehensive

income or expenses, net of dividends received

DERBRERMEMEEREHFAX - HRERERE 13,392 (18,753)
Impairment loss recognised & &R EE1E (62,866) (72,863)
201,641 1,953

FRFNBRL (RE) ARAF » 2021 3 @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. RERE N RV RER (&)
(Continued)
Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of the RIEMR - NEESEE A RMNFEN
reporting period are as follow: s -

Places of Proportion of ownership
registration/ interests held
Name of associate operation by the Group Principal activity

i AEEBFEN

BENTEN BRI FrERR Sl TEXRE

Visiondigi (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC N/A 30.85% Manufacture and sale of closed
(“Visiondigi Shanghai”)* H FiE A circuit television

FERERARMARAR ([ LBRE]) HENHERBRER

Jiangsu Sunny Medical Equipments Co., Ltd.* The PRC 31.00% 31.00% Manufacture and sale of medical

LErse FEERMAMR A A F instrument business

HENHEBRBRFER
SCIVAX Co., Ltd. (“SCIVAX")* Japan 14.26% 18.30% Research and development of
SCIVAX k=t &7t ([SCIVAX]) B advanced nanotechnology

fT 5T R PR 3 S A R Bl

WL A — N ERAERBR A A The PRC 25.00% 25.00% Research and development of
WA —HBRAREER AT i optical products
MERFAEXBER

SITERETIRERO(BERER) (‘'V Fund”) The PRC 16.41% 16.41%  Equity Investment

RIKTZAETRERL (BERERE) ((VES]) FE PR g

MMAMEEIREREEBEE(BRAE) The PRC 15.63% N/A  Equity Investment

TN BB ER BB (BRER) H TER RERE

mMNEERERESRER(BRAR) The PRC 52.00% N/A  Equity Investment

MM EREREGRLE(BRER) H TNER BRERE

*  The English names of the above entities established in the PRC and * RHBERBEARKYA TR HTE
Japan are translated for identification purpose only. BERERATE  EEZR -

# These associates were established during the current year, which are # ZEBERARTRANFEHMBKSL  FE2HR
mainly engaged in equity investment in the optoelectronic and relevant ERERBEEZERERE -

industries.
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Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(Continued)

During the current period, the dormant and fully impaired associate
named Visiondigi Shanghai has been deregistered. The cost of
the investment RMB23,135,000, net off the share of results of
RMB13,138,000 and the impairment loss of RMB9,997,000 in
the previous years resulted in insignificant gain recognised in this
reporting period.

V Fund has been reclassified from financial assets at FVTPL to
an associate since 1 September 2021, when the Group is able to
exercise significant influence over V Fund. The carrying amount of
investment in V Fund reclassified from financial assets at FVTPL is
RMB74,641,000.

On 10 May 2021, the Group entered into a Limited Partnership
Agreement with several third party independent investors to
establish MM AMFEEIRERE SR EE(BRERE) with the
total subscription amount RMB960,000,000 and the Group
will subscribe 15.63% of the total interests in the amount of
RMB150,000,000, in order to invest into companies from
optoelectronics and other relevant industries. As at 31 December
2021, RMB106,040,000 has been subscribed by the Group. As
the Group has significant influence over the management and the
operation of the fund, the investment is classified and accounted
for as an associate accordingly.

18. REtE QX R MR ()

NAER  BEFXEE T2 REMNEE
RAI LR FHE REXEAARY
23,135,000 cHIBRBEFEHHHEEA
R®¥13,138,000t R BEEEAREK
9,997,000 7T 28 Bl 2 ¥ 25 HA ) M 2R 9 WL e
WAREK °

BT —FAA—BUR  VESDHRREK
AREFABRENEREESN OB A
LA ERAKERAHVESELE

FEN  RBELAEFABRENERE
EENORNVESRERAEASARYE
74,641,0007T °

RZEZ—FHATH AEEEFTE
=HBNIREEI VARG BHE - KL
mMMNAINGEZERERESEREE(BERE
%) BREeFE/ARMI60,000,000
T AEBEB LS E AR 150,000,000
TTRE15.63%MMBIEZ  EERENX
BEHMABRTENQ R  c RZT=—
F+ZA=1+—0 A5ERBARE
106,040,0007C - R AREEEHZE R H
ERENREBEEBEATE  ZIREBERD
BIWARAS—REEQA ©

RTRERE (RE) R AT « 2021 F3H @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

19. DEFERRED TAXATION 19. IE ZE B 1E
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement REAMBIRRAKRBNESME - & TIRT
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities MEBEEERBBDLCHEE - BIEMB@mS
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax BHRIEERIBASROTAOT ¢

balances for financial reporting purposes:

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
. TS
+t=A=+—-8B| T=A=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Deferred tax assets &R TH & &= (255,651) (207,332)
Deferred tax liabilities #EEFHE & 1,015,890 888,809
760,239 681,477
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) ERRNEFBEERIEBEE (BE) KRA
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior FEMBTEEEHHNOT
years:

Withholding | Allowance
tax on for
undistributed | inventories Deferred
profit from and ECL subsidy | Accelerated Accrued
the PRC provision income | depreciation bonus Others

RERRER
TEASE | BEHEH 13
NERSB | BREE | #REA mEAE | EiRe St L
RMB'000 |  RMB'000 |  RMB'000 RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 |  RMB'000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR | ARRTR | ARRTT | ARBTT | AR®TR

At 1 January 2020

WZE-F&-H—H 120,532 (57,385) (9,865) 541,622 (56,112) 14,866 553,658
Charge (Credit) to profit or loss (Note 9)

REEFETA (F15) (Fi5E9) 25,205 (33,971) 1,544 170,504 (41,407) 2,595 124,470
Charge to other comprehensive income

AR EEKE - - - - = 3,349 3,349
At 31 December 2020

RZE-ZF+-A=1—H 145,737 (91,356) (8,321) 712,126 (97,519) 20,810 681,477
Charge (Credit) to profit or loss (Note 9)

REBEFETA (F15) (Fi559) 11,634 (20,576) (18,358) 97,876 1,778 5,912 78,266
Charge to other comprehensive income

AR EEKE - - - - = 496 496
At 31 December 2021

RZZE-_—F+-A=1+—-H 157,371 (111,932) (26,679) 810,002 (95,741) 27,218 760,239
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #;Z.

19. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

20

As at 31 December 2021, the deferred tax liability amounting to
RMB157,371,000 (31 December 2020: RMB145,737,000) was
provided in respect of the temporary differences attributed to the
PRC undistributed profits to the extent exceeding the investment
plan which the Directors of the Company decided to distribute.
The Group has determined that the remaining portion of the profits
derived from those PRC operating subsidiaries will be retained
by those subsidiaries and not distributed in the foreseeable
future, since the Group is in a position to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences, and it is probable that such
differences will not reverse nor be subject to withholding tax in the
foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses of approximately RMB682,8328,000 (2020:
RMB494,138,000) available for offset against future profits.
The tax losses arising from the PRC non high-tech subsidiaries
of RMB144,435,000 (2020: RMB70,813,000) can be carried
forward for maximum of five years and will expire during 2022
to 2026 (2020: 2021 to 2025) while the tax losses arising from
the PRC high-tech subsidiaries of RMB473,504,000 (2020:
RMB381,594,000) can be carried forward for maximum of ten
years and will expire during 2022 to 2031 (2020: 2021 to 2030)
according to Caishui [2018] No. 76. which has extended the
expiration period from five years to ten years. Other tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The deposits are paid for construction of factory buildings,
acquisition of plants and equipment located in the PRC and other
regions for the expansion of the Group’s production plants.

f—?A BA TSR B AL

—F - A=1—HIFE

i7i

19 3EFEBLE (4])

20

R-_TE-_—F+_HA=+—H K&EH
LA B B R o B R B ) = R AR
EERBEEEREAR®K157,371,000
T(ZE-_FFE+_-_A=+—H8: AR
145,737,0007T) * 22 BEBBAAFE
ERENEzREHENEE - AEEE
AERBZSETRHEERBRARNFEZ
BTIHIBEHZEMNBRARRE BT
RABERENEROE  AANEEEHIE
HlR TR E AR RS ER  BZE
ZES R A] B R 1] T8 R /9 5 3k B (Bl sk 7B
TEBFRIE o

RIBEHR  AEEBAAREAREBELY
AR 682,828,000 (ZEZFF : AR
#494,138,0007T ) A] fit AR 88 R R
F o HpBIFE S FEATH B A B E AR T IE
EE A ARE144,435,000c (—E =&
F: AR¥70,813,0007T) TEA %£$
N TER - —F% A=
:§:§¢=:§:—¢§f2f£¢)
I - MR B & B AR EENT
HEE A ARE 473,504,000 (=T =F
£ AR#381,594,0007T) © AIRHEZ+
FRESE - D EEARB IR T [2018]76 9%
NHAFEE+F  BRZT__FF=
E=—F(ZZT_TF  —_E-_—FFE_F
=TF) R - R BEEEER B
L °

MUBYE - HBERRES
XN ERE

AEEREZHEETARKBLRHEH

Ko EL A 3 158 B M B 2 AR A 1 L AR EE A 2R
R RS -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

21.EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BAREF AHRMEE K
HfEm T A

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
. TS

+t=A=+—-8B| T=A=1+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R

Unlisted equity investments FF i &

178,762 134,609

The unlisted equity investments represent the Group’s equity
interests in private entities. The Directors of the Company have
elected to designate these investments in equity instruments as
at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term fluctuations
in these investments’ fair value in profit or loss would not be
consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding these investments
for long-term purposes and realising their performance in the long
run.

During the current year, the Group made a new equity investment
measured as equity instruments at FVTOCI amounting to
RMB40,849,000 (2020: RMB100,000) and the fair value gain in the
amount of RMB2,808,000 (2020: RMB18,977,000), net off with
the recognition of related deferred tax liabilities of RMB496,000
(2020: RMB3,349,000) was recognised in FVTOCI reserve.

22. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED

COST

During the current year, all debt instruments reached maturity and
were redeemed accordingly.

As at 31 December 2021, the total carrying amount of the debt
instruments is nil (31 December 2020: RMB52,823,000).
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REAAENEHEH I FEARERE
HENFHARSTRENAREIMEER
A E R E M KRR

RAFEHRHA  AEEEL -—BHFHOR
BIRE  UEAREFAEMEERE
M= T A=/ ARK40,849,0007T
(ZZ2=ZFF : ARM%100,0007T) ' M
ARnERE (NEEREEEEHEESRE
ARB496,000C (BT 4 : AR#
3,349,0007T)) ARM 2,808,000 (=&
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

BRANEFTABENEHME

E

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
+=A=+—H| +t=ZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETIT

Current assets
mENEE

Fund investments (Note a)

EeRE (Mizta) 283,132 282,711
Unlisted financial products (Note b)
I ETerEm (FEEb) 7,992,170 8,197,475
Debt instruments (Note c)
EB T A (fistc) 38,841 -
8,314,143 8,480,186
Non-current assets
EMENEE
Debt instruments (Note c)
BB TH (fiztc) - 72,884
Equity investments (Note d)
MR & (Misrd) 19,518 133,352
19,518 206,236
Notes: B 5E -
(a) Fund investments (a) E&®E
The Group entered into several contracts to purchase fund units REFE -—REBMEBERRE TAaONE
(the “Fund”) with a financial institution, which were accounted for as BEESEBEMN([EL2])  RYPERKE

financial assets as FVTPL on initial recognition. As at 31 December
2021, the fair value of the Fund is United State Dollar (“USD”)
44,408,000 (31 December 2020: USD43,328,000) per the investment
statement of the financial institution, equivalent to RMB283,132,000
(81 December 2020: RMB282,711,000). The fair value gain in the
amount of USD1,080,000, equivalent to RMB6,886,000 (2020:
RMB22,199,000) was recognised in profit or loss in the current year.

FIER AR B ABENSBMEE - N=
T-—F+-—A=+—H RESHHEE
I ERE - ELH AN ER44,408,000
ET([ER)(ZE-ZEE+=-_A=+—
H :43,328,000%7) ' HERARK
283,132,000t (ZZE=_FEF+_-_A=+—
B : AR%282,711,0007T) ° AEFERIE

mPRRARBER=EEA1,080,000%
T (HERARB6,886,000T) (ZZE=F
F: AR¥22,199,0007T) °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Unlisted financial products

During the current year, the Group entered into several contracts of
unlisted financial products with banks. The unlisted financial products
are managed by related banks in the PRC to invest principally in
certain financial assets including bonds, trusts and cash funds, etc.
The unlisted financial products have been accounted for financial
assets at FVTPL on initial recognition of which the return of the
unlisted financial products was determined by reference to the
performance of the underlying government debt instruments and
treasury notes and as at 31 December 2021, the expected return rate
stated in the contracts ranges from 1.78% to 4.60% (31 December
2020: 2.15% to 3.95%) per annum.

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the fair value change
of the unlisted financial products is insignificant in the current year.

Debt instruments

During the current year, the Group disposed a debt instrument at the
proceed of RMB32,427,000 (2020: RMB81,668,000). The remaining
debt instruments will be redeemed in the coming year.

The loss on the fair value change of the remaining debt instruments
amounting to RMB193,000 (2020: gain of RMB47,000) was
recognised in the profit or loss in the current year.

Equity investments

The Group’s equity investments in several partnership enterprises
amounting to RMB19,518,000 (31 December 2020: RMB133,352,000)
were classified as financial assets at FVTPL. Since 1 September 2021,
the investment in V Fund with the carrying amount of RMB74,641,000
was reclassified as interests in an associate. During the current year,
a fair value loss of RMB8,151,000 (2020: gain of RMB32,773,000)
was recognised in the profit or loss.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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EFF ABZENERE

MO

(&)
FLEmEMER
NAFEHR - NREBERTERE T IE

EHEREMAHN - ZFFLTEHEM
HPENEBRTER  TERENE
Z GERERCESFLETEREE - 3F

theREMENTERECINERAA
Bt ABHRNEREE RNk LTE

BMEMNERBEEBARNELS TAKE
BEEHFNEBET R-_T-_—F+=A
=+—H AOFMENFERFRFEN
o .78%i4.60%2&ﬁ (ZE=ZF+=HA
=1+—H:215%=3.95%2H) °

ARFEBEERR  FLMEBMERNAR
BEEHRAFELTERK -

BEEITH

RAFEEHM  AEEHRE—BEEL
B Fr8EIEAARES2,427,0007T (=
—ZT4F : AR¥E81,668,0007T) ° % FHIE

BTAKET—FEEMD -

BTEEILANAAEEZHEEAAR
#193,000 L (ZZE—_ZTF : W AR
47,00070) * RAFEEBSENER °

RERE

AEERZREELESEAARE
19,518,000 L (ZE=FEF+=-_A=+—
B : AR%133,352,0007T) HIAR R & 1
PEBEARBEFABENSHREE - B
—TE_—FNA—HE VESKEEEES
AR®ET74,641,000 R EWET LR
R—REE QAN EZ - AFEHRERE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

24.INVENTORIES 24178
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E-—F —E-T4F
+t=ZA=+—B | t=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Raw materials FR##} 1,510,395 1,126,857
Work in progress =24 i 202,365 193,666
Finished goods %k 3,769,098 4,462,548
5,481,858 5,783,071
25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. 8 5% R A BB RERAN
AND PREPAYMENT M

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E-—F —E-FF

t=A=+-8| +=A=+-R

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT

Current assets "B EE

Trade receivables & 5 fE UK IA 5,730,277 6,888,146
Less: allowance for expected credit losses i : TEHIZ B E 18 E (95,625) (95,908)
5,634,652 6,792,243
Bill receivables fEUZ 1% 1,009,636 756,530
Loan receivables (Note) FEU & 7k (Ff5E) 142,829 164,998
Other receivables and prepayment £ fth f& Uz I8 K F8 1+ 2008
Value added tax and other tax receivables [ 3% (& 51 Kz E fth fE UL i 18 119,284 92,948
Advance to suppliers £t & pa 7R 110,068 77,578
Interest receivables F&F| & 130,416 54,277
Prepaid expenses FB{fF 2 145,316 119,584
Utilities deposits and prepayment A F 3= %124 R IB 2B 41,429 75,561
Advances to employees 2+ {& 8 718 88,915 68,701
Others Hfit 25,840 9,605
661,268 498,254
Total trade and other receivables and prepayment
B 5 K E th JE W R IE R BT RUIB B R 7,448,385 8,212,025
Note: The Group provides fixed-rate loans with a term from one month Misk © AL RE D EE R/ NA RS
to one year to local individuals and small enterprises in the PRC. HRAE—FEAZ—FHNEEMEER -
All loans are either backed by guarantees and/or secured by FTA BRI RER TR sk R FE
collaterals. R
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. B 5 & H fth R SRR IE K T A
AND PREPAYMENT (Continued) I ()

The Group allows a credit period of average 90 days to its trade
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for credit loss presented based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period, which approximated the

respective revenue recognition dates.

AEEHETEEZEFP FHIOORNEE
Hle AT RRmERRERERA (BEH
MY R B RS ) 27 WE SRR
(FRREEEERER) WRE DT

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

—E-—F e e 23

+=ZA=+—B| +tZH=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AREFTT

Within 90 days 90K AR 5,540,795 6,599,719
91 to 180 days 91 =180k 92,903 191,585
Over 180 days 180K M £ 954 939
5,634,652 6,792,243

The credit period of bill receivables is 90 to 180 days. Aging of bill
receivables based on the issue date at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

EREZENEEHRIOE180K - NIRE
HIRER BT AN RKREERENOT

31/12/2021
—_E_—F

+t=A=+-~8

31/12/2020
—E-FF
F=E=4F—FE
RMB’000
ARETFIT

RMB’000
ARBT R

Within 90 days 90K LA 927,195 647,049
91 to 180 days 91 £180K 82,441 109,481
1,009,636 756,530

All bills received by the Group are with a maturity period of less
than one year.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

26

AND PREPAYMENT (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB50,024,000 (31 December 2020: RMB31,818,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
nil (31 December 2020: nil) has been past due 90 days or more.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
and bill receivables for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 are set out in Note 36(b).

TIME DEPOSITS/PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS/SHORT TERM FIXED
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group deposited
RMB500,000,000 time deposits with several banks in the PRC.
These time deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from 3.85%
to 4.18% (31 December 2020: 3.85% to 4.18%) per annum. The
remaining maturity period of these time deposits is more than one
year and are therefore classified as non-current assets.

The Group pledged certain of its bank deposits to banks as
security for letters of guarantee and the pledged bank deposits
carry fixed interests rates ranging from 1.80% to 3.50% (31
December 2020: at 1.35%) per annum.

Short term fixed deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from
1.20% to 1.90% (31 December 2020: 1.92% to 3.15%) per
annum. Short term fixed deposits have original maturity dates less
than one year and therefore classified as current assets.

Bank balances, which represent saving accounts and deposits,
carry interest at market saving rates ranging from 0.30% to 1.70%
(81 December 2020: at 0.30%) per annum.

25

26

H fth B UK IE R TR

R_ZFE-_—F+_A=+—H A£EZ
SERFELEHEIER RS BHE AN
“REEAAREES50,024,000L (ZF =
TE+-_A=+—H: ARK¥31,818,000
T0) MBS A - RELEi&A T @ WE (=T
—TF+-_F=+—8 : &) afzEali
QORI E ©

EHREMERFEREREEEE_Z
—FR_E_TF+_A=+—HILHF
ERVRE B E R M FE36(b) ©

SRR DERRTE

R RBERER S RIT
FBRREE

\

HE-_EZ-_—+-A=+—HIEE
AEETFABRFRORITHEHRTRE
AR #500,000,0007C ° &€ 877 R E
EEFMERNT3.85%E4.18% 2H (ZT =
TE+-"H=+—H :3.85%%4.18%) °
ZEEHTERNG TR BHARBGE—F
Ao B AEREEE °

AREEERRTEFEE TRTERIEE
RHER R BSEBETEREEEF
RENT1.80%E3.50% 2 H (ZE_F4F
+=—A=+—H :1.35%) ¢

RHTEBHTFRENT1.20%21.90% 2
(ZE2=TF+-_A=+—H :1.92% =
3.15%) R [E & F F K52 o BAIEHF
FREBMBIR—F EAMEIERRBE
g_o

RITHEBIERERPAER BN T
0.30%E1.70% 2 (=T _ZFF+ = A
=+—H : 0.30%) TG HEFRERE
TR o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 2I.{THEERMEEREE
LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group held certain RI|EBR  NEBRBE THEARFE
derivatives classified as held for trading and not under hedge BERREHRSHEARENITETAEN
accounting as follows: T
Liabilities
g%
31/12/2021 31/12/2020 31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—B--F bt = —T-2F
+=B=+—-8 |tZA=+—8 |[+=A=+-H |+=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT AR®F AREFT
Foreign currency forward contracts & H9NE A 47 27,120 17,657 41,321 9,865
Foreign currency options contracts SMNEHI#EA 4) - 3,650 4,087 96,805
Foreign exchange swap contracts SME# 14 4 117 - 95 -
Total 4% 27,237 21,307 45,503 106,670
Less: current portion i : ENHiE %
Foreign currency forward contracts & HISNE & 4] 27,120 17,657 36,264 5,083
Foreign currency options contracts SMNEHIEA 4) - 3,650 4,087 96,805
Foreign exchange swap contracts SME# 14 4 117 - 95 -
27,237 21,307 40,446 101,888
Non-current portion 3EEI#i & 5 - = 5,057 4,782

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

?.v'?\AEﬂ TR R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had entered into the
following foreign currency forward contracts, foreign currency
options contracts and foreign exchange swap contracts:

Foreign currency forward contracts

The Group entered into several USD/RMB foreign currency
forward contracts with banks in the PRC in order to manage the

A.TEEHEEREE (H)

aT_LJ«/\TL,Hﬂ7|\|::. ,H’U WE,HME.E/:,\%@&
SNEFR ER G 4D -

EHIESH

AEEDBPBEBRTRIZLE TETLA
REHNEMINESH UEEREBEHIN

Group’s foreign currency risk.

Receiving
currency

B M

Selling
currency

BEHE®

EE [\ gz o

Weighted average

Contract Series W USD33,750,000 RMB233,051,625
BHZRFIW 33,750,000 ¢ AER#233,051,6257T
Contract 5 USD90,000,000 RMB594,738,000
B#5 90,000,000% 7T AR #594,738,0007T
Contract 6 USDB0,000,000 RMB396,540,000
a#6 60,000,000% 10 AE#396,540,0007T
Contract 7 USD26,400,000 RMB173,313,360
=xard 26,400,000 7T AR#178,313,3607T
Contract 8 USD50,000,000 RMB322,940,000
A48 50,000,000% T AR #322,940,0007C
Contract 9 USD9,000,000 RMB58,478,400
A#9 9,000,000% 7T AR #58,478,4007T
Contract 10 USD7,600,000 RMB49,231,280
&410 7,600,000% 7T AE#49,231,2807T
Contract 11 USD29,000,000 RMB186,719,400
AH11 29,000,000% T AER#186,719,4007T
Contract Series 12 USD115,000,000 RMB745,561,400
AWR12 115,000,000% 7T AE#745,561,4007T
Contract Series 13 USD50,000,000 RMB327,996,000
AHZE13 50,000,000% 7T AR#327,996,0007T
Contract 14 USD20,800,000 RMB134,266,080
B84 20,800,000% T AE#134,266,0807T

Foreign currency options contracts

Maturity date forward exchange rate
38A MRS ELER
Semi-annually till USD:RMB
18 January 2023 from 6.82 to 6.99
TEHRZ ETRAR6.8226.99
—Z=5—H+\H
15 June 2022 USD:RMB:6.61
T FATHEA ETRARE : 6.61
15 June 2022 USD:RMB:6.61
T -FXA+EA ETAARE : 6.61
22 February 2022 USD:RMB:6.56
“R-F-AZ+ZH ETHARY : 6.56
29 June 2022 USD:RMB:6.46
“R-ZFRAZTAB ETHARE : 6.46
11 January 2022 USD:RMB:6.50
“ZE-—f-A+-H ETHARE : 6.50
13 January 2022 USD:RMB:6.48
“ZE-_f-A+=H ETHARY - 6.48
25 January 2022 USD:RMB:6.44
“Z-—4—-A-t+hH ETRARE 644
Monthly till USD:RMB
27 June 2022 from 6.46 to 6.55
BAZ-Z__f EHARY6.46%6.55
~NAZt+H
Monthly till USD:RMB
25 March 2022 from 6.55 to 6.57
BAZ-Z__% ETHARE6.55%6.57
=ZRA=+®A
9 February 2022 USD:RMB:6.46
“E--f-ANA ETRARE : 6.46
HEHEEN

The Group entered into several USD/RMB foreign currency options
contracts with banks in the PRC in order to manage the Group’s
foreign currency risk.

AEEDBPEBORTRIZLE TETLA
REHIMNEHESL - LWEEREBEHNIN
PEE [\ gz o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Continued)
Foreign currency options contracts (Continued)

The Group is required to transact with the banks for designated
notional amount on each of the valuation dates specified within
the respective contracts (“Valuation Date”).

At each Valuation Date, the reference rate which represents
the spot rate as specified within the respective contracts shall
be compared against the strike rates (upper and lower)/barrier
rate as specified within the respective contracts, and the Group
may receive from/pay to the bank an amount as specified in the
contracts if certain conditions specified within the respective
contracts are met.

21.

TEEMEEREE (F)

SNEMESH (F)

AR EBREA D FTIEE R E B 8 (45
EEH)) RIS S ERRSRITEST
%5 -

REMGERS  2ZER (BEAKMEE
MBREER) BREQOMIEENTEER
(ERETR),PIEERELL R - BEE
HERWMIEESR THRENBRAT - AR
B AT R AERERITHRER XN ZE A N
TEHEFE o

Extracts of details of foreign currency options contracts from the RZEZ—F+ZHA=1T—8  8BX¥F
respective contracts outstanding as at 31 December 2021 are as BEXNINERESAONFERENT -

follows:

Notional amount
EREH
USD’000
ELTT

Strike/barrier rates

76/ PEEXR

Ending settlement date

EREE B

Contract G 24,000 USD:RMB at 1:6.4630 24 January 2022
BHG EITH ARY1:6.4630 T _F—-HA-+@mA
Contract H 40,000 USD:RMB at 1:6.3893 25 January 2022

B HIH ELH ARY1:6.3893 —E__f—H-+HH
Contract | 30,000 USD:RMB at 1:6.5041 26 January 2022
=R ETTH ARY1:6.5041 —E__F—HZ1KH
Contract J 30,000 USD:RMB at 1:6.4964 26 January 2022
RN/ EL i ARY1:6.4964 B _F—HZ+KH
Contract K 44,710 USD:RMB at 1:6.3925 23 February 2022

B HK EITHARK1:6.3925 —E-—HF-F-+=H
Contract L 35,000 USD:RMB at 1:6.4785 23 February 2022
BHIL EILHARKA1:6.4785 T —F-A-+=H
Contract M 30,000 USD:RMB at 1:6.4025 24 March 2022
EHIM FEITH ARM1:6.4025 —T-_—HF=F=+1+mH
Contract N 59,000 USD:RMB at 1:6.4424 28 March 2022

A #HIN ELHARYA:6.4424 —E-_—H#=ZH—+)\B
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Continued)

Foreign exchange swap contracts

The Group entered into several Euro (“EUR”)/USD and HKD/USD
foreign exchange swap contracts with banks in the PRC in order
to manage the Group’s foreign currency risk.

Receiving currency Selling currency

BrLE®

DL

A.TEEHEEREE (H)

HERBEN

AEECEPEMRITAIZLE TEOUT ([B
RDAXTRABETHETNIINERERE
%) AEEAKERINER -

Contract A USD30,038,473 EUR26,442,039
EHA 30,038,473% T 26,442 0398 T
Contract B USD30,000,000 HKD233,928,000
548 30,000,000 7T 233,928,000/ 7T
Contract C USD30,000,000 HKD233,967,000
EH#C 30,000,000 T 233,967,000/8 7T

The Group has entered certain derivative transactions that are
covered by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association
Master Agreements (“ISDA Agreements”) signed with a bank.
These derivative instruments are not offset in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the ISDA Agreements are in
place with a right of set off only in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy so that the Group currently has no legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts.

—ZT-—FxA=1+N\H

Maturity date Strike Rate
FHA THEER
7 January 2022 EUR:USD: 1.14
T —HF—fA+H BITHET - 1.14
1 June 2022 USD:HKD: 7.80
T _FRXH-H ETTHAT - 7.80
28 June 2022 USD:HKD: 7.80

EILRBIT : 7.80

AEEEFAYETIETARS - BIRTT
BRAIWMBEBRERARTETABSEBHE
((EREARITETABERBR]) ¥
%EXp c ARBREHARITETAG S
mipEAE  BEURERBERFE &N
EERWENBERTITREHEE AR
B B AR S E R IEROA A R
HIBITRER Bt REFETETAT AR
RAMBRRRAEH -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. B 5 Rk Hfth B FRIE
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented NTARBEHRREREZANE ZER
based on the invoice date and note payables presented based on FIERERETHNENZRIRARRDT

the issue date at the end of reporting period.

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—g=-% i
t=A=+-8| t=A=+-H

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETIT

Current liabilities F B & &
Trade payables & 5 &S 5 IE

Within 90 days 90K AN 4,262,386 5,525,012
91 to 180 days 91 F 180K 742,744 829,036
Over 180 days 180K LA £ 355 495
Accrued purchases FE:TEREEZE 925,738 804,832
Total trade payables and accrued purchases & 5 1 ZE & EFT R IB 28 4258 5,931,223 7,159,375
Note payables J& =&
Within 90 days 90K AR 1,336,260 1,022,991
91 to 180 days 91 F 180K 385,024 312,985
Over 180 days 180K A £ 100,000 -
1,821,284 1,335,976
Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment
BEWX  MELRERMNRIE 267,891 182,910
Staff salaries and welfare payables 8 L %% K18 A et 518 1,311,836 1,222,684
Labor outsourcing payables 45 755N &~ 0 E 139,747 168,504
Payables for acquisition of patents 4 &% = 51| fEf~t FoE 40,913 45,651
Value added tax payables and other tax payables
JERHIG(E D K A B IR 113,297 341,112
Commission payables JE& {4 19,493 32,471
Interest payables JE{ 75 64,473 65,878
Rental and utilities payables B &R AR S=EEH 58,346 50,808
Others Efih 100,184 127,995
2,116,180 2,238,013
9,868,687 10,733,364

Non-current liabilities 7B & &
Long term payables = & &t Z 18
Payables for acquisition of patents 4% 8% 22 | &~ 3118 172,044 245,636

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Ba == =
28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. B 5 R H RN FIE (4F)
(Continued)
The credit period on purchases of goods is up to 180 days (2020: EmEBENEERRZA180R(ZEF
180 days) and the credit period for note payables is 90 days to F:180K) RENEEMNEERAWQKRE
365 days (2020: 90 days to 180 days). The Group has financial 365K (ZZE=FF : Q0 KE180K) ° &
risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are SEHEEREVBRRERERE - AR
settled within the credit time frame. BREAFERNMEEBRRNZA -
20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 0. 6K8E
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
=B —F —E-TF
+=ZA=+—B8| +t=A=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Advance from customers % F 214 5018 178,101 131,191
As at 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted to R-ZE-_ZTF—F—H 6HEBEAAR
RMB83,202,000. #83,202,0007T °
The contract liability is the consideration received from the ERNEEEASBEERE S WEEA B E R
customers which represents the Group’s remaining obligation BITRARFEEREREBFHRE - YW
to transfer goods to customers. All the contract liabilities at the FIBEEHABEHENRANREEINRE
beginning of the period have been realised to revenue in the WERK « WASATER » B RS BiER
reporting period and no revenue recognised in the reporting period AR TESEMAHELERNELD
from the performance obligations satisfied in previous periods. B o
S
30. BANK BORROWINGS 3. RWITBE
Unsecured &if # 31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E-—F —E-FF
t+=A=+—-HB| T=A=*+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥BT T
Guaranteed & &R 1,601,327 1,381,243
Unguaranteed &R 637,570 689,368
2,238,897 2,070,611
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

30. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are repayable*:

PSR EENREERN TR AER

0. RITEE ()

31/12/2021
—E-—F
+=HA=+—H

RMB’000
AR®TR

31/12/2020
—E-FF
m=H= H
RMB’000
ARETIT

Within one year —%F A 1,538,897 2,070,611
Within a period of more than one year but not exceeding two years
R—F A HE BB W FH HE A 700,000 -
2,238,897 2,070,611
*  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in ERREDREER GRS SERE RE
the loan agreements. E °

The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings are as follows:

AEERITEERR

T -

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

—EB-—F —EEF

+=ZA=+—-R8| t=ZA=+—A”

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R ARBTIT

Fixed-rate borrowings EEF|EEE 900,000 1,124,500
Variable-rate borrowings A £ F| & (& & 1,338,897 946,111
2,238,897 2,070,611

The range of effective interest rates per annum (which are equal to
contractual interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings are as
follows:

FMZ)EEMT

31/12/2021
—E_—F

AEERITEENERER:

& (AZRAH

31/12/2020
—E-FF

Fixed-rate borrowings & #l| R & &
Variable-rate borrowings ] % Fl| & (& &

+=HA=+—H

3.10%
0.60%-0.87%

+=ZHA=+—8
2.96%
0.85%-1.14%
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

- g =
30. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 30. RITEE (&)
The variable-rate borrowings as at 31 December 2021 and 31 R-BE-_—F+-_A=+—HE T %
December 2020 were denominated in USD which carried the FH+ZA=1+—BoENEREENET
floating-rates at London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (‘LIBOR”) plus a FHE - BRI EZHEERITREREF
premium. Z([RBBTRBERFENR]) INEET
The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated in currency AEBAHBAEREREEEUINE
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities BETEMRITEERINOT -

are set out below:

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
+=ZA=+—H | +t=ZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
USD =7t 1,338,897 946,111
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

31. LEASE LIABILITIES NHEHEERE

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E-—F —E-TF

+=A=+—H +=A=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T

Lease liabilities payable: [EfFE & & :

Within one year —%F R 46,271 43,580

Within a period of more than one year but not more than two years

HBiA—FENEBMFNHEA 28,531 37,551

Within a period of more than two years but not more than five years

HEMFENEBLFAHRREA 46,583 37,699

Within a period of more than five years i@ 1 & EIRE A 32,885 21,649
154,270 140,479

Less: amount due for settlement with 12 months shown under current liabilities

B OREIAE TSN 28 B REE /R B FIE (46,271) (43,580)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown under non-current liabilities

FRBEETAIIN1218 AR EE N T EAKIE 107,999 96,899

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to FE AR E B &/ N #E T 1538 S 5 FOR R

lease liabilities range from 4.75% to 4.90% (2020: from 4.75% to NFA475%E4.90% 2B (ZE=-F

4.90%). 4.75%%E4.90%) °

32. GOVERNMENT GRANTS/DEFERRED 2. BF®BE IEZEWA

INCOME

2021 2020
B —E-F4E

e —=< —=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBETT

Amounts credited to profit or loss during the year: SN A S5
Subsidies related to technology enhancement of production lines (Note a)

A ERERITSCE RS (Mita) 72,996 59,954

Subsidies related to research and development of technology projects (Note b)

FAira B # A (FaEb) 10,434 16,037

Incentive subsidies (Note c) #ZE)# B4 (MizEc) 128,884 65,819
212,314 141,810
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

32. GOVERNMENT GRANTS/DEFERRED
INCOME (Continued)

Deferred income related to government grants: B B & EERA ¢

Subsidies related to technology enhancement of production lines (Note a)

2 BRI S  BER A

(#&)

31/12/2021
—E_—F

+t=A=+-H

31/12/2020
—E-FF
+=—HA=+—8
RMB’000
AREF T

RMB’000
AR®BTR

EESBRITSUE AL (FiiEa) 90,573 55,945
Subsidies related to research and development of technology projects (Note b)

BoIE B A E AL (M EEb) 30,033 21,605
Subsidies related to construction of staff living facilities (Note d)

Mg S THERERMEMEL (id) 73,997 =
Total 45t 194,603 77,550
Less: current portion & : BEAEE % (6,099) (8,695)
Non-current portion FER1EREl 7 188,504 68,855

Notes:

(@

The Group received grants from the local government for the purpose
of increasing in production capacity for high-end handset lens sets
by enhancement of production lines. The amounts are deferred and
amortised over the useful lives of the relevant assets in the enhanced
production lines.

The Group received grants for reimbursement towards the costs of
research and development of certain technology projects with local
government and various parties. The amounts are deferred and
amortised over period of the respective research and development
projects.

Incentive subsidies were received from the local government in
recognition of the eminence of development of new products,
achievement of certain revenue and export volume milestones of
the Group. The subsidies were unconditional and granted on a
discretionary basis to the Group and recognised in profit or loss when
received.

The Group received grants from the local government to support the
construction and improvement of staff living facilities. The amounts
are deferred and amortised over the useful lives of the staff living
facilities.

B aE -

(@)

AREEEF T BUTRMEL - DARIBUGE
LEGRSRHTHERER %F2H
TEREEL N R B BCE EERNBREED
e FERARE S

AEEEFHT BT RBRE A
BB D RMIE B EUA - Z2F S
{ERIEW N & T 318 B B # 8 -

b 77 BT HE k22 ) 418 R A 32 A AR 52 1B B 3%
MEmM ZWRABEREREAOXER -
REBBSBREEABERTAKE IR
W ER B B R P FERR -

AEERFHTBTME - AXFHETAE
AREERENERZEEE ZZ2RER
EWRETAEREREN A ERFHA
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33. BONDS PAYABLE

On 16 January 2018, the Company issued unsecured bonds in the
amount of USD600 million at the rate of 3.75% which will be due
by 2023 to professional investors outside of the United States in
accordance with Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act. The
issuance has been completed on 23 January 2018 and the listing
of the bonds in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange became effective
on 24 January 2018.

The Company had used all of the net proceeds from the bonds for
funding capital expenditures, fulfilling working capital requirements,
refinancing existing indebtedness and other general corporate
purposes.

During the current year, interest expense of approximately
RMB153,970,000 (2020: RMB164,282,000) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

33 BB

RZZE—NF—A+8 ' ARAFRREE
BE(EHESHAIMEEIEIINBEREE
BT ZZF =4 %|81,2600,000,0003
T3 7T5EMEERES  ZBETER-ZT
—N\F—A=-+=ZHB=K " BEHFR_-F
—N\F—AZ+mBERREBB AT LW -

AAREBESFEREL 2 HFEER
AABXAS  RTLBEALEX  BA
EHERE R —RATRE -

RAFEHRE - HAR153,970,0007T
(Z=2 =% : AR¥164,282,0007T) HY
FERITNGAERNEMEEKERTP
TR o

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34, IR 2

Number

of shares Amount Equivalent to

BHEE =8 BER

Authorised: JETE :
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each at 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2021
RZEZZF+_A=+—HRZZEZ—F+=ZRA=+—H
FIREE0.108 TR AR

100,000,000,000

RMB'000
ARBTT

HKD’000
BILTT

10,000,000

Issued & fully paid: BT R :
Ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each at 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2021
R-ZE-_TF+-_A=+—HAFK-_T-_—F+-A=+—H
BREECI0E T L ER

1,096,849,700

109,685 105,163
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35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank borrowings disclosed in Note 30, lease liabilities
disclosed in Note 31 and bonds payable disclosed in Note 33 net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits
and other reserves.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the Directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
Directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts or
the repayment of existing debts.

35. B < A

e

BEEEEEAN  UBEFRAKEETE
WIFERE  ARBEEBLERKE
&% BRBRRERKEAL - AEEH
REGEEFMER -

N2

M Bk e B
e A & >1H¢F

AEENEARBHARBFR (BERH
SO WEMRITEE ~ R FEI1HHE
MEERERNMEITHENENES
(kR RBRLFEERE)) REARRRR
EihED (BREBITERA - REEMME
b6 AR o

RRBEEFFFR —RERRE - 1F
BTN —&D  AAREFEEEARK
AREBEAHBER - REARAES
M AEEREBNEE - BITH
P B2 s A7) @ﬁ%u&?‘ﬁ%ﬂ?’:iﬂaﬁfﬁﬁ%
R EEEEEARE -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. £FTH
a. Categories of financial instruments a. TRITEDHE

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
. TS

+t=A=+—-8B| T=A=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Financial assets & Fi& &

Financial assets at FVTPL I AR Bt AR @& E 8,333,661 8,686,422
Derivative financial assets $T4 4 @& E 27,237 21,307
Financial assets at amortised cost X # 5k Rzt E W2 B E &= 14,202,514 11,486,163
Equity instruments at FVTOCI 2 A R Bt AR 2 E W zmafEm TH 178,762 134,609
22,742,174 20,328,501
Financial liabilities & &4 & (&
Liabilities measured at amortised cost 1% # K ANzT E M B & 13,751,314 14,415,363
Derivative financial liabilities $T4 % &l & (& 45,503 106,670
13,796,817 14,522,033
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@l T & (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. B¥RAMEEEERBEK

policies

The Group’s financial instruments include derivative financial
assets/liabilities, trade and other receivables, amounts due
from/to related parties, financial assets at FVTPL, debt
instruments at amortised cost, equity instruments at FVTOCI,
time deposits, short term fixed deposits, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
bank borrowings, long term payables and bonds payable.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risks (foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risks

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the market risks
of foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
Market risk exposures are further measured by sensitivity
analysis. Details of each type of market risks are described as
follows:

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group undertakes certain foreign currency sales and
purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Certain of the Group’s bank balances and cash,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables,
bonds payable and bank borrowings are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities and expose to such foreign
currency risk. The Group manages its foreign currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates and utilising foreign currency forward
contracts, foreign currency option contracts and foreign
exchange swap contracts.

FEENERIABETESRE
E/AE BHREMEYRTIE &
W,/ ERTEEANTHRIA - RARER
ABENEREE HBHEKAE
MEBTLAE ZIAEFAEMER
WanEa TR EHER  EHE
BER - CEBERITER - RITER
kBE - EHREMEMNFE - RTT
fHE  REENFEREMNES -
MTANFBHENEEME - Bk
TR T AR AR SR SRR (5
PE B ~ AR E e R E M ERERE)
EFERRERBDESRER - BEIE
RBOBRRBIN T - EEERE
EERERILERE - R LEAR
HEREGEE i o

mHRER

7R 65 B 2 75 [ B B £ 2 35 AL B S A0
PE LR - AR N H A E S E R
miZRERE - FRERESNAE -
AT REETERRNFS

() SMEEE

AEBETETIINEER - AmmE
HBHMERR - NEEE TRITE
BhRE  BHREMEYIE
B 5 MhEMBEMNFIR - BAHESFNA
FIRTTREHUEREE BRI
BRI EEHER I RA R
SN LR o AN R T ) B A I K A
BRERERINESL - INEHIRE
BRI RINEER IS &) AE IR INE
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2
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. AR EEEERBER (&)
policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued) mEEkE (&)
(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued) () SMNERE ()
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currencies AR B & B S #h & BAR A NS &
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at BEEEEEREEBENERE

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities
&f&

2021 2020 2021 2020

SRo-F| ZTFF | ZB--F| ZTTF
RMB’000 RMB’000 |  RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR | ARBTIL | AR®TR | ARBTET

USD %7t 6,010,423 3,888,114 6,726,417 6,821,730
HKD 77T 389,279 59,963 8,207 1,150
Japanese Yen (‘JPY”) Bt (BT ]) 79,228 39,923 334,365 394,580
Indian Rupee (‘INR”) ENEELL ([ENEEL |) 282,471 365,975 22,660 9,226
Vietnamese Dong (‘VND”) i f& ([#r/E ) 42,744 5,247 11,311 7,766
Korean Won (‘KRW") 87T ([ 87T ]) 9,549 5,803 106,251 8,052
Sensitivity analysis BT

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation in USD, HKD, AEBWMEERBRAKBET - B
JPY, INR, VND and KRW against RMB. L B BEEL - BEERE

TTHARENEZKS -

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a TREFMAEERSINE AR
5% (2020: 5%) change in respective foreign currencies L% (ZTE_FTF : 5%) KK
against RMB. The sensitivity analysis includes only BRRE - HREDMEBRER ARG
outstanding foreign currencies denominated monetary BHINEETEERIEE - UAREH
items and adjusts their translation at the year end date for HERFEHEXRZEH5%MIED
a 5% change in foreign currency rates. B EE o

A positive (negative) number below indicates an increase THEH(BH) RESWEER
(decrease) in post-tax profit where the respective HIERINE A {ES% MBEBRTEZ
functional currencies strengthen 5% against the relevant & AIE A ORt A ) 1B 5 » fin B 2 88
foreign currencies. For a 5% weakening of the respective B A EEEYERESS - Algs
functional currencies against the relevant currencies, there BRERENEEFEERNTE
would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax

profit.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

()

(1)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continueq)

b. MEEMREEEFERBEE (&)

misER (&)

() SMNEREE (&

BREZ T ()

Profit for the year

FREF
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
USD (Note) 7t (KfzE) 30,430 124,679
HKD &7t (16,196) (2,500)
JPY HJT 10,843 15,073
INR ENEE Lt (11,042) (15,162)
VND #FEJE (1,336) 107
KRW #27¢ 4,110 96
Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure to bank eE: EEBERRERFLALBUINEE
balances, outstanding receivables, outstanding payables, THERRITERS - REEE
bank borrowings and bonds payable denominated in WHRIE - REEEMNFIE - iR
foreign currency of USD at the year end date. TREEREMNESFNRRE
Interest rate risk (i) Y

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see Note 30 for
details of these bank borrowings), lease liabilities (see
Note 31 for details of lease liabilities), time deposits,
short term fixed deposits and pledged bank deposits (see
Note 26 for details of these deposits), debt instruments
(see Note 22 for details of these debt instruments) and
bonds payable (see Note 33 for details of the bonds
payable). The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, the Group monitors interest rate
exposures and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposures should the need arise.

AEERBEENXRITEE (ZF
RITEEFIBRAMES0)  HE
AE(HEABEHBRMES)
EHEX BHERFEREREE
RRITER (REERFBRME
26) BB TR (ZEEBITAF
BRME22) AR ERMES (A
EHFFIERWT33) MEGRARE
MEER - AEE B FDRA A
REPER - AT - AEBESEE
MERERI S EE T EEEELH T
BEAMNXER o

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. ¥EREEEERBK (&)
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued) mizE R (4)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FFEEE (E

ARER B IR A A] 22 A R IR TT S ER AN R

THEE (RERITEEFBRME

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and bank

borrowings (see Note 30 for details of these bank
borrowings). The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates on
bank balances and the LIBOR arising from the Group’s
bank borrowings. The management will review the

30) MEEREREEREM KRR - &
SENRSRENREAREIEST
RIBITEBEAEENRITEEE
ERRBERTRER BN XK -
B B A AT B T KT BRI R A8

proportion of borrowings in fixed and floating rates and EpWmEREENSIEHEN -

ensure they are within reasonable range.

AEESREEREEAEOTE
BREEANERBE S ARESR
— 55 (ERE A -

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities and lease liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for both
derivatives and non-derivative instruments at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. 50
basis points (2020: 50 basis points) increase or decrease
in variable-rate bank borrowings and fixed-rate debt
instruments at FVTPL are used represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2020: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2021 would have decreased/increased by
RMB5,885,000 (2020: RMB4,331,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its variable-rate bank borrowings and fixed-rate debt
instruments at FVTPL.

6. LR TR ()
RERETERERBE (F)

mizER (&)

(i) FIFEmE (&)

AT GURE 2 4 Th IR R & AR OT
ETARFITHET AN ERRE
E o ROMIHBRRNBRE AR KRE
ENERIAEEZFHREEMR
o AN ERRITEEREAAE
T AR ENE M R &R T AN
SR ADBOEERER (T T4
SOEEER) AR KREEE S H
KRB IEA RER LAV -

W’L\ Ki*ﬁu/ﬁzd%o 18 & 2 2

ZETF - 50EEER) BE
e ERHFIE - REERE
BT —F+A=1+—HIHF
ERRBE SN ENA
R #5,885,000c (ZE T4 :
AR#4,331,00070) ' TBRHA
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@l T & (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through
its investments in unlisted financial products, fund
investments, debt instruments and equity investments as
financial assets at FVTPL, the foreign currency forward
contracts, foreign currency option contracts, and foreign
exchange swap contracts. The management considers
alternative tools to mitigate other price risk and manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risks. In addition, the Group also invested in
certain unquoted equity securities for investees operating
in several industry sectors for long term strategic purposes
which had been designated as FVTOCI. The management
closely monitors such exposure and considers hedging
such exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on
the exposure to the price risk at the reporting date. For
the sensitivity analysis of those financial assets at FVTPL,
increase (decrease) in the prices of the respective financial
assets would result in an increase (decrease) the post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2021. Sensitivity
analyses for unquoted equity securities at FVTOCI with
fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 were
disclosed in Note 36(c).

If the prices of those financial assets at FVTPL had been
5% (2020: 5%) higher/lower, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2021 would increase/
decrease by RMB354,181,000 (2020: RMB369,173,000).

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@l T & (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MkEREEBZREER (E)

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade balances individually or based on
provision matrix. In this regard, the Directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risks on liquid funds and derivative financial assets
are limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has
concentration of credit risk on its unlisted financial products at
FVTPL. The credit risk on unlisted financial products at FVTPL
is limited by the underlying assets invested by the unlisted
financial products being the PRC government related debt
instruments and treasury notes and the counterparties who
issued these unlisted financial products are banks with good
reputations.

EERBRKBER G

R-ZE-_—F+-"F=+—H K&
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)
b. BIEEKREEEERBE (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the
Group has concentration of credit risk as 23% (2020: 28%)
and 47% (2020: 51%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively. Revenue from the top five trade
debtors represent over 46% (2020: 56%) of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Directors
of the Company, the associates and the shareholders have
no interest in the customers mentioned above. The largest
five customers’ manufacturing facilities are located in the
PRC, Vietnam and India, and their principal activities are
manufacturing of smartphones and optical related products.

The Group also has concentration of credit risk on its deposits
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment as 50%
(2020: 61%) of the total deposits for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment was paid to the Group’s largest three
suppliers of property, plant and equipment. The credit risk
on the deposits paid is limited as these suppliers are large
construction enterprises and equipment suppliers in the PRC,
Hong Kong and Korea.

Other than the above, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021

EERR KR ERE (8)

BRRETEETRRITHRITERE
NBESGFEEESERRARN - A&
ESEEEETRR  TEAEEE
ESREBFEY  ZAZFHEATAAKX
BEEDAME23% (ZTZFF : 28%)
Fa71% (ZZEZFF : 51%) - HEZ
g:_¢+—ﬂz+_5¢¢§’%
BAIAAESEHBANBAGAEER
WAB46% (ZB_FF : 56%) ° &
NRIEE  BMEBARRRR ELOERR
RSz - AIAARP O AE
RN - M RkEE - BEF
BERAREEERETFRECBHEBE

[}
oA °

AEBAEEYE  #RRZHENIR
eMAXEESERRAR  FEAREE
ERAI=ZAYE - #BEREZEHRER
TNEEYE  EERXBELREZEN
50% (ZZ=ZF : 61%) - Ef&S
WEERBRER BARZSHERA
FE - BERBREOABZELER
R ER -

B EX At &SN AREL EEME
REEETER  ERAE@RARTLD
BRNZR2HFAREFZF -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR IS R R M
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:

Internal credit rating Description

A EEFR i

3%.€F T A

b.

EERRK

AEEBABED

B

Trade receivables
EZEWRE

i7i

(%)

—F - A=1—HIFE

MEEEREE B RRBEE (&)

KR faRt i (&)

EHF R EEAT

I:l/\D

Other financial assets

HttEWEE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of
KRk default and does not have any
past-due amounts
HFEFNBHRRE - BEEMA
BHIRIE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due
BRaE dates but usually settle in full
ERALERIRBERENR  BBE
REERE S
Doubtful There have been significant increases
THEER in credit risk since initial recognition
through information developed
internally or external resources
B &Nk E IR B KA A
HERIAK - EERBRARE L7
Loss There is evidence indicating the
B8 asset is credit-impaired
BRBTEELREENE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the
i debtor is in severe financial

difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

ZK%@%TH&Z@?(W@%E&?E@%

Lifetime ECL-not
credit-impaired
FHIEHEEEE -

EEERE

Lifetime ECL-not
credit-impaired
FHREBEEEE -

EEERE

Lifetime ECL-not
credit-impaired
PHIEHREEEE -

EEERE

Lifetime ECL-credit-
impaired

FHREEERE -
= ERE

Amount is written off
PR M

12m ECL
12 AR EEER

12m ECL
12EABHEEER

Lifetime ECL-not

credit-impaired

SHEHEESE -

BIEERE

Lifetime ECL-credit-

impaired

2HERMEEEE -

EERE

Amount is written off

AR MR
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. WKEKEEBEZREE (&)
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EER R &R ER S (8)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of TRFNAEBZBRNEBEEEE
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL FENERMEEMEGRNEERR
assessment:

External | Internal 2021 2020
credit credit | 12-month or Gross carrying Gross carrying
rating rating | lifetime ECL amount amount

a8 | A8 | 128Ad S -

FEFR | FEFR | 2HRAREER AREE

RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARETL

Financial assets at amortised cost

REBERATENCREE
Trade receivables 25 N/A Note b  Lifetime ECL 5,649,488 6,798,858
B o RNGE TR Hiztb  (provision matrix)
FHRBEEER
(BfEmmE)

Loss Credit»impaired 80,789 5,730,277 89,288 6,888,146

BE WREERE
Amount due from a related party 41(c) N/A Notea 12m ECL 327 327 - -
el —%EEATHE TER Mia 12(AEHEEEE
Loan receivables 25 N/A Notec  12m ECL 142,829 142,829 164,998 164,998
el ER TER e 12ARSEEESSE
Bill receivables 25 N/A Notea 12m ECL 1,009,636 1,009,636 756,530 756,530
[EREE TER Mia 12AEHEEEE
Other receivables 25 N/A Notea 12m ECL 197,685 197,685 139,443 139,443
At Y TER Mia 12ARSEEESSE
Debt instruments at amortised cost 22 BB- N/A 12m ECL - - 52,823 52,823
RRBNATENER LA BB- TNER 12ABHEEEE
Time deposits 26 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000
EBET AA+ TER  12EAREEEES
Short term fixed deposits 26 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 1,093,914 1,093,914 234,917 234,917
Sl AA+ NER 12ABHEEER
Pledged bank deposits 26 AA+ N/A  12m ECL 18,292 18,292 3,438 3,438
BEFRITER AA+ TER  12EARSEERS
Bank balances 26 AA+ N/A  12m ECL 5,604,918 5,604,918 2,841,508 2,841,508
R AA+ TER 12EARSGESER
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MkEREEBZREER (E)
policies (Continued)
=E R MR ER (&)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

B aE

Notes:

(@)

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group (@)
uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

Past due

BHREA
RMB’000
AR¥T R

HRABEERREENBAN KK
ERABmBEHFEEERRE VT
FERARE B ARG LT

Not past due/
No fixed
repayment
term
mgs
EEEERH
RMB’000
ARBT T

Total

B
RMB’000
AR®T

Amount due from a related party fEUx—HREE A LFIE - 327 327
Bill receivables fEU =i - 1,009,636 1,009,636
Other receivables b f& U 8 - 197,685 197,685

- 1,207,648 1,207,648

Not past due/

No fixed
repayment
Past due term
e
i HAFRIE 4 [ FE B R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFIT
Bill receivables & W =15 - 756,530 756,530
Other receivables H At fE I FIE = 139,443 139,443
- 895,973 895,973
(o) For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified b) HREZEKFEMS  AKSEERT
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime BB ISR E RIS 95 H B8 75 05 A
ECL. Except for debtors with credit-impaired, the Group FEE2HEHEESENBIERE -
determines the expected credit loss on these items by using a REREERBENEFAN  XEEH
provision matrix, grouped by debtor’s aging. ERREER (REFARKSH) B
EZEHEENEHEEER -
(c) The Group provides fixed-rate loans with a term from one month () AEEMFTEEMEE R NP ER

to one year to local individuals and small enterprises in the PRC.
All loans are either backed by guarantees and/or secured by
collaterals. The credit risk of loan receivables is low.

HHARS—EAZ-—FHEENXE
Ko IAEERBBRERIFR,HH
HIER - BREFRNEERRTS °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, except for the
debtors with credit-impaired the Group uses debtors’ aging
to assess the impairment for its customers which are with
common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with
the contractual terms. The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables
which are assessed collectively based on provision matrix
with lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). Debtors with credit-
impaired with gross carrying amount of RMB80,789,000 as at
31 December 2021 (2020: RMB89,288,000) were assessed
individually.

b. M¥EMREEBERBE (&)

EERR KR ERE (8)

ERAEEEERBREEN —HH
B 3R (= BB E A JE R IE AN - K&
EFEABEBANKRRTGEERS AR
B AzSEFABHERRRER (R
MEFIRES NGRS A B B
HERES) o TRIEMHBEBMERNE
ERBEERBEBERNEHAERE
EER(EEERE) AED BTG
ME ZEBGRIENTEREESENE
Bem=—T=—F+=-A=1+—8"
HRERmEAARES0,789,0007T (= F
—T4F . AR¥89,288,0007T) IEE
REERAREB LA o

Gross Impairment

Average carrying loss

loss rate amount allowance

FHEE=E AREE | BESERE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBT T

1-90 days 1E90X 0.02% 5,541,737 942
91 — 120 days 91 £120K 0.46% 80,209 368
121 — 180 days 121 £180K 0.56% 13,136 74
More than 180 days 180K LA £ 93.38% 14,406 13,452
5,649,488 14,836
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

3%.¢RITH(E&E)

b. MEEMREEEFERBEE (&)

EERRFRERE (&)

Gross Impairment

Average carrying loss

loss rate amount allowance

T EEE MEREE | REEERE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARETIT

1 -90 days 1£290X 0.01% 6,600,315 596
91 — 120 days 91 £120:K 0.20% 177,932 363
121 — 180 days 121 E 180K 0.78% 14,126 110
More than 180 days 180 KA _E 85.52% 6,485 5,546
6,798,858 6,615

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
provided RMB8,221,000 (2020: reversal of RMB6,499,000)
impairment allowance for trade receivables based on
the provision matrix and reversed RMB3,039,000 (2020:
RMB5,719,000) impairment allowance for credit impaired
debtors, respectively.

BEBREDENEHEANBHRS AN
ELERENERREFTMNE TS REKA
HB N MEFHATEEERETRG - 2
PHEEEEMRS  UBRERBER
AR AR B RLE SFEY

BE-_ZT-—F+-_A=+—RHItFE -
NEBERBEEERELYEKE S HIBEIE
AR#8,221,000 L (ZE 4 : HEA
K #®6,499,0007T) KR EEE - WHEE
AR®3,089,000t (ZZEZFF : AR
#5,719,0007T) HY15 ERVE B AR B B
1 o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEBZERBER (E)
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERRMRET S (8)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that TERBIERBEERTETERNE S
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified W SRIEZHEREEERE “@J
approach.

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total

2HAMEEEE | 2HRAMEESE

(BEEREAE) | (WREEREE) #E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT ARETTT

As at 1 January 2020 R=—FE=_ZF—H—H 17,478 95,007 112,485
Changes due to financial assets recognised

at 1 January 2020:
AR—Z_ZF-—A—BBRANSHEENZD :

— Transfer to credit-impaired

- BREEERE (4,364) 4,364 -

— Impairment losses reversed

— BEURERE (13,102 (5,719) (18,821)

— Write-offs

— M sH - (4,364) (4,364)
New financial assets originated 4 % it & & 6,603 - 6,603

As at 31 December 2020
R-E-EF+-A=+—H 6,615 89,288 95,903

Changes due to financial assets recognised
at 1 January 2021:
AR—ZE-_—F— A BRINERMEENED :

— Impairment losses reversed

— BEIRERE (6,544) (3,039) (9,583)

— Write-offs

— M sH - (5,460) (5,460)
New financial assets originated E4£# & @& & 14,765 = 14,765

As at 31 December 2021
R-ZE-_—%+=-HA=+—H 14,836 80,789 95,625
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@l T & (&)

b. MEEMREEEFERBEE (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that debtors is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtors has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings.

Liquidity risk

The Group has net current assets amounting to approximately
RMB16,115,878,000 at 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: RMB12,218,409,000) and has low exposure to liquidity
risk of being unable to raise sufficient funds to meet its
financial obligations when they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities and
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period from the year end
date to their maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, based
on floating interest rate or exchange rates (where applicable)
prevailing at the year end date.

EERRFRERE (&)

AEEREEMBREBABREE
8 75 IR B % 4R 3] R GR O B R 2R B
W sHEZ IR 2 5 EUEIR (B E A
ERERKCEARERTFH) o

MEVE SRR

AEFER—_ZE_—F+-_A=+—HH
mENEEFELHARK16,115,878,000
T(ZE-ZEF+-_A=+—H: AR
#12,218,409,0007T) * MAKRAEE

EHESEEIHERABENRDES
B iR E (K o

REEBRBDECRAR  AREEER
MEEEERREANRERREE
BHE  AFASENZEEES LR
HRSRETRENTE -

TRBIIENE LA ST B T
BEREEINENYAEECRE
BRUFEEEMITESRE BN
o RRFREECBEALRERAN
IHFRKER (MEA) HREHA

HWREME °

RERERE (RE) HRAF « 2021 5% @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEBZERBER (E)
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) mEEERER (B&)
Liquidity tables TEE LK

Weighted
average | Ondemand Total
effective | orless than 3 months 1 year to 5years to | undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1 year 5 years 10 years amount amount

i 337 L
RRAE AR | ZBARE-F | -FERF | IFETE | AHRAR REE
RMB'000 |  RMB'OO0 |  RMB'000 |  RMB'000 [  RMB'000 |  RMB'000
ARBTR [ ARMTR | ARMTR | AR®TR | ARBTR [ ARMTR

As at 31 December 2001 K =E=—41=F=7—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities 74 £REE

Trade and other payables Z5 £t B 508 6,774,717 743,099 - - 1,517,816 1,517,816
Amounts due to related parties [Ef{EE A £ 3178 4,481 2,453 - - 6,934 6,934
Bank borrowings - fixed rate /7€ — EIE/% 3.10% - 203,482 741,962 - 945,444 900,000
Bank borrowings - variable rate $/TfEE — F 2% 0.77% 382,768 959,825 - - 1,342,593 1,338,807
Bonds payable &5 4,00% 721 121 3,807,147 - 4,040,601 3,815,623

Long term payables & EJfE(T308 2.21% - - 196,918 - 196,918 172,044

7,233,693 1,980,586 4,836,027

14,050,306 13,751,314

Lease liabilities EE5E 4.80% 15,259 37,188 99,322 23,485 175,254 154,270

Derivative financial liabilities - net sttled
fTALRAE - FELE

Foreign currency options contracts SNEZER 4) 4,087 - - - 4,087 4,087
Foreign currency forward contracts ZEMEA4) 5,016 31,248 5,057 - 41,321 41,321
Foreign exchange swap contracts JNE#HA4) - 95 - - 95 95
Total &% 7,258,055 2,049,117 4,940,406 23,485 14,271,063 13,951,087
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. ¥AEREEEERBEK (&)
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) MENE & Rk (8)
Liquidity tables (Continued) THBEL K (&)

Weighted
average | On demand Total
effective or less than 3 months 1year to Syearsto | undiscounted Carrying
interest rate to 1 year 5 years 10 years amount amount

]
=fERR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR | ARETR | ARBTR | ARETR | ARMTR | ARETR

ERE-% | -%2RF | ILFETF | ARHRER KA

As at 81 December 2000 ¥ = E =5 +=FA=+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities 74 £REE

Trade and other payables 5 k& (508 7,008,065 1,188,167 - - 8,196,232 8,196,232
Amounts due to related parties fEfF B A L7108 5,560 1436 - - 6,996 6,996
Bank borrowings - fixed rate ${7(E S — EEF|= 2.96% 24611 1,120,635 - - 1,145,246 1,124,500
Bank borrowings - variable rate /7 — W& FE 0.95% - 950,025 - - 950,025 946,111
Bonds payable &% 4,00% 73,405 73405 4,135,155 - 481985 3,895,888
Long term payables & 5131 2.27% - - 257,117 - 257,117 245,636

7,111,641 3333668 4,392,272 - 14837581 14415363
Lease liabilities &8 4.80% 12,329 36,758 83,745 23,119 155,951 140479

Derivative financial liabilities - net settled
fTALREE - FELE

Foreign currency options contracts SNEZER 4) 11,034 87,420 - - 98,454 96,805
Foreign currency forward contracts & EI5NEA 4) 3,562 1569 5,136 - 10267 9,865
Total 4 7,138,566 3,459,415 4,481,153 23,119 15102253 14,662,512
The amounts included above for variable interest rate ] A A2 ) =R B ) B 7 2R 45 B R 7B E 9 B =K
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject EtENE @ Bl L ETE SR B ER A
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ from BNETESBELEEE -

the estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@l T & (&)
B EREE B ERBER (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b.

policies (Continued)
Interest rate benchmark reform

As listed in Note 30, several of the Group’s LIBOR bank
borrowings will be subject to the interest rate benchmark
reform. The Group is closely monitoring the market and
managing the transition to new benchmark interest rates,
including announcements made by the relevant IBOR
regulators. The Group anticipates that the interest rate
benchmark reform will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the future.

LIBOR

The Financial Conduct Authority has confirmed all LIBOR
settings will either cease to be provided by any administrator
or no longer be representative:

e immediately after 31 December 2021, in the case of all

sterling, euro, Swiss franc and Japanese yen settings, and
the 1-week and 2-month US dollar settings; and

e immediately after 30 June 2023, in the case of the
remaining US dollar settings.
Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform

The following are the key risks for the Group arising from the
transition:

Interest rate related risks

For contracts which have not been transitioned to the
relevant alternative benchmark rates and without detailed
fallback clauses, if the bilateral negotiations with the Group’s
counterparties are not successfully concluded before the
cessation of LIBORs, there are significant uncertainties with
regard to the interest rate that would apply. This gives rise to
additional interest rate risk that was not anticipated when the
contracts were entered into.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Interest rate benchmark reform (Continued)

Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform
(Continueqd)

Interest rate related risks (Continued)

There are fundamental differences between IBORs and the
various alternative benchmark rates. IBORs are forward
looking term rates published for a period (e.g. 3 months) at
the beginning of that period and include an inter-bank credit
spread, whereas alternative benchmark rates are typically
risk-free overnight rates published at the end of the overnight
period with no embedded credit spread. These differences will
result in additional uncertainty regarding floating rate interest
payments.

Liquidity risk

The additional uncertainty on various alternative rates which
are typically published on overnight basis will require additional
liquidity management. The Group’s liquidity risk management
policy has been updated to ensure sufficient liquid resources
to accommodate unexpected increases in overnight rates.

Litigation risk

If no agreement is reached to implement the interest rate
benchmark reform on contracts which have not been
transitioned to the relevant alternative benchmark rates (e.g.
arising from differing interpretation of existing fallback terms),
there is a risk of prolonged disputes with counterparties which
could give rise to additional legal and other costs. The Group
is working closely with all counterparties to avoid this from
occurring.

6. LR TR ()

MEEEREE B RRBEE (&)

M=REENE ()

P EZEN FEEL LS ()

FIE1EREmER ()

RITRIZER BRI RERBERELET
EEERAZEZR - RITRIEF S X
e sz A F R R R A Y — ER HAR (BD
3MEA) KIRTHE M E BRI R - BIERIT
MEELE MBEREENEEER
1 b 7R HA 2R 2 i A9 2 21 B B R 71 2R

VERAZELEZ - ZE=REBER
TR ENH R AS REFBIN R M o

R EE AR

BEBERAMEZES K ROEIN
THEEMEARBTEZHEINRBIEE
2 ARENRBERREERRE
TUEH - UEREETANRBEE
IRREL RN ENBIMER -

A

fisl R Bk 181 R B30 R AR B B A B E R =X
(R BB E RGN T RERE M
FEJmAmAmﬂig B EK
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

b. M¥EMREEBERBE (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Interest rate benchmark reform (Continued)

Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform
(Continueqd)

Interest rate basis risk

Interest rate basis risk may arise if a non-derivative instrument
and the derivative instrument held to manage the interest
risk on the non-derivative instrument transition to alternative
benchmark rates at different times. This risk may also arise
where back-to-back derivatives transition at different times.
The Group will monitor this risk against its risk management
policy which has been updated to allow for temporary
mismatches of up to 12 months and transact additional
basis interest rate swaps if required. The Group anticipates
it will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the future.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and financial
liabilities.

The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)
c. ®RMIAMARMEHE (H)

c. Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

EREUEEENNABEFENEAEH
TREENEBABNAAE

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Fair value Valuation technique
Fair value as at

RUTRBHALE

Financial assets/liabilities

tREE/ R

hierarchy

MESR

and key inputs
HEERIEEALE

Financial assets at fair value through Listed debt instruments: Listed debt instruments: Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
profit or loss RMB38,841,000 RMBT72,884,000
BARBIA RGNS HER FHERIA: IR IA: 1 RN RE
AR38,841,0007C ARE72,884,0007C
Financial assets at fair value through Funds investments: Funds investments: Level 2 Discounted cash flows
profit or loss RMB283,132,000 RMB282,711,000
Key inputs:
Future cash flows are estimated based on
expected return
BAREIARRNEHER £ER%: EERE E=8 ERRENE
ARE283,132,0007 AR%282,711,0007
TEBANE:
REBSESHEHARRLRE
Foreign currency forward contracts Current derivative financial ~ Current derivative financial ~ Level 2 Discounted cash flows
classified as derivatives financial assets: RMB27,120,000 assets: RMB17,657,000
assets and liabilities Key inputs:
Current and non-current Current and non-current (1) Adiscount rate that reflects the credit
derivative financial derivative financial risk of the banks
liabilities: RMB41,321,000 liabilities: RMB9,865,000 (2)  Observable forward exchange rate
PERITESHEER AR REBTEEHAE - TETESREE : EZ8 FRRenE
EEINESH AR¥%27,120,0007 AR¥%17,657,0007C
TERATE:

31 December 2021

NEIE e U
AE41,321,0007

31 December 2020
“R-RFT-A=T-H

RORFRDITLERAR:

AR¥9,865,00070

() REETEERRHERE
0 TREESES
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

c. Fair value measurements of financial c. TRITEMDAAREE (&)
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial REEUEEU AR B ENAEE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis TREENESBREBENAAE (B)

(Continued)

Fair value Valuation technique

Financial assets/liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs

EREE/ B RUTEANLAE MESR HEERIERALE

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
ZE--F+ZA=1-B | Z2-B5+-A=1-A

Foreign exchange swap contracts Current derivative financial ~ N/A Level 2 Discounted cash flows
classified as derivatives financial assets: RMB117,000
assets and liabilities Key inputs:
Current derivative financial (1) Adiscount rate that reflects the credit
liabilities: RMB95,000 risk of the banks
(2)  Observable forward exchange rate
ARRITEEHEERARM RETEEHAE - el £R ¥EREhE
SNERHAH AE%117,0007
IZRAEE
RETEERALR - () RBETEERRNERE
ARE95,0007 0 TEREHEX
Financial assets at fair value through Unlisted financial products:  Unlisted financial products: ~ Level 2 Discounted cash flows
profit or oss RMB7,992,170,000 RMBS, 197,475,000

Key inputs are:

(1) Expected yields of debt instruments
invested by banks

(2)  Adiscount rate that reflects the credit

risk of the banks
BAREHARRNERERE FImeREn FEMERER £ FRRens
ARE7,992,170,00070 AR8,197,475,0007
TERAEE

(1) BAREREIAMBESRS
0 RESROEERRMERE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T E (&)

==
=]

c. Fair value measurements of financial c. EMTANAARERE (&)

instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial EREMEEN AR BEFENAS
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis TREENESREBENAAE (B&)
(Continued)
Fair value Valuation technique
Financial assets/liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs
SHEE /86 RUTBENARE MEZR REEREEAAAE
31 December 2021 31 December 2020
£+ZA=t-H
Foreign currency options contracts Current derivative financial ~ Current derivative financial ~ Level 3 Black-scholes model
classified as derivatives financial liabilities: RMB4,087,000 assets: RMB3,650,000
assets and liabilities Key unobservable inputs:
Current derivative financial Volatility of the foreign exchange rate (Note a)
liabilities: RMB96,305,000
PERITESREER AR RETEERAL - RETESREE : £=8 Bns - HREE
SNESERD AR%4,087,0007 AKE#3,650,00070
FTEATBRBARE -
TETESRALR X% (Hizta)
AE#96,805,0007C
Unlisted equity investments Equity instruments at Equity instruments at Level Market approach

FVTOCI: RMB53,520,000 FVTOCI: RMB12,671,000
Key unobservable inputs:

Equity investments at FVTPL:  Equity investments at FVTPL:; (1) Revenue growth rate;
RMB19,518,000 RMB133,352,000 (2)  P/S multiples of selected comparable
companies (Note b)
EETRERE BARETARM2RE BAREHARDEE E=4 5%
WamgsTa: YR TR
AR¥53,520,0007 AR¥12,671,0007 IBFUERBANE
(1) WAERE:
BAREHABREHN AR B AR (2 BTTARRARNTHERES (M)
iERE RERE -
AR19,518,0007 AR%133,352,0007
Unlisted equity investments Equity instruments at Equity instruments at Level 3 Backsolve from recent transaction price
FVTOCI: RMBG67,331,000 FVTOCI: RMB44,926,000
EETRERE BARETARB2RE BALEGARMEE E=H R 5 E AR
WaEmERTE YsERTA :
AR#67,331,0007C AR#44,926,0007T
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €&l T & (&)

c. Fair value measurements of financial c. EMITANAAREFE (&)
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial RIEEHEREEN AR B ENAEE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis @?ﬂﬁ%&@%ﬂg%m@ LB (48)

(Continued)

Fair value Valuation technique

Financial assets/liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs

EREE/ B RUTEANLAE MESR HEERIERALE

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
:g:_¢+:HE+_H —7—7¢+ H -I- E

Unlisted equity investments Equity instruments at Equity instruments at Level Income approach
FVTOCI: RMB57,911,000 FVTOCI: RMB77,012,000

Key unobservable inputs:

(1) Long term revenue growth rates,
taking into account of management's
experience and knowledge of market
conditions of the specific industry;

(2)  Weighted average cost of capital

(Note ¢)
FEmRERE BAREFALMRE BAREFALGZE E=R WA
REMESRTA WaMERTE
AR%57,911,0007 AR¥77,012,0007 IBFTBRBARE
(1) REWAERE GEREEEMLR
REEAFTRNAS
Q) METGERRA (M)
Note a: The higher the volatility of the foreign exchange rate, the Mitta : EXAKE @ AAE~ZS °
higher the fair value.
Note b: The higher the revenue growth rate, the higher the fair value. Miztb: WMAREXRAS @  ARERS ° mil
The higher the P/S multiples, the higher the fair value. REHAE  ARERS °
Note c: The higher the long-term revenue growth rate, the higher the Hirc: RHRAEEXRAS  AREAS
fair value; the higher the weighted average cost of capital, IEFHEARKARDS » ARERE -
the lower the fair value.
There is no transfer among level 1, 2 and 3 during the year. FRNFE— - —HEFE =L 72BN EETS o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@t T B (&)

c. Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial

assets

Foreign
currency
options
contracts

SNE
AR
RMB’000

ARBETT

c. TRMTANDAEE (H)

TREENE =R DA EFENYER

FVTOCI
BAREA
Hin 2 E Wz

RMB’000
ARETIT

FVTPL
BRARE
SFARS
RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARETT

At 1 January 2020 R=Z=FF—H—H 3,177 112,183 100,579 215,939
Total (losses) gains (E518) Wzs 4258 (93,155) 22,326 32,773 (38,056)

—in profit or loss — RE= (93,155) - 32,773 (60,382)

— in other comprehensive expense

— REMEERFX - 22,326 - 22,326
Purchases f# & - 100 - 100
Settlements & & (3,177) - = (3,177)
At 31 December 2020 A —ZE-_FF+_-_HA=+—H (93,155) 134,609 133,352 174,806
At 1 January 2021 R=Z=—F—H—H (93,155) 134,609 133,352 174,806
Total gains (losses) Yz (E18) 4258 89,068 3,304 (8,151) 84,221

— in profit or loss — R zE 89,068 - (8,151) 80,917

— in other comprehensive income

— REM 2 E R - 3,304 - 3,304
Purchases f# & - 40,849 20 40,869
Settlements & & - - (31,062) (31,062)
Reclassification E# 5 48 - - (74,641) (74,641)
At 31 December 2021 A =—ZE-—F+=-F=+—H (4,087) 178,762 19,518 194,193
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

37.COMMITMENTS 37. 7RI

31/12/2021

—F-—-F TF

+t=A=+—-B| t=ZA=t—H

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREBEFT

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of property,
plant and equipment contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial statements

BERIMERNRA M BRI EERNEEUEY X -

e R RIBNERFX 684,402 356,008
38. OPERATING LEASES B EEHE
The Group as lessor KEFESLHEAA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has contracted with RE|EHR - XEEE 5 TR RKIEME

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: E TR ELEF AGTAY

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

—EB-—F —EFF

+=ZBA=+—-B8| t=A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T

Within one year —F A 1,942 1,942

In the second 8 —4F 1,611 1,186

In the third year =4 1,360 1,199

In the fourth year 25 P04 1,357 1,225

In the fifth year 28 H 4 837 1,225

After five years T4 LATE - 2,239

7,107 9,016
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Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

39. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Retirement benefit scheme contribution made during the year
F AR IRRE N ET SR

9. 3R /K48 A 5T &I

2021 2020
—E_—F

—E-FTF
RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARMET T

320,088 219,621

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
local government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The Group also participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000 for the Group’s
Hong Kong employees. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. For employees who are members of the MPF Scheme,
the Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme
subject to a maximum of approximately RMB1,226 (equivalent
to HKD1,500) per employee per month, which contribution is
matched by the employee.

AEETENBARNERD 2 MK
FEENBEREEEMRENGTE - ZFMH
BARABHEKRAE LS ER D LAR
TR RERERFT B HER - REERZ
BB OE—BEERFAZEEL

FERRHEN ©

AEBTABERESM_STZTF+ -
AR5 58 Bl 1 A1 & 5T & R I 5 32 AY 52 I
~ETEE ((REEFE]) - RESFE
MEEBYNAKEEE  FHRNARG
AEENES - ARERS RBEEE
Pk B 01 8 2 \RE% & A6 % [Ala% &1 8l
F LRABASREENHARK1,2267T
(HFMN1,50087T) - MES NS EHEEH

f
N
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 0. BMETHELENESEHIER
ARISING FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

TRAAGEREEDEENRELBF
B BREASLIRNCEY  WEBTHE
ENREENRRERELAT KRS RERN
AEEGARERERRIBARERD
BenEmas-

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both the cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities.

Bank Interest Bonds Dividend Lease Other
borrowings payable payable payables liabilities payables
(Note 30) (Note 28) (Note 33) (Note 31)
#i7fe EfHE EfiE% EfRE HEER | AfEATE
(Hz£30) (Hzz28) (Hz£33) (HzE31)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFL | ARETR | ARETRL | ARETL | ARETR | ARETR | ARETR
At 1 January 2020 R=2-%%-A-H 1,118,572 69,744 4,156,074 - 160,606 - 5,504,996
Financing cash flows BER 2172 1,016,745 (224,439) - (796,458) (45,065) (161,397) (200,614)
New leases entered 311 231/ & - - - - 21,714 - 27,114
Termination of leases 4 | - - - - (2,776) - (2,776)
Interests on lease liabilities 7 & E & = 7,563 = - - - 7,563
Interests on bank borrowings $7fE &F5 - 54,737 - - - - 54,737
Interests on bonds payable FEfT B S = 185,115 9,167 - = = 164,282
Interests on long term payables & EERZUAIE = 7,158 = - - - 7,158
Foreign exchange translation SMA& (64,706 (4,000 (269,353) - - - (338,059)
Dividends recognised as distribution BZAME 2k - - - 796,458 - - 796,458
Purchase of shares under share award scheme
RERR R 2EER L - - - - - 151,397 151,397
At 31 December 2020 R=E-E4+-f=1—H 2,070,611 65,878 3,895,388 - 140,479 - 6,172,856
At 1 January 2021 R=2-—%-F—H 2,070,611 65,878 3,895,888 - 140,479 - 6,172,856
Financing cash flows B& R £ 72 203,285 (222,125) - (987,038) (48,981) (212,183)  (1,267,042)
New leases entered 3112 51 E - - - - 67,909 - 67,009
Termination of leases 4 |- & - - - - (5,137) - (5,137)
Interests on lease liabilties FE & EF & - 7,589 - - - - 7,589
Interests on bank borrowings S {7E EFE - 62,490 - - - - 62,490
Interests on bonds payable T E7S - 145,052 8,918 = - - 153,970
Interests on long term payables & S/ERZUERIE - 6,203 - - - - 6,203
Foreign exchange translation M5 & (34,099) (614) (89,183) - - - (124,796)
Dividends recognised as distribution B2 A2 2 1k & - - - 987,038 - - 987,038
Purchase of shares under share award scheme
RERAERHARERD - - - - - 212,183 212,183
At 31 December 2021 R=E-—%+-f=1-H 2,238,807 64,473 3,815,623 - 154,210 - 6,213,263
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS HEEALRS
(a) Names and relationships with related parties (@ FRNBAEATEBREREA
during the years are as follows: THBEMT :
Name Principal activities Relationship
£8 TEEK BE
kMRS B EEERAA Manufacture and sale of parts Company controlled by a close family member
(‘REXB for optical instruments of the Company’s chairman, Mr. Ye Liaoning
Bk mRENBEREBA HEREELSERIH AAREFERESRERBAEHIH QA
([REXE])
BETmaREERESERAR(‘RE")  Sale of electronic devices Company controlled by a close family member
BEmaRBERES2ERAR ([#E]) HEESTRE of Company’s senior management,

Mr. Zhang Guoxian
ARARREBAEREE R EORAEHINLNR

HkmERZ AR DA (“‘ER) Sale of electronic devices Company controlled by a close family member
SgmENEZBRAR ([HR]) HEBETHRME of Company’s senior management,
Mr. Zhang Guoxian
AR RREEABREE S AT RATEHH R

BUMREEEERCEH(EEE) Sale of electronic devices Company controlled by a close family member
BUmREZEERLEN ((REE)) HEETRIE of Company’s senior management,

Mr. Zhang Guoxian
ARARRERABREE L AT RATEHN A

RTRERE (RE) R AT « 2021 F3H @
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

41, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS HEEALRS ()
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties: (b) HEAEALRS :

2021 2020
—EB-—F —TFF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Sales of goods $HE&EE M
HEND RENB 3,977 4,038

Purchase of raw materials i B R4 %

BB SpE B 12,005 11,711
TR bR 468 421
BE BE 1,974 2,696
FREE REE 1,965 1,932

16,412 16,760

(c) At the end of reporting period, the Group has (c) REREHR > XEFHEBEEA
the following significant balances with related THEKREHUT :
parties:

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
—E_—fF —T-FF

—= ==

t=A=+—-B| t=ZA=t—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARMBETTT

Current asset: MBI EE :
Amount due from a related party FEU —& REiE A + 7B
TREALER TR B BB 327 -
Current liabilities: B A& :
Amounts due to related parties FE{ BiiE A+ FUE

BN E pRE A 4,848 5,354
B B 1,069 722
REE REE 843 744
mE WE 174 176
6,934 6,996
All of the above amounts are of trade nature, unsecured, BN FEEHAEZEFHE - EIE
interest free and repayable on demand. £ B2 BERENEESE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021#(2 — £ ——

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c) At the end of reporting period, the Group has
the following significant balances with related
parties: (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of related parties balance of
trade nature at the end of reporting period.

Current asset: RENEE :

Fa= by E S ES:

Ft_H=+—HIFFE

HEBEALIRE (&)

() RBEHR - AEEREAEA
THEXREROT - (&)

BEHAKR FRESEENREE
j: EERAREC DATINT -

31/12/2021
—E-—F
t=HA=+—H

31/12/2020
—ECFF
+=HA=+—8
RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARBT R

Within 90 days 90K A 327 -

Current liabilities: REIE (& :
Within 90 days 90K A 4,481 5,561
91-120 days 91120k 2,453 1,435
6,934 6,996

The Group allows a credit period of 90 days to related party
trade receivables (2020: 90 days). The average credit period
on purchases of goods from related parties is 90 days (2020:
90 days).

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management during the year is as

follows:

AREBRTHEALTE S EWFIEI
AOEEH(ZZ=FF : 90K) ° &
BHAEATEGNTAEEHRRIOXR
ZE-FF 1 Q0K) °

(d) TEEEABHM

FR - EEEEABHHMAT :

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

—B-—fF —ETHF

+=HA=+—H +=—A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETTT

Short-term employee benefits 58 Hi{E & 18 F| 23,480 21,665
Share award scheme f% 17 #2E &t 2| 26,050 27,156
Post-employment benefits BB 1% 1= 7 912 795
50,442 49,616
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

42. SHARE AWARD SCHEME 42. iRt R B =t 8l

The Company adopted The Sunny Optical Technology (Group)
Company Limited Restricted Share Award Scheme (the
“Restricted Share Award Scheme”) on 22 March 2010
(“Adoption Date”) with a duration of 10 years commencing
from the Adoption Date. The objective of the Restricted Share
Award Scheme is to provide the selected participants including
directors of the Company, employees, agents or consultants of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Selected Participants”)
with an opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in the
Company; to encourage and retain such individuals to work with
the Group; and to provide additional incentive for them to achieve
performance goals, with a view to achieving the objectives of
increasing the value of the Company and aligning the interests
of the Selected Participants directly to be the owners of the
Company through ownership of shares. The Group has set up The
Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited Restricted
Share Award Scheme Trust (the “Trust”) to administrate and hold
the Company’s shares before they are vested and transferred
to Selected Participants. Upon granting of shares to Selected
Participants, the Trust purchases the Company’s shares being
awarded from the open market with funds provided by the
Company by way of contributions. Restricted Shares granted
under the Restricted Share Award Scheme are subject to a vesting
scale in tranches of one-third to one-fifth each (as the case may
be) on every anniversary date of the grant date starting from the
first anniversary date until the third to the fifth anniversary (as
the case may be). The vested shares are transferred to Selected
Participants at no cost except that the expenses attributable or
payable in respect of the transfer of such shares of the Company
shall be borne by the Selected Participants.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

42. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

The grant of Restricted Shares is subject to acceptance by the
Selected Participants. The Restricted Shares granted to but not
accepted by the Selected Participants shall become unaccepted
shares. The Trustee may use any remainder of cash and non-cash
income received by the Trust in respect of the shares held upon
trust to purchase additional shares after defraying all expenses
incurred by the Trust prior to the purchase of additional shares.
The selected participants have no rights to receive dividend
income and cannot exercise any voting rights in respect of the
Restricted Shares granted to them during the vesting period. The
Trust shall hold the additional shares, unaccepted shares and
unvested shares upon trust and may make any grant to existing
or new Selected Participants after receiving instructions from
the Administration Committee of the Group. The fair value of the
Restricted Shares awarded was determined based on the market
value of the Company’s shares at the grant date.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, pursuant to the
original Restricted Share Award Scheme dated 22 March 2010,
the directors of the Company resolved to change (i) the vesting
period under the Restricted Share Award Scheme from three to
five years to two to five years; and (ii) the circumstances when the
Company’s shares would lapse, with immediate effect. The details
of the amendments have been disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 26 May 2015. The directors of the Company
considered that the above amendments have had no material
impact on the recognition and measurement of those shares
granted before 26 May 2015.

On 16 March 2020, the Board of Directors resolved to amend
the existing Scheme Rules and adopted the further amended and
restated Scheme Rules with effect from 22 March 2020 to extend
the share award scheme period for ten years. Under the further
amended and restated Scheme Rules, the Scheme shall (unless
previously terminated by a resolution of the Board of Directors)
terminate on the revised expiry date, being 21 March 2030.

4. [ R R a8 (&)

\

BB BIMER G BEFFESEEREMN ]
EE - R TIFELEE BT EE MR Hl
MR BT EEMRGD - XFEEATBAE
R AME RE 7 255 B A9 AR 10 AT WER & (1]
ReRIBSWARBEEREINRGD &
FHEBEBENROAIEE XM EENAME
FSZ o 73 2 2R I A AR B B
ﬂ’ﬁxﬁﬁﬁ%%WMﬁﬁﬁF%m@
Il 14 AR (0 1T {58 (AT 4% 24 o E.:%ELM
FRBFHBEINGGD - TEEMRG R
Bt WEAEEETEZESHIER N
MBI FE2EERBZERD -
1E RSB RI PR HI AR (D B A R BIR AN A A
BN FE BN mEERE

HE-_Z—AF+_-_A=+—HItFE "
BREBPR_Z-—TF=A_+-HNHR
E@ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%%’ﬁ”ﬂ%%%
RAEET (i) BR I ME AR 17 BB 5t B TE T 2 57 8
B B=2hFE8F A _ZRF ; K(i)AN
RNEIRM KRB ZER - BREER - BB
ANEERARGIBAA-ZS—HAFH
AZ+RAZAERER - AAAEER
A EMERTHZER_ZT—AF A A
TN HATEHRRR D ER R AT ENE
BATE -

R-ZBE-_ZTF=ZA+/XA EFEZRE
FIRBRTERA ]ITKZW?& E**H/ Hl
kBIZFERA BT _FTF=H
T BERAR - AR REEFE A
RER+F - RELE-HBITREINNZ
EIRA - SAEEELETT EmBEH (=
ZE=ZF=A+—B)RIL(RIFELES
ERBRIEAAL) -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

42. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 42 BR{p 8 Est2 (&)

Movements in the number of Restricted Shares granted and EEHRHMERNDOEE REREBARE
related fair value are as follows: REE T :

Weighted Number of
average Restricted
fair value Shares
(per share) granted
(ZR) nfE B HRFIE
TN RE B8 E
HKD (’000)

BT (F)

At 1 January 2020 R=ZE=_ZFF—H—H 124.122 2,925

Forfeited B K48 123.296 (112)

Vested 252 B 108.560 (1,488)

Granted (Note a) B H (Fizta) 130.711 1,458

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

RZE_TF+_A=+—HBR=ZT=_—F—HA—H 135.931 2,783

Forfeited 2 %5 149.642 (119)

Vested 253 B 115.035 (1,638)

Granted (Note b) E.# i (FizED) 200.720 1,460

At 31 December 2021 A —ZE-—F+-A=+—H 187.090 2,486

Notes: B5E -

(a) The Restricted Shares granted in 2020 vest on every anniversary date (a) RZZF_Z=FERLBRHERDRSHE
of the grant date of each batch of Restricted Shares in tranches on FlIEROTLE BN EREAS BRI TR
the following scales: BoHE -

Restricted Shares Fair value (per share) Scales REMRG (BR) ARE RE
HKD BT

845,947 shares 122.500 One-half 845,947 fix 122.500 b

27,595 shares 126.800 One-half 27,595 % 126.800 —nZ—

233,868 shares 126.800 One-third 233,868 126.800 =2

351,181 shares 153.400 One-half 351,181 1% 1568.400 =R
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?.v'?\AEﬂ TR R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

42. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 42. R 8&Est2 (&)

Notes: (Continued) BisE : (&)

(o) The Restricted Shares granted in 2021 vest on every anniversary date b) RA=ZZE=—FERHRHIERDR SRR
of the grant date of each batch of Restricted Shares in tranches on FlEROTELE BN EREAS BRI TR
the following scales: BoO#EE
Restricted Shares Fair value (per share) Scales [REIEREG (BR)AAE KRE

HKD BT
884,979 shares 180.30 One-half 884,979% 180.30 D2
28,900 shares 236.60 One-half 28,900/% 236.60 D2
158,524 shares 236.60 One-third 158,524 % 236.60 =92Z—
387,525 shares 230.00 One-half 387,525% 230.00 —DZ—

The fair value of Restricted Shares granted is measured on the ERERHEMERD AR ETHER A B

basis of an observable market price. WS ERETE °

The following table discloses details of the shares granted under TREBEAEEES (BFEARRESE)

Restricted Shares held by employees (including the Directors of BFERNRIBRGIERDE R LG HERS

the Company) of the Group and movements in such holdings N ERNZERDEBHFFE

during the year:

Balance Granted Forfeited Vested Balance

at during during during at
1.1.2021 the year the year the year 31.12.2021
R=B=—-F R=B=—-%

—RA—H +=H=t—H
ok 3 RERRH RERKR REREE M &R
’000 ’000 ’000 ’000 ’000
TR TR R TR TR

Shares fxfn 2,783 1,460 (119) (1,638) 2,486

Balance Granted Forfeited Vested Balance

at during during during at

1.1.2020 the year the year the year 31.12.2020
R-ZT_ZF RIT_TF

—HA—H +=—A=+—H

VR RNERFHE RERKK RNERRB MR 8%

‘000 '000 '000 ‘000 ‘000

Fh T T Th Th

Shares & fn 2,925 1,458 (112) (1,488) 2,783

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

42. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 42 BR{p 8 Est2 (&)

Details of the shares held by the Directors of the Company EEXRBARBESFRNDNFED
included in the above table are as follows: T

Balance Granted Forfeited Vested Balance

at during during during at

1.1.2021 the year the year the year 31.12.2021

R-B=—-F R=B=—-F

—H—H +=A=+—H

YA ER RERTRE RERKK RERGE YA ER

’000 ’000 ’000 ’000 ’000

TR e TR TR T iR

Shares &7 180 25 - (101) 104

Balance Granted Forfeited Vested Balance

at during during during at

1.1.2020 the year the year the year 31.12.2020

R-E_ZF R-_B_TF

~A—8 +=A=+—F

H) A& R REREH RERKK RENEGS ) A& R

'000 ‘000 '000
F A% F % TR

Shares %17 253 88 - (108) 180

The equity-settled share-based payments charged to the profit or HEZT-_—F+-HA=T—HLFE
loss was RMB188,278,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 REZMNBNEREE RO I FE
(2020: RMB151,811,000). A ARE188,278,000 T (ZT-T4HF : A

ER#151,811,0007T) °

€92\ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated,

by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WELRAER

Sun Yu Optical Technology Limited
RFAERBARAT

Sun Xiang Optical Overseas Limited

AEABEERAT

Sun Li Instrument Overseas Limited

RNERENERAR

Summit Optics Technology Limited
Summit Optics Technology Limited

Summit Optics Investment Limited
Summit Optics Investment Limited

Sunny Optical Overseas Limited

REREENERAT

Sunny Instruments Overseas Limited

RTEREMERAT

Summit Optical Technology Limited
Summit Optical Technology Limited

Summit Optical Investment Limited
Summit Optical Investment Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

R/
EMbE EEE

The British Virgin
Islands (“The BVI)

ABRIEE
)¢ 0)

The BVI
RAHS

The BVI
RAHS

The BVI
RAHS

The BVI
RAHS

Hong Kong
Eh

Hong Kong
&E

Hong Kong
&E

Hong Kong
&E

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/
registered capital
BRTRAZRE/
ERER

Ordinary shares
USD100,000
L@ 100,000

QOrdinary shares USD10

EARI0ET

QOrdinary shares USD10
EAR10ET

QOrdinary share USD1
LERIET

QOrdinary share USD1
LERIEL

QOrdinary shares USD10
LARI0ET

QOrdinary shares USD10
LARI0ET

QOrdinary share HKD1
LTERIBT

QOrdinary share HKD1
LTERIBT

43, fff B X A 515

BREBEHAN  ARBR_F_—FR =
ToEFE+ A=t HEERENNEB
NEFHBWAT :

Attributable
equity interest

held by the Group Principal activities

FREEENEEER

2021 2020
ZE--F CZE3C%F

IRER

100% 100%
(directly held)
(E#EA)

Investment holding
RERR

100% 100%  Investment holding

REER

100% 100%  Investment holding

REER

100% 100%  Investment holding

REER

100% 100%  Investment holding

REER

100% 100%  Investment holding

REER

100% 100%  Investment holding

REER

100% 100%  Investment holding

REER

100% 100%  Investment holding

REER

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. B A RIS (&)

(Continued)

BRAEHAIN  ARBR_FE_—FR -
E_EFEt A=+ HHEESAENHE
NEFBEWT (&)

Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated,
by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows
(Continued):

Place of
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group

incorporation/ Issued and fully

registration/ paid up share capital/

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital Principal activities

WELALR

RYEY
EMHbE B

BRORMRRE/
EfEx

2021

—E--F

FRERENEGRR

2020
“Z-%F

IRER

* Zhejiang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
* IRFAEERAT il contributed capital optical components
RMB430,000,000 EERHERETH
R ESRA
AK# 430,000,000
* Ningbo Sunny Instruments Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
F ERRFERERAT i contributed capital optical instruments
RMBS82,500,000 LERBERPES
R EARA
AK 82,500,000
* Sunny Optics (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
* RFRE (R BRAR i contributed capital optical components
USD14,990,000 TERBERETH
R EARA
14,990,000% 7T
* Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
F ERRFAEEEARAA i contributed capital optoelectronics products

USD38,831,600
atft REHEA
38,831,600 T

@4\ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. B A RS (&)

(Continued)

BRAEHAI  ARBR_FE_—FR_
E_EFt A=+ HHEESAENHE
NEFEWT  (8&)

Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated,
by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows
(Continued):

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration/ paid up share capital/

operation registered capital Principal activities
BERTRARRE/

HMER

Name of subsidiary

Rk /

MWELALR TEXR

#Ningbo Sunny Automotive Optech Co., Ltd.
PERRTEIBRITERAA

#Xinyang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd.
EERTREERAR

#Ningbo Sunny Infrared Technologies Co., Ltd.

SRR FIARAT

Sunny Opotech Korea Co., Ltd.
REREREIBRAA

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

Korea
SEE

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB5,000,000

R ESRA
ARH5,000,0007C

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB100,000,000

R E SR
AR 100,000,007

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB11,481,481

R E SR
ARE11,481,4817C

Ordinary shares
KRW108,000,000
T%17108,000,0008 T

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group
REBRANEEER

2021 2020
B _T-TE
100% 100%
100% 100%
68.10% 68.10%
100% 100%

Manufacture and sale of
optical components
LERBERPEN

Manufacture and sale of
optical components
LERBERPEN

Research and development
of infrared technologies
HEA ML

Sales and development of
optoelectronics products
HERREXEER

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. B A RIS (&)

(Continued)

BRAEHAIN  ARBR_FE_—FR -
E_EFEt A=+ HHEESAENHE
NEFBEWT (&)

Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated,
by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows
(Continued):

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
registration/ paid up share capital/

operation registered capital Principal activities
BERTRAERE/

HMER

Name of subsidiary

RYEY
EMHbE B

WELALR IRER

Sunny Korea Co., Ltd.
RTHEAGR LA

Sunny Japan Co., Ltd.
RTARKARH

Sunny Opotech North America Inc

REAERR (42 BRAT

Sunny Optical Corean (BVI) Limited
Sunny Optical Corean (BVI) Limited

# Shanghai Sunny Yangming Precision Optics
Co., Ltd.
P HERTERREAEERAA

Korea
£EE

Japan

AR

The United States
X8

The BVI

EXES

The PRC
hE

Ordinary shares
KRW3,080,880,000
£38A%3,080,880,00082

Registered and
contributed capital
JPY99,000,000

MR EARA
99,000,000E 7

Common stock
USD952,731
EER952,731% T

Ordinary shares USD10
EERI0ET

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB25,000,000

i REHHRA
AR 25,000,000

€96\ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group
REBRANEEER
2021 2020
B _T-TE
70.15% 70.15%
57.89% 57.89%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Manufacture and sale of
optical components
LERBERBEN

Trading of optical
instruments and
optoelectronics products

BEXERERNEED

Sales and development of
optoelectronics products
HERREAEED

Investment holding

RERKR

Manufacture and sale of
optical components
EERHEERSTH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. it |8 X R =1 (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated, BREBHBEN  ARAFRZZE=Z—FK=
by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows EoTFET_A=+—HHEERENHE
(Continued): RAEFBOT : (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
registration/ paid up share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
R/ BRTRAERE/
WEAREH TRER rREGENELRSE | TEER
2021 2020
ZB--% _ZT_TF
#Ningbo Sunny Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Sales and development of
R F R RRERAA i contributed capital optical instruments
RMB20,000,000 HERFER2ES
it REZRA
AR#20,000,0007C
#Sunny Group Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Investment holdings and
RFEEARAT] i contributed capital property leasing
RMB115,782,000 REBREMEAE
i REHRA
ARH115,782,0007C
#Zhejiang Sunny Optical Intelligence Technology ~ The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Sales and development of
Co., Ltd. i contributed capital optoelectronics products
PIATREABRMERAA RMB25,000,000 HERFEAEER
i REZRA
AR#25,000,0007C
#Ningbo Mei Shan Bao Shui Gang Qu Sunyi The PRC Registered and 100% 51.00%  Investment holdings
Investment Co., Ltd. (Note a) m contributed capital RERR
FERBILRTERRBREER RMB2,000,000
BRAT (fita) it REZRA
AR#2,000,0007T

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @
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e PR ERR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. it B X R =1 (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated, BREBHBEN  ARAFRZZE=Z—FK=
by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows EoTET_A=+—HHEERENHES
(Continued): RAFBHOT : (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
registration/ paid up share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
R/ BRTRMERE/
WEAREH HMnE EE ERER FRERENELRESE | TEER
2021 2020
ZB--§ _Z_TF
#Sunny Optical (Zhejiang) Research Institute The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Provide development,
Co., Ltd. i contributed capital service and consultation
PRTRE(ND AR ARAR RMBS50,000,000 of technology
it REHRA RERMFE « R REH
ARH50,000,0007C
#Ningbo Mei Shan Bao Shui Gang Qu Sunxin The PRC Registered and 52.00% 51.02%  Investment holdings
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) ~ #&l contributed capital RAER
(Note a) RMB3,000,000
PERBIRHBRAEBREEEAMAE R ERRA
(BRa%) (Wita) AR #3,000,0007T
*Yuyao Sunny Optical Intelligence Technology ~ The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Provide optical technology
Co., Ltd. i contributed capital service
PRI AT R BRMERAA RMB20,000,000 At BRI
it REHRA
AR#20,000,0007C
*Yuyao City Sunny Huitong Microcredit Co., Ltd.  The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Provision of financing
MR TER EERER AR i contributed capital service
RMB200,000,000 Rt S RRE
it REHRA
AR#200,000,0007
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated,

by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows

(Continued):

Name of subsidiary

MWELALR

Sunny Optics Vina Co., Ltd.
REGERERRAH

Sunny Optics Vina Hanoi Co., Ltd.

RTBEAEERAR

Sunny Optics Europe GmbH
REBN K EBRAF

Sunny Automotive Vina Co., Ltd.
RTHREHLEERAA

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

Rk /

Vietnam

il

Vietnam

i

German
(et

Vietnam

i

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/
registered capital
BRTRAERE/
TRER

Registered and
contributed capital
USD150,000

R ESRA
150,000

Registered and
contributed capital
USD100,000

H M RESRR
100,000 7T

Registered and
contributed capital
EUR 500,000

R EARA
500,0008 70

Registered and
contributed capital
USD3,000,000

Mt R ELRA
3,000,000%7T

43. fif BB 2 Bl =F 15 (AR

BRAEHAI  ARBR_FE_—FR_
E_EFt A=+ HHEESAENHE
NEFEWT  (8&)

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group
REBRANEEER

2021 2020
B _T-TE
70.15% 70.15%
70.15% 70.15%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities

TEXR

Sale of optoelectronics
components
HEXERH

Sale of optical components
HEXBTH

Sale of optical components
HEXBTH

Manufacture and sale of
optical components

TERHERSZN

RFEXRBEL (KE) BRAF ¢ 2021 F3 @
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e PR ERR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. it B X R =1 (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated, BREBHBEN  ARAFRZZE=Z—FK=
by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows EoTET_A=+—HHEERENHES
(Continued): RAFBHOT : (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
registration/ paid up share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
R/ BRTRMERE/
WEAREH HMnE EE ERER FRERENELRESE | TEER
2021 2020
B _T-TE
Sunny Opotech Vietnam Co., Ltd. Vietnam Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
RENEUHERAT] il contributed capital optical components
USD3,000,000 EERHERSTHY
R ESRA
3,000,000% 7
Sunny Opotech India Private Limited India Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
REYEEEHERBAT fE contributed capital optoelectronics
INR183,701,000 components
R EARA EERHEXETH

183,701,000 EE L

#Sunny Mobility Technologies (Ningbo) Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Registered and 68.67% 68.67%  Sales and development of
R RIERETER AR i contributed capital optoelectronics products
RMB29,509,710 HERFEAEER
it REHRA
ARH29,500,7107
#Zhejiang Sunny SmartLead Technologies The PRC Registered and 68.67% 68.67%  Sales and development of
Co., Ltd. i contributed capital optoelectronics products
PIRTERRMARAR RMBT73,514,500 RERREXEER
it REHRA
ARE73,514,5007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated,

by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows

(Continued):

Name of subsidiary

MWELALR

# Shanghai Wissen Automotive Sensing
Technology Co., Ltd.
' LEAREHERBNERAR

#Sunny OmniLight Technology Co., Ltd.
PERAFRRBMARAR

#Ningbo Yuanheng Supply Chain Management
Co., Ltd.
PERTERERERERAA

#Sunny OmniLight Technology (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. (Note b)
PRTERFERAEE (L8) ARAA (Hb)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

Rk /

The PRC
RE

The PRC
RE

The PRC
RE

The PRC
RE

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/
registered capital
BRTRAERE/
TRER

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB10,000,000

R ESRA
ARH10,000,0007C

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB130,680,000

R E SR
AR 130,680,000

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB1,000,000

R ESRA
ARH1,000,0007C

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB100,000,000

R ESRA
AR 100,000,007

43. fif BB 2 Bl =F 15 (AR

BRAEHAI  ARBR_FE_—FR_

E_EFt A=+ HHEESAENHE

NEFEWT  (8&)

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group
rRERENELRS

2021 2020
B _T-TE

68.67% 68.67%

93.39%

93.39%

100% 100%

93.39% N/A
TER

Principal activities

TEXR

Sales and development of
optoelectronics products
HERREXEED

Sales and development of
optical products
HERFERPER

Import and export agent

il

Research and development
of semiconductor
technologies

kst
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e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

== =
43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. I A Bl w15 ()
(Continued)
Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated, BREBHBEN  ARAFRZZE=Z—FK=
by the Company at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows EoTET_A=+—HHEERENHES
(Continued): RAFBHOT : (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
registration/ paid up share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
RAIMY / ERTRARRAK/
WRARAH S SEH TfEA TEEBENELER | TEER
2021 2020
“Ro-F ZEITR
¥ Zhejiang Sunnyverse Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 80% N/A  Manufacture and sale of
(Note b) il contributed capital TEH optical components
NIRARBERAE (Wib) RMB100,000,000 EERBENEER
R RESRA
AR #100,000,0007T
*  companies are sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises * ZREDRRABRINEELE
# companies are domestic invested enterprises # RELRIRBANERZE
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end REZMER + M B R R EETEMERS
of both years. FEH o
Notes: B s -
(@ The Group has acquired additional equity interest from NCI () AEBECHNCIIRRE AZBINEHE - LA R
shareholders to enhance the Group’s control over the equity REBE L EITEREIZRE RS

investments in optoelectronic industry.

(b) These subsidiaries were newly established in 2021 for further business b) ZEMBRARIN T —FHMKIL * LA
development in the optical related industries. —SHBNEREETENEBER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa= by E S ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021# 2 —F = —4# 1 =-HA=+—HIFFF

44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 44, XN BB ER

COMPANY
EEREE

Assets and Liabilities

NON-CURRENT ASSETS JE7 B & &
Financial assets at FVTPL

31/12/2021
—E-—F
t=A=+—H

RMB’000
AR®TR

31/12/2020
—E-THF
+=—A=+—H
RMB’000
ARBT T

BRAREFABSENEHEE - 72,884
Financial assets at FVTOCI
BRARBEFAEMEEKEN SR EE 32,348 =
Interests in subsidiaries, unlisted 3E_E T B A Ak 253,850 253,850
Amounts due from subsidiaries JF& Y4BT B A 7518 2,175,029 1,797,607
Loans to subsidiaries {/&E R al B 2,716,811 2,837,773
5,178,038 4,962,114
CURRENT ASSETS @&
Other receivables and prepayment Hfth f& I FR I8 K F8 15 208 3,124 709
Amounts due from subsidiaries F&U i & A 7718 820,591 560,018
Financial assets at FVTPL
BAREFABENEREE 321,973 282,711
Debt instruments at amortised cost 1ZE K At ENEHE T A - 52,823
Banks balances and cash $R1T458 kIR & 14,723 153,057
1,160,411 1,049,318
CURRENT LIABILITIES JREh& &
Short term borrowings 52 Bi{& & 1,147,626 750,364
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE1I KB A 77 IE 17,083 17,715
Other payables E 1 &1 5K 18 73,165 65,330
1,237,874 833,409
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES) ASSETS #i®) (& 18) E&EF 5 (77,463) 215,909
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES & & ER BB & 5,100,575 5,178,023
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY JEREN & &
Bonds payable fE{J{E#H 3,815,623 3,895,888
3,815,623 3,895,888
NET ASSETS & & /FE 1,284,952 1,282,135
CAPITAL AND RESERVES & 7N % 5
Share capital A&7 105,163 105,163
Reserves f# & 1,179,789 1,176,972
TOTAL EQUITY #Ez54E %58 1,284,952 1,282,135

2)

BT RBE (RE)ARAF » 2021 £% ;303



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 4K NE)EER (F)
COMPANY (Continued)

Reserves k]

Shares held Share
under share award
Share Special award scheme Retained
premium reserve scheme reserve profits Total

RERR 2B

ki Gt BE B it RERR 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL | ARBTR | ARMTR | ARBTR | ARETR| ARETR

(Note)
(i)
The Company A2 7
At 1 January 2020 R=E-FF-F—H 1,846 166,973 (8,622) (498) 805,067 964,761

Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the year

ERETIREAE NGRS - - - - 1,006,283 1,006,283
Purchase of shares under share award scheme

BERD RE EBEHRD - - (2,056) - - (2,056)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments

BRNEREERA 2 FMHE - - - 4,442 - 4,442
Shares vested under share award scheme

BERG REHEASBOHRG - - 4,197 (4,570) 373 -
Dividends received under share award scheme

BB RE HRDRERE - - - - 2,049 2,049
Dividends paid BT S (1,846) - - - (796,661) (798,507)
At 31 December 2020 R=E-FE+-A=+—H - 166,973 (6,481) (621) 1,017,101 1,176,972
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44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 4K DB EER (F)
COMPANY (Continued)

Reserves (Continued) bt (1)
Shares held Share

under share award
Share Special award scheme Retained

premium reserve scheme reserve profits Total

RERHER Ro%R

R EE RHRE |HaLENRG TERE REEN st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARMTT ARBTT
(Note)
()

Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the year

ERETIREN2 ENEEE - - - - 977,248 977,248

Purchase of shares under share award scheme

RERG REHEABEHRD - - (7,415) - - (7,415)

Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments

BRANEREER N FOHE - - - 4,725 - 4,725

Shares vested under share award scheme

RERHZE: 2 ERORH - - 4,355 (4,690) 335 -

Dividends received under share award scheme

BERG R ERRORE - - - - 2,262 2,262

Dividends paid B & - - - - (974,003) (974,003)

At 31 December 2021 R=E-—F+-A=1—H - 166,973 (9,541) (586) 1,022,943 1,179,789

Note: MIzE -

The amount recorded in the special reserve was resulted from: ST AR R ER IR S -

(i)  the capital contribution by/distribution to the Company in relation to () ARBGRKE HEKBRRRERET
the acquisitions/disposals of equity interests in subsidiaries; and /BRI R

(i) the difference between the net carrying amounts of equity interests (i) MIEREBRENREFERESS B ER
in subsidiaries and the nominal value of the shares of their respective ARBEHEEZFARNEESERRR ST
holding companies arisen in share exchange transactions during the EEMER -

group reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20212 —F = —4# 1+ =-H="1—HI F&E

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 45. HmEHREE
PERIOD
Postponement of discloseable transaction in relation to the HEERE —H B EAR%KEFTHENA
subscription for 6% equity interests in one Target Company THERS

On 24 December 2021, the Group and another five independent
third parties (“other subscribers”) entered into Share
Subscription Agreement of one Target Company, pursuant to
which the Group and other subscribers have agreed to subscribe
for registered capital of RMB1.8 billion and RMB20.2 billion
respectively, by way of capital injection into the Target Company
(the “Capital Increase”). Upon completion of the Capital Increase
contemplated under the Share Subscription Agreement, the Group
will hold 6% equity interests in the Target Company as enlarged
by the Capital Increase and will become the third largest equity
owner of the Target Company and has the right to appoint one
director to participate in the management and operation of the
Target Company.

On 13 January 2022, the Group received a notice from the Target
Company notifying that the Capital Increase would be temporarily
suspended as a result of the withdrawal of certain Subscribers
from the Share Subscription Agreement, the Group will make
further assessment on the revised proposal of capital increase of
the Target Company when it has come up.

@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YE Liaoning
Mr. SUN Yang
Mr. WANG Wenijie

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. WANG Wenjian

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHANG Yuging
Mr. FENG Hua Jun
Mr. SHAO Yang Dong

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. WONG Pui Ling (ACCA, HKICPA)
Mr. MA Jianfeng

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.0O. Box 2681, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN

HONG KONG

Unit 2304-5, 23/F., Henley Building
5 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN

THE PRC

No. 66-68, Shunyu Road, Yuyao
Zhejiang Province, PRC

Corporate Information
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BERRLE
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=¥ L (ACCA, HKICPA)
BRI E

AR EE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
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Corporate Information

NEER

CORPORATE WEBSITE
www.sunnyoptical.com

LEGAL ADVISER
TW Partners

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Registered Public Interests Entity Auditors

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China, Yuyao Sub-branch
BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1100
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17" Floor

Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
2382 .HK

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. SUN Yang
Ms. WONG Pui Ling (ACCA, HKICPA)
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